APRIL 2, 1954 20 CENTS
: CIA-RDP75-00149R000700490026-7

DRAFT CALLS EASE

By Rear Admiral Robert A. Theobald, U. S. N., Ret.
WITH CORROBORATIVE FOREWORDS BY

Rear Admiral Hushand E. Kimmel, U. S. N., Ret.,and
Fleet Admiral William F. Halsey, U. S. N.

Approved For Release 2005/01/05 : CIA-RDP75-00149R000700490026-7



Approved For Release 2005/01/05 : CIA-RDP75-00149R000700490026-7

Chemical 'magnet”
tokes wax out of ol

]{1'1||('|11|><" when a cold mornne
weant an mgine  that vour stater
could burely turn over? That s
peadling was i the oil—congealed b
chill.

Todinv vef ners nse a sl)u‘m] techni e
which remos s paoallin o pm(]uu* al co-
Howing wint o oil and they aet sald hle
wasn on the ~ des This deswaning process
works most o hieier Hy smiost ceonomic Hh
nsine methn ethvl ketone, called MK
R /ﬁlr'r‘i/)il" .

Nor do e ases of MEK end witl oil
refinine. s s di Liche sofeent poser
works tospe ial achantaee inmaking ace-
e acthies ives. \_\nlhl*li(‘ leathers - a
fone hist ot inportan indistricd l)m(ll cts.

4 7 b4

Developimer s ol ceonomicitl solvents Tor
varicd uses s anothior n-\;mllﬂu ol Sacll
Chendenl's partin eship ith industry nd
RRIARE it \1.11\1'111 1)(‘[1'11](‘111|| chiem \tl'}'

serve vaour on ‘(‘(l\ i~ oy constant l)lll'l Ose,

g,

L e

Shell Chemical Corporaticn

Chemical Partner of Industry and Agriculture =

[0 B SAMN FREANTIDUL

Approved For Release 2005/01/05 : CIA-RDP75-00149R000700490026-7

HEGIP SRS
v D g



over Every Base
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What is the truth about Peat! Harbor? This
question is still being asked, 12 years after the
attack and notwithstanding elght investiga-
tions. i

These investigations, in the tfninds of many
people, left disturbing questions still un-
answered, curious actions unexplained.

Who was really to blame for this worst of
all U.S. military disasters?

Now comes a new explangtion. lt's in a
book called “The Final Secret; of Pearl Har-
bor," written by Robert A. Theobald, a rear
admiral in the U. S. Navy, now retired, who
was in command of destroyers at Pearl Harbor
at the time of the attack. :

Admiral Theobald puts ihef responsibility
for Pearl Harbor on one man: President Frank-
lin D. Roosevelt. :

The President, he says, deli éerufely invited
the Japanese attack, knew it was coming,
and deliberately withheld this knowledge
from U. S. commanders in Hawaii.

This, the author says, is why Pearl Harbor
was caught by surprise on Dec. 7, 1941, why
4,575 Americans were killed n':r wounded, 18
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The Washington Contribution
to the Japanese Attack

ships sunk or damaged, 177 airplanes lost.

President Roosevelt's purpose? To bring
U. S. into the war agair st Nazi Germany, ac-
cording to Admiral Thaobald. He says thai
Mr. Roosevelt was conv nced that a Japanese
attack was the only wey to win solid publit
support for the war tha he believed the U. §.
should fight.

To support his clairy, Admiral Theobalc
bares official records. H:) prints the secret Jap-
anese messages, decotled and delivered t¢
the White House, that 1evealed the Japaness
plot in advance of the attack. He tells wha-
went on behind the s:enes in Washington

In the eight official ir vestigations, conduct-
ed under Democratic .Administrations, mos-
of the blame for Pearl }F arbor was put on twe
men: Admiral Husband E. Kimmel and Lieut
Gen. Walter C. Short, than top U. §. command--
ers in Hawaii. Admiral Theobald calls this ar
injustice, says the full s ory was kept a politi-
cal secret. Corroborative. forewords were writ--
ten by Admiral Kimmel .ind Flegt Admiral Wil
liam F. Halsey. In his fireword, Admiral Hal -
sey says that Admiral Kimmel and General
Short were ‘military mortyrs.”
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Rear Admlral
rf A. Theobald U. S N., Ret.

(Although Admiral Theobald’'s book will not
be published until April 28, 1954, by the Devin-
Adair Company, book publishers, 23 East 26th
Street, New York City, U.S. News & World Report
has obtained first serial rights throughout the
world to print it in advance of regular book pub-
lication.

(The entire contents of this magazine are pro-
tected by copyright. No part of the material from
the book ‘‘The Final Secret of Pearl Harbor' in
excess of 500 words may be reprinted or used in
radio or television broadcasts without written

permission of the copyright owners. The copyright
on the first serial rights is held by United States
News Publishing Corporation, and the copyright
on the book is held by Rear Admiral Theobald
ond the Devin-Adair Company of New York.

(Any permission to reprint in excess of 500
words prior to April 28, 1954, must be obtained
from United States News Publishing Corpora-
tion. Quotations of less than 500 words are re-
leased for morning newspapers of March 30,
1954.—Editor’s note.)

The full text of the book follows:

ADMIRAL KIMMEL'S FOREWORD

EAR ADMIRAL THEOBALD'S studies have caused him to
R conclude that we were unready at Pearl Harbor because
President Roosevelt’s plans required that no word be sent
to alert the Fleet in Hawaii. e has produced a readable,
concise, and convincing presentation of the evidence which
supports his deductions regarding the President’s plan and
the details of its execution. In my philosophy 1 can find no
reasons which justify the formulation and execution of such
a plan. The individuals in high position in Washington who
willfully refrained from alerting our forces at Pearl Harbor
should never be excused.

The Commanders at Pearl Harbor were never informed
of the text nor even given a summary of the American note
delivered to the Japanese Ambassadors on November 26,

1941, which effectually ended the possibility of further ne-
gotiation and thus made the Pucific war incvitable. They were
never informed that the United States had assured the British
of armed support it the Japanese attacked the British. The
existence of this assurance was divulged during the Congres-
sional Investigation in 1946.

During some three months prior to the attack, several
inconsequential Japanese intercepts were supplied to me,
but a great number of vitally important messages which dis-

U. S. NEWS & WORLD REPORT, April 2, 19

closed Japanese intentions were never supplied to the Com-
manders at Pearl Harbor, notably: the Tokyo-Honolulu
dispatches regarding the exact location of ships berthed in
Pear]l Harbor; the Tokyo-Washington messages which em-
phasized a deadline date by which the Washington confer-
ence must reach a satisfactory agreement or “after that things
are automatically going to happen.”

No hint of vital intercepts received, decoded, and delivered
to responsible officials in Washington on December 6 and
December 7, 1941, was sent to the Navy and A1my Com-
manders in the Hawaiian area.

Admiral Theobald was serving as Commander, Destroyers,
Battle Force and was actually in the Port of Pear] Harbor
when the Japanese attacked. He assisted me and was present
when 1 gave my testimony before the Roberts Commission.
He writes with the authority of personal knowledge con-
cerning the proceedings of that Commission as well as the
events that preceded the attack on the Fleet.

Hussanp E. KiMMEL
New London, Conn. Rear Admiral, U.S. Navy (Retired)
December, 1953

(Continued on page 50)
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ADMIRAL HALSEY’S FOREWORD

and. -~

AD.\[IRAL THEOBALD'S book digests and correlates the results
of his painstuking rescarch into a mass of documentary
evidence. Whether or not vou agree with any or all of his
conclusions, his book is a “must” for every American who
believes in fair play. Read it with an open mind and arrive
at your own conclusions. [ {ind in it an approach different
from any I have previously scen to the disaster at Pear] Har-
bor on December 7. 1941,

At thut time T wus one of the three senior commanders
of the Pacific Fleet, serving under Admimd Kimmel. 1 am
sure he kept me informed of all the intelligence he possessed.
Certainly I did not know then of any of the pertinent “Magic
Messages.” All our intelligence pointed Lo an attack by Japan
against the Philippines or the southern arcas in Malava or
the Dutch East Indies. While Pear]l Harbor was considered
and not ruled out, the mass of the evidence made available
to, us pointed in another dircetion. Had we known of Japan's
minute and continued interest in the esact location and
movement of our ships in Pew!d Harbor, as indicated in the
“Magic Messages,” it is only logical that we would have
concentrated  our thought on mecting the  practical  cer-
tainty of an attack on Pearl Hachor, [ am sure I would have
protested the movement of my Task Fora to Wake Island
in late November and carly December. 1 am also sure no
protest would lave been necessary: becawse it Kimmel had
possessed this intelligence. he wonld not have ordered that
movement.

1 then had my flag in the Enterprise, one of the two carriers
we had aperating in the Pacifie. The second was the Lexing-

ton, paut of a Force under Fear Admiral Newton's comrm
The Saratoga, the third and only other carrier assigned to the
Pacific Fleet, was on the VVest Coast of the United states,
completing periodic overlanl wand repair.

We were sadly deficient 1 long-distance scouting yilanes.
The only Army planes avai able were B-18's. These olanes
were slow, shortlegeed., wned unfitted for overseas sccuting.
There were not sufficient 1 BY's— Navy scouting planes and
good, old, stow, and cumbe some work horses—to run 1 con-
tinuous 360° scarch withot! wearing out matériel anl per-
sonnel. We were further hadicapped by directives rec uiring
the training of large guotas of personnel in these pla es for
serviee in the Atlantic. This together with the transfer of the
carrier Yorktown to the Eas Coasl of the United States, was
a tremendous drain on our < heady slim resources.

Nevertheless, had the "N agic Messages™ been kncwn to
us, there can be no doubt the { a 3607 search would hav » been
ordered and maintained to 1 1c breaking point of matérizl and
personnel.

I have always considerec. Admiral Kimmel and Ceneral
Short ta be splendid officers who were thrown to the volves
as scapegoats for something over which they had no ¢ontrol.
They had to work with wha they were given, both in :quip-
ment and information. They are our outstunding n ilitary
martyrs.

Wirteray IF. T ALsEY
Flect Admiral, U.S. Nacy
Fishers Island, N. Y.

September, 1933

AUTHOR’S INTRODUCTION

Having been present at Pearl Harbor on December 7, 1941,
and having appeared with Admiral Husband E. Kimmel when
that officer testificd before the Roberts Commission.® the au-
thor has ever since soneht w full understauding of the back-
ground that inade that dav possibie. For many vears, he gath-
cred and picced together the available evidence which ap-
peared to shed light upon the Washington happenings con-
cerned with that attack. These studies produced very definite
conclusions regarding the nunner in which omr country’s
strategy had been shaped to entice the Japauese to attack
Pearl Nuwrbor, and the cflorts that have since been made o
keep these fucts from the knowledee of the American People.

Ior over threc vears, the thirty-nine-volunie set which com-
prises the Record of Proceedings of all the Pearl Harbor [o-
vestigations has been availuble to the author. Serious study

° Admiral Kinumnel had asked the anthor to act as his connsel bhelore
the Roberts Conmnission, but the Adiniral was oot allowed counsel.
Nevertheless, although his  status belore the Commission wuas
anomalous, the author did accompany the Admiral whenever the
latter testificd before that body, wand late on Qie first day of that
testimony was sworn s o witness, During the discussion connected
with this swearing, the following (ulmn;.,c ocaurred:

Justice Roberts: “So 1t is understood that you are not acting as
counsel.”

Admiral Theobald: “No. sir”

General McCoy: “The admiral is not on trial, of course”

Justice Roberts: "No, this is not a trial ol the adwmiral, in any
sense,”

1t has always been dillicult to anderstand Justice Roberts” state-
ment that Admiral Kimmel was not on trial, Thee Conunission came
into being o investigate the surprise attack upon the Fleet which
he had commanded at the time, and it was gencrally recognized
that the result of thic inquiry would be the severe arraignme nts of
Admiral Kimmel and Gereral Short, which did constitute the prin-
cipal findings of the Conumssion: findings which were given wide
publicity at the carliest possible moment.

50

ot these volumes has causec many revisions of errors in de-
tail. but it has served to div st the writer’'s mind of all doubt
regarding the soundness of s basic conclusions.

It is firmly believed that those in Washington who knew
the Tacts, decided from the first that considerations f pa-
triotism and lovally to the r wartime Commander-in-Chief
required that a veil ol seer2ey should be drawn abo it the
President’s handling of the  tuation which culiinated in the
Pewrl Harbor attack.

While there was great ju tification lov this secrecy  luring
the continuance of the war, he reasons for it no longer cxist.
The war is finished. Preside it Roosevelt and his admiiistra-
tion are now history. Dictates of patriotism requiring s screcy
regarding a line of national conduet in order tu prescrve it
for possible future repetitios do not apply in this case be-
cause, in this atomic age, fazlituting an enemy’s surpr se at-
tack, as a method of initia ing o war, is unthinkablc. Our
Pearl Harbor losses would g reclude that course of action in
the future without considera ion ot the increased desto .ctive-
pess of present and luture vieapons. Finally, fovalty to their
late President in the matter 3 Pearl Harbor would be better
served todayv, it his Driend: would discard their pol ey of
seereey in favor ol full pubicity.

Another consideration b tely sjw o VOIS ¢ com-
plete understanding of the vhole 11}.1131 1 Tﬁ L?’, is the
thought of justice to the 1)11-1(551()1);11 reputations of the Fa-
waiian Commanders. Admiiral Kimmel and General ¢ hort—
a justice which is long overcue.

Throughout the war, mai tenance of the national 11orale

at the highest possible level demanded complete publi: con- s

fidence in the President anc his principal military advisers.
During that time, the public could not be given cause to as-
sign a tithe of blame for the Pear] Tharbor attack to Washing-

EWS & WORLD REPORT, April 2, 1954
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ton. And so, dating from the report of the Roberts Commis-
sion, most of the responsibility for Pear]l Harbor has been
placed upon the two Hawaiian Commanders. This carefully
executed plan which diverted all suspicion from Washington
contributed its full measurc to the successful conduct of
the war.

The time has come when full publicity should be given
to the Washington contribution to the Pearl Harbor attack,
in order that the judgment of the American people may as-
sign to Admiral Kimmel and General Short no more than
their just and proper share of the responsibility for that
tragic day.

Manifestly, many readers will be reluctant to agree with
the main conclusions which have been reached in this study.
In recognition of this fact, the normal sequence of deductive
reasoning is discarded in favor of the order used in a legal
presentation. The case is stated at the outset, and the cvi-
dence is then marshalled and discussed. The reader is thus
enabled to weigh each fact, as it is presented, against the
conclusions, which have been firmly implanted in the mind
of the author by the summation of these facts.

PART |

Cliapter 7

MAIN DEDUCTION:
PRESIDENT ROOSEVELT
CIRCUMVENTS
AMERICAN PACIFISM

N THE SPRING OF 1940, Denmark, Norway, Holland, Belgium

and France were conguered by Germany, and throughout
the remainder of that year Great Britain’s situation was so des-
perate that many expected her collapse carly in the cnsuing
year. Fortunately, however, the Axis powers turned East in
1941 to conquer Greece and to attack
Russia.

There is every reason to believe that
when France was overcome President
Roosevelt became convinced the United
States must fight beside Great Britain,
while the latter was still an active belliger-
cnt, or later sustain the fight alone, as the
last democratic stronghold in a Nazi world.
Never, however, had the  country becn
less prepared for war, both psychological-
ly and physically. Isolationism was a domi-
nant philosophy throughout the land, and
the armed forces were weak and conse-
quently unready.

The United States not only had to be-
come an active participant in democracy’s
fight as quickly as possible, but a people,
completely united in support of the war
effort, had to be brought into the arena.
But, how could the country be made to

U. 5. NEWS & WORLD REPORT, April 2, 1954
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ADMIRAL THEOBALD

The sole purpose of the subject matter contained herein is
a searching for the truth, and it is hoped that the absence of
any ulterior motive is apparent throughout. Comments of a
critical character concerning the official actions of officers fre-
quently intersperse the pages which follow. No criticism of
the officer is intended. Those officers were obeying orders,
ander circumstances which were professionally most trying
to them. Such comments are necessary to a full understanding
of the discussion of the moment, however, but there is no
intention to impugn the motives of any individual. Patriotism
and loyalty were the wellsprings of those motives.

Therc is necessarily considerable rccurrence of the same
thought and argument in the development of the successive
phases of this closely interwoven subject. Sometimes this has
been unavoidable if the connected flow of a particular line
of reasoning was to be maintained. At other times, the repeti-
tion was deliberately used for emphasis.

Rosert A. THEOBALD
Marblehead, Mass. Rear Admiral, U.S. Navy (Retired)

February, 1954

President Roosevelt Brings War
to the United States

fight? Only a cataclysmic happening could move Congress
to enact a declaration of war; and that action would not
guarantec that the nation’s response would be the completely
united support which victory has always demanded. This was
the President’s problem, and his solution was based upon the
simple Fact that, while it takes two to make a fight, either one
may start it.

As the people of this country were so strongly opposed
to war, one of the Axis powers must be forced to involve the
United States, and in such a way as to arouse the American
people to wholehearted belief in the necessity of fighting.
This would require drastic action, and the decision was un-
questionably a difficult one for the President to make.

In this conncetion, it should be remcmbered that Japan,
Germany, and Italy signed the Tripartite Treaty on Septem-
ber 28, 1940, by which the three nations agreed to make
common cause against any nation, not then
a participant in the European war or the
Sino-Japanesc conflict, which attacked one
of the signatories.

Thereafter, the fact that war with Japan
meant war with Germany and Italy played
an important part in President Roosevelt’s
diplomatic strategy. Throughout the ap-
proach to war and during the fighting, the
primary U.S. objective was the defeat of
Germany.

To implement the solution of his prob-
lem, the President: (1) instituted a suc-
cessful campaign to correct the Nation’s
military unpreparedness; (2) offered Ger-
many repeated provocations; by violations
of neutrality and diplomatic usage; (3) ap-
plied ever-increasing diplomatic-economic
pressure upon Japan, which reached its
sustained climax on July 25, 1941, when
the United States, Great Britain, and the

- -
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Netherlands stopped their trade with Japan and subjected her
to almost comp]clc cconomic cncirclvmcnt; (4} made nutoal
commitments with the British Prime Miuister at Newfound-
land in August. 1941, which promised mutual support in the
event that the United States, Great Britain, or a third country
not then at war were attacked by Japan in the Pacific: (5)
terminated the Washington conference with the note of No-
vember 26, 1941, which gave Japan no choice but surrender
or war; (6) retained a weak Pacific Fleet in Flawaiian waters,
despite contrary naval advice, where it served only one diplo-
matic purpose, an invitation to a Jupunese surprise attack: (7)
furthered that surprise by causing the Hawaiian Commanders
to be denied invaluable information from decoded Japanese
dispatches concerning the rapid approach of the war and the
strong probability that the attack would In: dirceted at Pearl
Harbor.

This denial of information was a vital {eature of enticing
a Japanese surprise attack upon Pearl Harbor. I Adiniral
Kimmmel wnd General Short had been given the knowledge
possessed by the Washington authorities, the Hawaiiun Com-
mands would have heen alerted against an overseas attack.
The Pacific Fleet would have kept the sea during the first

TRANSCRIPT OF THE
AUTHOR’S NAVAL CAREER

Entered Naval Academv, June, 1903

Graduated from Naval Academy, September. 1906

Gunnery Officer, U.S.S. New York, Flagship of U. S.
Squadron with British Grand Flcet. 1917-1918

Promoted to Commander, September, 1918

Executive Officer, Naval Post Gratluate
1919-1921

Destroyer Command. Asiatic Fleet, 1922-1924

Commanding Officer, Naval Post Graduate School.
1924-1027

Executive Officer, U.S.S. West Virginia, 1927-1929

Under Instruction, Senior Class, Naval War College,
1929-1930

Secretary of War Plans, Navy Department, and
Member of Joint Army-Navy Planning Com-
mittee, 1930-1932

Promoted to Captain, February, 1932

Chief of Staff. Destroyers, Pacific Fleet, 1932-1931

Member of Advanced Class, Naval War College.
engaged in Seminar study of Japan and Pacific
War, 1934-1935

In Charge., Strategy Division, Naval War Collcge,
1935-1937

Commanding Officer, U.S.5. Nevada, 1937-1939

Chief of Staff, U. S. Fleet, 1939-1940

Member. General Board, Navy Department. Spring
of 1940

Promoted to Rear Admiral. June, 1940

Commanding Cruiser Division Three. Summer of
1940
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1941-May. 1942

Commanding Northern Pacific Force. May, 1942-
January, 1943

Commandant. First Naval District, 1943-1944

Retired from Active Service, February. 1945
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days ol December, 1941, uatil the issue of peace or war had
been decided. With the hi shly effective Japanese esy-ionage
in Hawaii, this would have caused Tokvo to cancel tae sur-
prise attack.

The problem which faced Lincoln during March of 1861
was identical in principle—t) unite the sentiment of the North
behind the policy of compelling the seceded Souther . states
by force of arms to return to the Union. For a month after
his inauguration, lie made ny move. and then South Caolina’s
insistent demands for the surrender of Fort Sumter gave him
the answer to his problem, He refused to surrender the fort,
and dispatched a fleet to rprovision it. South Carolir a then
fired the first shots of the Civil War, Pearl Harbor wa . Presi-
dent Roosevelt's Forl Sumtir,

Diplomatically, Presiden  Roosevelt’s strategy of ‘orcing
Japun to war by unremittic g and ever-increasing diplomatic-
cconomic pressure, and by simultuncously holding ou: Fleet
in Hawaii as an invitation to a surprise attack, was a ccmplete
snceess. Militarily, our ship and personnel losses mak De-
cember 7, 1941 as the day of tragic defeat. One is fo-ced to
conclude that the anxiety 0 have Japan, bevond ali possi-
bility ol dispute, commit he first act of war, causzd the
President and his civilian  dvisers to disregard the nilitary
advice which would somew at have cushioned the blo v. The
President, belore the evert, probably envisaged a Panay
incident® of somewhat lurger proportions, Despite the fact
that the attack laid the fcandation for complete vic:ory, a
tenvific price was paid, as tie following account of thz ship,
pline. and personnel losse:  discloses.

The Pearl Harbor Losse : Facts and Figures

The Japanese clearly in ended that their entire s wprise
attack should be delivered aguinst military objectives. The
{irst waves of the attack w me delivered against the zirfields
on the I[sland of Oahu—Ar ny, Navy, and Marine Ccrps—tc
reduce the air-borne oppo ition as much as possibl:. The
main atlacks began 13 miwtes after these preliminay at-
tacks, and were primarily lirected against the capital ships
in Pcar] Harbor, Damage ilicted upon smaller vessels was
clearly the incidental con:zquence of the main opcration.
Very few planes dropped th 2ir bombs upon the city of Hono-
lulu. Three plines did so n the late phases of the attack,
but their last-minute chanses of course indicated that this
was done because those jarticular pilots did not care to
encounter the severe anti-a reraft fire that was then b arsting
over their main target arei.

In December, 1941, the zapital ships of the Pacific Fleet
mnmbered twelve: 9 Battle hips: 3 Carriers. Of these. cight
Battleships but none of th Carriers were present it Pearl
Harbor at the time of the Japanese attack: the Battleship
Colorado was in the Bremerton Navy Yard; the Carrier
Enterprise was in a Task Torce returning from Wale; the
Lexington was in a Task Force ferrving planes to M dway;
the Suratoge was on the West Coast, having just comp cted a
Navy Yard overhaul.

The results of the Japaiese air attacks upon the U.S.
Pacific IFleet in Pear] Tharbcr on December 7, 1941, veere as
follows:

Battleships:

Arizona, total loss, us her forward magazines blew up;

Oklalhioma, total loss, capsized and sauk in harbor—later raised
solely to clear harbor of the obstruction and resunk
off Oulu;

Culifornia, West Virginia, :ank in upright position a: their
berths with quarter lecks awash—much later raised,
repaired, and returr 2d to active war service;

? U.S.S. Penay, an American ; unboat, sunk by Japanese b mbing
planes on the Yangtze River on December 12, 1937,
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Nevada, beached while standing out of the harbor, to pre-
vent sinking in deep water after extensive bhomb dam-
age—repaired and returned to active war service;

" Pennsylvania, Maryland, and Tennessee, all received damage

but of a less severe character.

Smaller Ships:

Cruisers: Helena, Honolulu, and Raleigh were all damaged,
but were repaired and returned to active wax service;

Destroyers: Two damaged beyond repair; two others dam-
aged but repaired and returned to active war service;

Auxiliary Vessels: 1 Seaplane Tender, 1 Repair Ship, both
severely damaged but repaired and returned to active
war service;

Target Ship: Utah, former battleship, sank at her berth.

The Japancse attacks upon the various Oahu airfields re-
sulted in the following U, S. plane losses: Navy 80; Army 97.

U.S. military personnel casualties werc: Navy, including
Marine Corps, 3077 officers and enlisted men killed, 876
wounded; Army, including the Army Air Corps, 226 officers
and enlisted men killed, 396 wounded. Total: 4575.

The Japanese losses were 48 planes shot down and threc
midget submarines destroyed. These vessels displaced 45
tons and were of little, if any, military value.

Chlapter 2

PRESIDENT ROOSEVELT’S
PROGRESSIVE MOVES
TOWARD WAR

Progress Toward Military Preparedness

espITE the many handicaps that had to be overcome, the

President’s campaign for military preparedness was

markedly successful during 1940 and 1941, His best ally was
a Congress with a majority in each House anxious to wipe
out the many years of inadequate appropriations for the mili-
tary and naval establishments. On September 3, 1940, the
United States obtained long-term leases to outlying bases in
British territory, in cxchange for 50 old destroyers. On Sep-
tember 16, the Selective Service Act became law. By the end
of 1940, Congress had voted: an immediate increase of the
Army to 1,000,000 enlisted men, with an eventual goal of
4,000,000; 50,000 planes for the Army Air Corps; 170,000
enlisted men for the Navy, and 34,000 for the Marines; 15,-
000 planes and 10,000 pilots for the Naval Air Force; and a
naval building program which cenvisaged an eventual two-
ocean navy and embraced 17 battleships, 14 heavy cruisers,
40 light cruisers, 197 destroyers and 74 submarines.

Continuing his efforts, the President, on Deccember 29,
1940, made a radio plea to the country for support for further
large increases in the Army and Navy; and the budget sub-
mitted in January, 1941, recommended the then tremendous
peacetime appropriation of $10,811,000,000 for the military
and naval establishments. On April 10, 1941, the United
States acquired defense rights in Greenland; and in July,
1941, with the consent of that government, American mili-
tary forces occupied Iceland.

Provocation Offered Germany

L 4 > . . .
Germany’s complacent acceptance of American violations

of neutrality was a surprising feature of the European war,
between June, 1940, and December, 1941. In fact, it was

soon apparent that Germany did not intend to contribute to a
break of diplomatic relations with the United States. Ameri-
can military intervention in Europe in World War I had
proved decisive, and Hitler obviously was not courting a
repetition in World War IL

The important American violations of neutrality during
that period were: (1) shipments of considerable amounts of
war material to Great Britain, commencing immediately after
Dunkirk; (2) the acquiring of overseas bases in British terri-
tory, and in Greenland and Iceland; (3) the giving to Great
Britain of 50 old destroyers, during a state of war between
that country and Germany and Italy; (4) the President's
broadcast warning to the Axis, December 29, 1940, that no
Dictator could weaken American determination to help Great
Britain; (5) the enactment of Lend-Lease, on March 11,
1941, and, thereafter, the extension of this unilateral war-
time aid to the countrics arrayed against the Axis—Great
Britain, Russia, China, Grecce, Iolland, Norway, and
Czechoslovakia; (8) the closing of the German and Italian
consulates and the freezing of the assets of those countries in
the United States by Executive Order, in answer to Axis
attacks on American shipping; (7) the President’s explanation
to the world, in July, 1941, that the American occupation of
Tecland was undertaken to forestall a possible seizure by
Germany; (8) the announcement, also in July, 1941, that the
United States Navy would keep the sea lanes open to Iceland
and to all other advance garrisons, which meant & campaign
against German submarines in the middle and western Atlan-
tic®; (9) the President’s public statement on September 11,
1941, that American naval vessels and planes would fire on
Axis ships which entered waters vital to American intcrests.

- American Pressure on Japan

President Roosevelt's progressive tightening of the diplo-
matic-cconomic pressure on Japan was most significant. On
January 26, 1940, six months after its abrogation by the
United States, the American-Japanese commercial treaty
lapsed; and through 1940, successive restrictions  stopped
shipments of airplane fuel, scrap metal, and much-needed
machinery and machine tools to Japan. On October 9, 1940,
this country discontinued subsidies on wheat shipped to the
Far East. During 1941, Anglo-American support caused the
Dutch East Indics to refuse to be forced into Japan’s eco-
nothic enipire. Early in 1941, Great Britain, The Netherlands,
and the United States commenced to extend financial and
military aid to China; and at the same time, the Anglo-Saxon
countries began the recall of their citizens from the Far East.

On May 29, 1941, in retaliation for Japanese scizure of
American gasoline in Haiphong, an Executive Order stopped
export from the Philippines to Japan of raw materials essen-
tial to the prosccution of war. On July 25, in answer to
Japan’s seizure of French Indo-China, the United States,
Great Britain, and The Netherlands, acting in concert, froze
Japanese assets and stopped all trade with the offending
country.

On Sunday, August 17, 1941, the day of his return from
the Newfoundland meeting with Mr. Churchill, President
Roosevelt held a conference with Ambassador Nomura, dur-
ing which two State Department papers were read and dis-
cussed, Copies of these papers were given to the Japanese
Ambassador for transmission to his government.

Both documents contained strongly worded passages, .ak’
though they were mainly concerned with a summary of

# Throughout the fall of 1941, American destroyers attacked Ger-
man submarines with depth charges with unknown results, During
September and October, German submarines inflicted the following
damage: U.S.S. Greer torpedoed; U.S.S. Salinas, supply vesscl,
torpedoed; U.S.S. Kearney, dcstroyer, torpedocd; U.S.S. Reuben
James, destroyer, sunk.’ .
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Officer, 1941%

General [George C.] Marshall
Brig. General [Leonard T.] Gerow
Brig. Genceral [Sherman] Miles
Colonel [Rufus S.] Bratton
Colonel [Otis K.] Sadtler

Admiral [Harold R.] Stark

_Rear Adm. |Royal E.] Ingersoll
Rear Adm. [Richmond K.] Turner
Rear Adm. [Leigh] Noyes
Captain [Theodore S.} Wilkinson
Captain [John R.] Beardall
Captain [Frank E.] Beatty
Commander [Laurance F.] Safford

Commander [Arthur H.] McCollum
Lt. Comdr. [Alwin D.] Kramer

Admiral [Thomas C.] Hart
Admiral [Husband E.] Kimmel
Lt. Gen. [Walter C.] Short
Gen. [Douglas] MacArthur

PRESIDENT [FRANKLIN D.] ROOSEVELT
SECRETARY OF STATE [CORDELL] HuLL

Duty in late 1941

Chief of Staff, U. S. Army

Assistant Chief of Staff, War Plans Division

Assistant Chief of Staff, Military Intelligence Divis on

Chief, Far Eastern Scction, Military Intelligence D vision

Army Cominunications Service, Signal Corps, War
Department

Chief of Naval Operations

Asst. Chief, Naval Operations

Director of War Plans

Director, Naval Communications

Dircctor, Naval Intelligence

Aide to President

Aide to Sccretary of Navy

Head, Cominunications Security Division, Naval
Communications

Head of Far Eastern Section, Naval Intelligence

In Charge, Translation Group, Communications
Sccurity Div.

Commander-in-Chief, Asiatic Fleet

Commander-in-Chief, Pacific Fleet

Commanding General, Hawaiian Department

Commanding General, Philippine Departinent

PRINCIPAL CHARACTERS OF THE PEARL HARBOR STORY

SECRETARY OF WAR [HENRY L.] STIMSON
SECRETARY OF NAvY [FRANK] KNOX

Rank in 1945**

General of Army
Lieut. General
Major General
Colonel

Colonel
Admiral, Retired
Admiral
Admiral

Rear Admiral
Vice Admiral
Rear Admiral
Rear Admiral

Captain
Captain

Captain

Admiral, Retired
Rear Admiral, Re:.
Maj. Gen., Retire:l
General of Army

* Officer and rank at time of Pearl Harbor.

* * Rank at time of Congressic 1al Investigation.

informal conversations between the Ambassador and the
State Department during the preceding months, which had
been interrupted when Japan occupied French Tndo-China,
Admiral Nomura was told that they were 1o be given the
status of merely reference material. This permitted the Presi-
dent to express the American views in language which, in a
formal note, could have precipituted an inmnediate crisis he-
‘tween the two countries, - .

One of the papers was an answer to proposals for a4 meet-
ing between President Roosevelt and Prince Konoyve. the
Japanese Prime Minister, and for the resumption of the infor-
mal conversations in Washington. Its most significant extracts
were as follows:

“The Acting Seeretary of State . . . pointed out that the
government of the United States could only assume that
the occupation by Japan of French Indo-China . . . con-
stituted notice to the United States that Japan had taken
by forceful meuans a step preparatory to embarking on
further movements of conquest in the South Pacific area.
..« The government of the United States accordingly hud
no alternative but to inform the Japanese Ambassador that,
in the opinion of this government, the meusures then taken
by the Japanese Government had served to remove the
basis for further conversations relative to u peaceful settle-
ment in the Pacific arca:

“It goes without saying that no proposals or suggestions
affecting the rights and privileges of cither the Uwnited
States or Japan would be considered except as they might
be in conformity with the basic principles to which the
United States has long been committed,

“If . . . a program based upon peaceable and constructive
principles were to be adopted for the Pacific and i there-

alter any ol the countries or arcas within the Pacific were
wenaced, the policy of aiding nations resisting aggiession
would continue to be folowed by this governmert and
this government would cooperate’ with other naticns in
extending assistunce to ary country threatened.”

The other paper conclude1 with this warning:
“. .. This government 10w finds it necessary to tay to
the government of Jupan hat it the Japanese Governiment
takes any furthier steps in | ursuance of a policy or program
of military domination by ‘orce or threat of force of neigh-
boring countries, the gove nment of the United States will
be compelled to take imm sdiately any and all steps *vhich
it may deem neeessary tos rard sifeguarding the legit mate
rights and interests of th: United States and Ame rican
nationals and toward insuzing the safety and sceur ty of
the United States.”

On September 3, 1941, th2 United States asked Japwn to
accept the following four |rinciples as the basis for any
turther discussions: (1) respeet for the territorial inte grity
and sovereignly of all natiors; (2) non-interference e the
internal aflairs of other natioas; (3) cquality of opport anity
in trade and economic matter:; (4) status quo throughot t the
Pucific area.

Diplomatic  exchanges  during  September accompl shed
nothing: and on October 2, th e United States asked for «lear-
cut evidence that Japan intenc ed to withdraw her troops from
China and Indo-China. On October 16, Prince Konoye’s
Cubinet resigned. and two duys later, that of General Tojo
was installed. Washington in mediately recognized that this
change of Cabinets was a deeided step toward war.
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Japan had to break the economic encirclement to which
she had been subjected since July 25 or abandon her plans to
establish what she euphemistically characterized as the Asiatic
Zo-Prosperity. Sphere. So, about the middle of November,
*Ambassador Extraordinary Kurusu joined Admiral Nomura,
the accredited Japanese Ambassador, in Washington to nego-
tiate a solution of U.S.-Japanese issues.

As a basis for the settlement of the differences, the Am-
bassadors proposed that: (1) the United States give Japan
all the oil she needed, and release the frozen Japanecse assets;
(2) the United States cooperate with Japan to secure the
goods and commodities from the Dutch East Indies, which
the two nations needed; (3) Japan agree to withdraw troops
from French Indo-China, “upon either the restoration of
peace between Japan and China or the establishment of an
equitable peace in the Pacific.” In the meantime, Japan would
withdraw troops from Southern Indo-China when the United
States agreed to the foregoing proposals, provided the United
States and Japan should mutually agree not to advance troops
into Southeastern Asia and the South Pacific, except into that
part of French Indo-China where the Japanese troops were
then stationed.

Mutual Commitments at Newfoundland

Fifteen days after the United States, Great Britain, and
The Netherlands stopped their trade with Japan as an answer
to the latter’s military occupation of French Indo-China,
President Roosevelt and Prime Minister Churchill met at
Newfoundland. The conference lasted from August 9 to
13, 1941.

The one official pronouncement concerning the conference
was a joint statement, known as the Atlantic Declaration,
which was released in Washington on August 14. This con-
sisted of the enunciation of eight principles which set forth
the lack of aggressive intentions on the part of the two coun-

= trics, the postwar conditions which they decmed essential to

a better world, and certain postwar actions which they con-
sidered should be taken against the aggressor nations follow-
ing their defeat.
The Atlantic Declaration was an expression of lofty senti-
ments, which did nothing to further Anglo-American coop-
eration in the rapidly developing Pacific situation, which was
the reason for the conference. The neutral character of the
whole declaration is reflected in its preamble, which read,
“The President of the United States and Prime Minister
Churchill, representing His Majesty’s Government in the
United Kingdom, being met together, deem it right to make
known certain common principles in the national policies of
their respective countries on which they base their hopes for
a better future for the world.”
No one, for a minute, can entertain the thought that Presi-
dent Roosevelt and Mr., Churchill made a twenty-five-hun-
dred-mile round trip through a submarine-infested ocean,
accompanied by high-ranking diplomatic, military, and naval
advisers, to produce nothing more concrete than this neutral
pronouncement. Fortunately, for the record, later events con-
clusively indicate that the two national leaders experienced a
satisfactory meeting of their minds at Newfoundland, and
that the understandings reached in their private talks consti-
tuted powerful support for their ensuing prewar diplomacy
in Pacific matters.
_ The Prime Minister had undoubtedly hoped to lay the
foundation for an Anglo-American alliance at the conference.
He undoubtedly left Newfoundland fully cognizant of the
strong isolationist sentiments in the United States, and with
an appreciation that Japans aggression must be counted
upon to bring the United States into the war, despite the
President’s conviction that American participation was essen-
tial to ensure allied victory.
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These facts and the complete understandings with which
the two leaders parted are attested by the following passages
in Mr. Churchill's speech to the House of Commons on

~ January 27, 1942:

“We therefore have lain—I am putting it as bluntly as I
can—for nearly two years under the threat of an attack by
Japan with which we had no means of coping. But as time
has passed, the mighty United States, under the leadership
of Prosident Roosevelt, from reasons of its own interest and
safety but also out of chivalrous regard for the causc of
freedom and democracy, has drawn ever closer to the con-
fines of the struggle. And now that the blow has fallen,
it does not fall upon us alone.

“, .. The probability since the Atlantic conference, at
which I discussed these matters with Mr. Roosevelt, that
the United States, even if not herself attacked, would come
into the war in the Far East, and thus make final victory
sure, seemed to allay some of the anxieties. The expecta-
tion has not been falsified by the events. It fortified our
British decision to use our limited resources on the actual
fighting fronts.”

Two features of the foregoing quotations are worthy of
particular attention. First, there is the statement that Presi-
dent Roosevelt's leadership brought the United States pro-
gressively closer to the war. Secondly, the Atlantic Conference
provided Mr. Churchill with sufficiently strong assurances of
U. S. military support in the Far East to enable him to base
important wartime military decisions on those assurances.
What stronger evidence can there be that President Roosevelt
did make positive commitments at Newfoundland?

The following incidents offer further evidence that the
conference produced mutual understandings:

On August 17, 1941, as we have just seen, President Roose-
velt wasted no time upon his return to Washington in taking
action caleulated to agitate further the already strained U. S.-
Japanese relations;

November 7, 1941, the President asked the Cabinet
whether it thought the country would support active inter-
vention by the Government on behalf of a nation subjected
to further Japanese aggression in the Far East, and received
the unanimous opinion that it would;

November 10, 1941, Prime Minister Churchill publicly
announced in. London that if war broke out between the
United States and Japan, Great Britain would declare
war upon Japan “within the howr”—a commitment he
would never have made, with the tremendous war bur-
dens his country was then supporting, unless he had his
quid pro quo.

This close alignment of American and British diplomacy
is conclusive proof that secret talks of the two leaders at
Newfoundland produced an understanding so complete that
it was an alliance in all but name. About December 5, when
it was too late for American isolationism to affect the march
of events, Great Britain received the assurances that con-
verted this understanding into a military alliance.

This event became known as follows. Based on the assur-
ances, the War Office in London, on December 6, sent
the following order to Air Marshal Brooke Popham, the
British Commander-in-Chief of the Army and Air Forces in
Malaya:

“WE IIAVE NOW RECEIVED ASSURANCES OF AMERICAN ARMED
SUPPORT IN CASES AS FOLLOWS: (A) WE ARE OBLIGED TO EXE-
CUTE OUR PLANS TO FORESTALL JAP LANDING ON ISTIIMUS OF
KRA OR TAKE ACTION IN REPLY TO NIPS INVASION ANY OTHER
PART OF SIAM; (B) IF DUTCH INDIES ARE ATTACKED AND WE
GO TO THEIR DEFENSE; (C) IF JAPS ATTACK US THE BRITISIL.
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THEREFORE WITIHOUT REFFRENCE TO LONIKN PUT PLAN IN
ACTION IF FIRST YOU HAVE GOOD INFO JAP EXI'EDITION AD-
VANCING WITH THE APPARENT INTENTION O LANDING IN KRA
SECOND 1F THE NIPS VIOLATE ANY PART O THAILAND.

“IF NEI ARE ATTACKED PUT INTO OPERATION PLANS AGREED
UPON BETWEEN BRITISIT AND DUTCH.”

This dispatch was quoted verbiatim in o report of its re-
ceipt which the UL S, Naval Observer in Singapore imade to
Admiral art in Manila. Having no knowledee of the matter.
the Admiral relaved the Singapore message to the Navy De-
partment, with a request for instructions. The Pear] Harbor
attack forestalled any Washinaton reply. and therealter none
was needed nor made. Consequently, nothing more concern-
ing the incident has ever been made public. We do not know
how the assurances were transmitted from Washington to
London. We do not know what instructions, if anv. were
given to Admiral Stark and General Marshall, Certainly, none
were ever sent to Admiral Fart,

This dispatch from the British Wi Office to the Com-
mander-in-Chiet in Singapore, sent before the Japunese at-
tack upon Pearl Harbor, is definite proot that Anglo-Ameri-
can military cooperation wis alwavs an assured Tact after
the Newfoundlund conference.

Termination of the Washington Negotiations
with Nomura and Kurusu

On November 26, 1941, Sceretary lull Banded the Japa-
nese Ambassadors the note which purported o set torth the
American proposals for resolving the issues between the two
countries. Stripped of its diplomatic verlnage and  plainly
stated, the note suegested that, in exchange for a new trade
agreement and the unfreezing of cacli other’s assets, Jupan
agree to: (1) the acceptance of complete defeat in the Sino-
Japanese war, by the withdrvawal of all her torces from China
(2) her tacit surrender to the cconomic encirclement, by a
similar withdrawal from French Indo-Chinge, whose inviala-
bility would thereatter be respected: 3) her participation in
a nouaggression treaty, whose practical effect would  be
to guaramtee the following lands from attack: the Philip-
pines, Siberia, the Doteh Fast Indies, China. Thais 1)
the abolition of the Japauese-created puppet governnnents
in China and Manchnkuo, by promising with the United
States to support no government in China but that of Chiang
Kai-shek; (5) the practical abrogation of  Japanese obligi-
tions to Germany and Italy under the provisions of  the
Tripartite Treaty.

The details of the American note were reported o Tokyvo
in the Washington Embassy dispatels # 1189 (sce Chapter 3).

These American proposals were absolutely devoid of dip-
lomatic finesse. A far more subtle note resisting the Jupanese-
suggested  solution would  have heen equally effective in
breaking off the negotiations. The only possible conclusion is
that President Roosevelt wanted to be absolutely sure that
Japan's answer would he a decluaation of war, He used an
iron-shod club instead of a diplomatic rapier to attain his
purpose.

Evervone concerned recognized that this note put an end
to the Kurusu-Nomura negotiations, and thal war was in-
evitable. Seeretary Hull at once informed the heads of the
Army and Navy that diplomatic negotiations had failed. and
that {urther action must be the responsibility of the Armed
Forces. Tokyo, by seeret dispatch, immediately old the fapa-
nese Ambassadors that the American proposals were totally
unsuited as a basis for further negotiations. On November
27. President Roosevelt talked to Mr. Churehill on the trans-
Atlantic telephone. and the news must have heen most
welcome to the British Prime Minister, who had striven {or
so long to gain the United States as an active war ally.
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President Roosevelt, by the note of November 26, defiitely
and  deliberately brought viar to the United States  Ie
Lad flung the gauntlet inte Japans face. The lattar’s at-
tempt to break the encirelerient had fuiled. She mus now
surrender ar fight, and there “vas no question what her aswer
would be.

After all hope of a settbament had vanished, Pre ident
Rovsevelt sent a personal apeal to the Emperor, askin £ him
to preserve peace. This arvive 3 in Tokyo so late that Amassa-
dor Grew was unable to de iver it before the Pearl Harbor
attack. One can only conclude that this dispatech was sent
salelv for its possible effects i1 the pages of history.

The Fleet in Hawaii

The Pacific Fleet was rtiined in Hawaiian wates by
order of President Rooseve t from April, 1940, unt:l the
Pear] Harbor attack.

Admiral J. O. Richardso 1. Commander-in-Chicf o the
IFleel during 1940, visited  Aashinglon twice in the latter
half ol that vear, to confer with the President and the of-
ficials of the State and Navy Departments. During these Jisits,
he recommended that the Fleet be withdrawn to the West
Coust because: (1) the ship: were inadequately manned for
war: (2) the Hawaiian area was too exposed for Fleet train-
ing during the existing intern. tional tensiou: (3) the Fle ot de-
fenses against both air and s ibmarine attacks were far elow
the required standards of steength, In January, 1941 h e was
mnexpectedly relieved of the Fleet command by Acmiral
Kimimel,

It one of his talks with Admiral Richardson, President
Roosevelt explained that th: Fleet was Dbeing kept i the
mid-Pacific because its prescace there helped to deter Japu-
nese ageression in the Far Zast. This statement must have
heen made to help the Pres dent surmount an embarr: ssing
moment in the conversation, as he could not tell the Acmiral
the real reason lor retaining tie Fleet in Hawaii, Pearl Harbor
is lurther from the Inkne Sca-Formosa line than New
York is trom Gibraltar. The Fleet then based in Hav raiian
waters wis neither powerfu b enough nor in the nec ssary
strategic position to exert ane positive influence upon Ji pan’s
plans lor Eastern Asia. That could only have beer ae-
complished by basing an ade quate uaval foree in the Thilip-
pines. And that Fleet coud not possibly operate i1 the
Woestern Pacific beeunse its train (tankers, supply vessels,
cte)r was totally inadegnate to sustain such operaticns at
such a distance from a per nauent major base—a fac that
would not escape the trainec Japanese espionage in Howwaii.
Certainly, the Jupanese did 1ol hesitate to move into French
[ndo-China in July, 1941,

Furthermore, in March, 1), the already inferior 1acific
Fleet was Turther weakened 1y the detachment of three Tattle-
ships, one aireraft carrier, Dur light cruisers, and eig ateen
destrovers tor duty in the At antic; and in June, 1941, YWash-
ington gave serions considera jion to the transfer of three addi-
tional battleships to the Atha tic. Such changes in Fleet «ispo-
sitions, in thouse critical diplnnatic days, would never have
been made without the Pres dent’s approval. With the effee-
tive Japunese espionage in b awaii and in the Panama  Canal
Zone, changes in the strength of the Hawaiian force. and
naval movements between the Pacific and the Atlantic were
reported to Tokvo as soon as they happened. Consequently,
the willingness to weaken the Pacific 1Fleet in the {ace ¢ that
well-known espionage, at a time when diplomatie pressure
upon Japan should have beer strongly maintained, is pesitive
prool that President Roosev ]t was not concerned wity the
Fleet's diplomatic effect upoa Japan.

A pussage in another of Prsident Roosevell’s convers itions
with Admiral Richardson it most revealing. The Acmiral

(Continuec on page 38)
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in 1941

ADMIRAL HUSBAND E. KIMMEL LIEUT. GEN. WALTER C. SHORT
Commanded Pacific Fleet Commanded Hawaiian Department

JAPANESE ARE BRIEFED ' THE PLANES TAKE OFF BOMBS AWAY OVER HAWAII
These photos, from captured Japanese newsreels, show how the attack was carried out
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GEN. GEORGE C. MARSHALL ADMIRAL HAROLD R. STARK
Then, Army Chief of Staff Then, Chief of Naval Operations
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asked whether or not the United States would declare war, if
Japan should attack the Malay Peninsula. the Dutel Fast
Indies, or Indo-China. The President replied that hie was not
sure that the United States would fight, even if the Philippines
were attacked. Then. after a panse. he added that he was
firmly convinced, however, that this country would e drawn
into a Pacific war, becanse wars had a way of expanding, and.
sooner or later, Japan would commit the act which would in-
volve this country.

These remarks are worthy of carefnl serutiny. If we waould
not fight for the Philippines. we certainly would not fight for
Guam. The President, therefore, conld loresee no Far Fastern
action that would surcly canse the United States o ficht, and
with the Asiatic climinuted. only two posible Pacific arcas
remained, Hawaii and the Panama Canall It s important to
note the clear proof, which we Lere have, that by Octoher.
1940, President Roosevelt was firmlyv comvineed that when
Japan went to war, that country would soonr commit an
overt act against the United States, and it was Lis insistence
that was keeping the Pacific Fleet in its exposed position
in Hawaii. ’

Information Withheld from the Hawaiian
Commanders

As this chapter is concerned with President Roosevelts
moves toward war, we wre here interested solely in the part
which he plaved in the withholding of intormation from
Admiral Kimmel and General Short. Aund that role would
necessarily be confined to the formnlation of the decision and
its implementing orders to Admiral Stark and  General
Marshall.

In August, 1943, certain opinions of the Naval Court of
Inquiry and the action of the Secretary of the Navy on those
opinions were published. The Court criticized Admiral Stark’s
judgment because: he failed. during the eritical period he-
tween November 26 and December 7. 1941, to transmit to
Admiral Kimmel important information which he had regard-
ing the Jupanese situation: he did not immediately transmit,
on December 7. the fact that a message had been received
which appeared to indicate that a break in diplomatic rela-
tions was imminent. and that an attack in the Hawaiian arca
might be expected soon.

The concluding paragraph of the action v the Secrelary of
the Navy on the Proceedings of the Court contained the fol-
lowing statement: “Admiral Harold R. Stark. USN ( Retired) .
shall not hold any position in the United States Navy which
requires the exercise of superior judgment.”

The next day. at least one Washington. D. C. newsphiper
carried the Admiral's reply to these strictures. He said that his
conscience was entirely clear. because all his official actions
in the days before Pearl arbor had heen governed by orders
from “higher aunthority.” Admiral Stark repeated that state-
ment, at least once, in private correspondence. During those
days, President Roosevelt was the onlv naval anthority higher
in the chain of military command than Admiral Stark.®

It will be noted that the Adingral was replving to criticisims
of his denial of information to Admiral Kimmel. the most
arresting action of his administration in e period hefore
Pearl Harbor. Therefore. when he said that evervthing that
he did during the time was done on order of higher authority,
his statement conld ouly Lave meant that. for four months
hefore the attack. invaluable information was denied the Pa-
cific: Fleet Commander by the direct order of  President
Roosevelt,

If such an order was issued to the Navy, asimikar one must

lave been given to the Army. Such an order to only one of

the military services would have been completely ineffective,
And the cevidence savs that General Marshiadl wis given a
similar order. From cariy August to Decamber 7. General

Short received no more of the vital information known in
Washington than did Admi al Kimmel.

There are only two possidle explanations of the whlesale
withholding of this information from the IHawaiian Com-
manders—either it was don ' by order of the Presidert or it
wis the result of a decision jointly reached by General Mar-
shall and Admiral Stark. The professional education, ex-
perience, and reputation of he two officers makes it unthink-
able that cither could reach such 4 decision on his ow 1 initi-
alive, or agree o it unless h: had no option in the mat or.

Once again, we are face (9 face with the same fact- orders
from President Roosevelt provented practically all of the vital
information concerning the developing  Japanese  situation
from heing transmitted to th s Hawaiian Commanders.

And there are two other neidents which strongly s ipport
that deduction.

When the Washington ndgotiations were, in cffect, termi-
nated by the American note of November 26, it was necos-
sary that some word he st to the outlying comrands.
Failure to do this would ha ¢ been too challenging a fact to
the future reader of the histcry of these events. The President
himsell directed that this be done. Seeretary Stimson ¢ npha-
sized that fact before the Aray Pearl Tarbor Board to ¢ <plain
his unnatural participation it the drafting of the War Lepart-
ment dispatch.

Normdly, the preparation and sending of such a m ssage
would be a routine matter, entirely within the provinee of
the military authorities, whic 1 would not receive even passing
attention from cither the Prsident or the Sceretary of War
The fact that the President onsidered it necessary to dircet
the Army and Navy to send the so-called war-warning mes-
suges of November 27 (see Chapter 8) is positive procf that
he not only knew that vital i formation was being deniid the
Hawaijan Commanders, but that he expected that derial to
continue unless he ordered o herwise.

The above incident e phasized  President  Roos welt's
actions on the evening of Jecember 6, 1941, About 9:30
par when he saw the 13 parts of the Japanese messa e re-
ceived on that Saturday, he said to Mr. [larry Iopkins, “This
means war.” Later that sam 2 night, according to reasc nably
conclusive evidence, the President talked to Admiral stark,
after the Jatter had returnec from the theatre. And y +t, no
message was sent to the Hawaiian Commanders on that night
or during the next forenoon. The message, sent about neon on
Sunday, was on General Mushall's initiative, and arrived too
Lute as we shall see.

Why after the interest he had taken in the sending of a
message on November 26, dil President Roosevelt do ne thing
on the night of December € to assure that Admiral Kimmel
and General Short were intc rmed of the receipt of the mes-
sige which "meant war™ Tle only possible conclusion again
is because he did not want th ose Commanders to be infc rmed
that the war was only hours away.

2 As it was the Admiral’s military decisions that were undcr fire,
the orders from “higher authority” which he received must have
been militury: orders, and the President, as Commander-in Chief
ab the Armed Forces, is the o ly civilian government officic | that
van legally issue such orders 9 the Chiet of Naval Oper tions.
This is so breause the Seerctary of the Navy, by law, cannot e ercise
military  command. Couscquen by, Scerctury Knox did not lave
the tawtul anthority to order Ad niral Stark (o withhold infon 1ation
from Admiral Kimmel, which ¢ midd have affected that Fleet Com-
munder’s military  decisions, nor to alter the composition of the
flects or their dispositions, in ar dcipation of the outlbrcul\' of 1ostil-
itics. All such orders, which Acmiral Stark received from “Ligher
authority™ during those days, nust therefore have come to him
direet from President Roosevel |

On the other hand. the Scere ary of the Navy excercises coriplete
anthority over the naval establishment in matters of administ -ation
and routine proceduore. Iy sueh natters, the Chief of Naval Cpera-
tions is fully subjeet to the orde s of the Sceretary.
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-  PART I

Clapten 5

MAGIC

The Japanese Purple Code

1E Japanese high-security communication systems were all
Tenciphered codes. The Purple Code differed from the others
in that it employed a machine to accomplish its enciphering
and deciphering,.

Washington broke this Purple Code so completely that not
only was the code recovered and the cipher recognized as ma-
chine controlled, but the mechanics of the machine were also
fully diagnosed. As a consequence, a number of Purple cipher
machines were fabricated for use by American and British de-
crypting units.

In the use of an enciphered code, it is the universal practice
to change the cipher periodically, usually once every twenty-
four hours. A cipher schedule is communicated to the stations
using the code, well in advance of the date upon which that
schedule becomes effective. In the Purple machine, the key to
each cipher was the setup of its internal mechanisms. The
promptness with which the Japanese dispatches were decoded
during the fall of 1941 clearly indicates that the American and
*British decrypting units were intercepting the transmissions
of the cipher schedules.

Magic and lts Washington Distribution

The breaking of the Japanese diplomatic codes was a de-
crypting achievement of a high order. In recognition of that
fact, the information obtained from the decoded Japanesc
dispatches was termed “Magic,” and was so designated among
its Washington recipients throughout 1941.

During the latter half of that year, the War and Navy De-
partments had identical organizations for the processing of
Magic, and to avoid duplication of effort, the intercepted Japa-
nese traffic was divided between the two Departments on a
twenty-four hour basis. The Navy unit decoded and translated
messages received on the odd-numbered days of the month,
and the Army did the same for those received on the cven-
numbered days.

In the Navy Department, the task of decrypting and de-
coding was performed by the Communications Intelligence
Unit, a subdivision of the Communications Sccurity Division
of the Office of Naval Communications. The short designation
of the Security Division was OP-20-G, and that of the Intelli-
gence Unit was OP-20-GY. The translation unit which com-
pleted the processing of the decoded traflic was designated
Or-20-GZ.

The officer in charge of OP-20-GZ in late 1941 was Lieu-

. tenant Commander Kramer, whose duality of tasks in the
- handling of Magic made him subject to the orders of two
superiors. In the work of translation, he was under the Head
of Communications Security Division. When messages were
ready for distribution, he made the deliveries under the direc-

w Lion of the Dircctor of Naval Intelligence.

In the War Department, the decoding and translation were
accomplished by the Signal Intelligence Service, under the

U. S. NEWS & WORLD REPORT, April
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Magic Was for Washington and Manila
But Not for Hawaii

control of the Signal Corps. Each processed message was de-
livered to the Far Eastern Section of the Military Intelligence
Division, whose Chief, Colonel Bratton, made the deliveries
for the War Department.

There were seven recipients of Magic on the Navy De-
partment Distribution list, and six on that of the War Depart-
ment. Fourteen finished copies of each message were pre-
pared, and OP-20-GZ and the Signal Intelligence Service cach
supplicd the other with seven copies of every message which
it processed. The recipients were:

War Department
Distribution
Secrotary IIull
Secretary Stimson
General Marshall
Brig. General Gerow
Brig. General Miles
Colonel Bratton

Navy Department
Distribution

President Roosevelt
Secretary Knox
Admiral Stark
Rear Admiral Noyes
Rear Admiral Turner
Captain Wilkinson
Commander McCollum

The War and Navy Departments employed identical meth-
ods to safeguard the deliveries of Magic. The messages were
carried in locked pouches, to which only the recipient and the
officer who made the deliverics had keys. One locked pouch
was delivered to cach recipient or his authorized representa-
tive. The usual practice was to leave the pouch on ofie delivery
round, and to pick it up with its contained messages for return
on the next. One copy of each message was filed, and all other
copies were destroyed as quickly as possible. With only six re-
cipients on its distribution list, the War Department could
file a copy of every message at the moment of its receipt.

Colonel Bratton and Commander Kramer usually followed
the same practice for the night distribution of important mes-
sages. The procedure was to deliver the locked pouch to the
recipient at his home or wherever he might direct. Colonel
Bratton, however, at times varied this procedure by deliver-
ing the pouches to officers on night duty in the respective
offices of the several recipients, with the caution that the
messages called for prompt delivery.

All the Japanese diplomatic and consular posts could receive
high-frequency radio, but none was equipped to transmit.
Consequently, most of the outgoing Tokyo diplomatic traffic
was sent by radio, although the cables were also occasionally
used. On the other hand, the messages to Tokyo had to be
transmitted by commercial cable or radio, except in the rare
instances when use was made of the trans-Pacific telephone.

During the latter half of 1941, the Japanese diplomatic
traffic increased greatly. Fortunately, the Tokyo-Washington
and the Tokyo-Berlin circuits covered the developing diplo-
matic situation very thoroughly, and the U.S. intelligence
services concentrated on those circuits during that time, with
such attention to other Japanese traffic as these priority re-
strictions made possible. The first of these two circuits cov-
ered the U. S-Japanese negotiations and relations, while the
second one gave information of the exchanges between Japan
and her future Tripartite Treaty allies, Germany and Italy.

Distribution of the Japanese Purple Machines

When the Purple machines became available in Washing-
ton, at least one was shipped to London. Two machines were
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retained by the Communications Intelligence Unit in the
Navy Department, and two by the Signal Intellivence Service
in the War Department. This permitted cach of the Washing-
ton decrypting units to have one machine alwavs set for the
cipher of the current twentv-four hours, with the other at
hand for use on the traffic of the preceding and other carlier
such periods.

In April. 1941, the last machine available in the Navy De-
partment was shipped to the Commandant of the Sixteenth
Naval District in the Philippines: additional personnel, re-
quired to fill out a complete deerypting unit, accompanied the
machine. The organization was established in the caves on
Corregidor Tsland. The information contained in the outgoing
Tokyo diplomatic messages was thus assured to the Command-
er-in-Chicf of the Asiatic Fleet and the Commanding Gen-
eral of the U.S. Army Forees in the Philippines. There was no
Purple machine for Hawaii.

Several thoughts immediately come to mind. First. when
orders for the manufacture of these machines were placed in
Washington. wliy did thev not provide for two or three
spares? 1f the thought of the spares had been overlooked, the
later fabrication of an additional machine canld not have been
too lengthy a job. In any event, why not take cire ol Ameri-
can needs, including Hawaii, before giving any of these Purple
machines to the British. who were not our wllies at the time?
There is one assurcd lact: these self-evident solutions to the
problem of providing one or more Purple machines for the
Hawaiian Communders are too obvious to have been over-
looked when the decisions regarding the allecation of the m-
chines were being made.

The distribution of Purple machines which was made meant
that the Hawaiian Intelligence Units wonld never be able to
decode any of the intercepted Jupanese diplomatic traffic.
The naval wnit at Pearl Harbor conld only continue to con-
centrate its efforts solely upon deductions that could be made
from such features of Japanese naval radio tradlic as ship's calls,
volume of messages. and direction finder bearings of ideutified
transmitting unils.

The  Joint Congressional Committee was told that  the
Manila arca was chosen as the location of the last Purple ma-
chine available in the Navy Department because the Philip-
pine stations were the most cflicient in the Pacific in the re-
ceiving of Japanese radio messages. That wis a fact as far as
the Tokyo-Berlin cirenit was concerned, but the explusation
was a decidedly lame one. The Hawaiian reeeption of Tapa-
nese radio traflic was also cminently satistactory, and the
presence of the main U, S, Naval Forees in that area made it
highly desirable militarily that the Magic, known to Wash-
ington and the Asintic Commuands, should also be awvailable to
the Hawaiian Commanders.

As we have seen, it would certainly hiave been possible to
supply a Purple machine to Pearl Harbor by July at the Luest,
and to correcet any existing deerypting deficicncies in the
Radio Intelligence Unit at that Buase by thut time. Intereep-
tion of the Japanese messages and their deeryption in Hawaii
would have been the complete answer to the reasons later
given on the witness stund to explain why Magic was denied
to Admiral Kimmel and General Short,

The two principal explimations of that denial by Army and
Navy witnesses before the various investigations were: the
great volume ol the Jupanese secret trallic; the possibility
that the re-transmission of  Muagic from Washinglon  to
Hawaii might inform the Japanese that their codes had
been compromised, if they had similarly broken the Awmeri-
can codes.

When the decision to locate the last Purple machine in the
Philippines was reached, thought must have been given to the
desirability, from a purely military standpoint, of muking
Magic available on the spot in Hawaii. The failure to accom-
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plish this must therefore ha e been a deliberate act, a1d not
an oversight, There was ccrtainly no military conside ration
that would support a decisic n not to do so. The only possible
conclusion is therefore that he failure to do so was pat of a
definite plan, which envisage d the denial of Magic to the Ha-
waiian Commanders and th s assurance that this inforination
would be available to the S siatic Commanders.

The Complete Denial o0 Magic to Hawaii
After Mid-August, 1941

Admiral Kimmel told the Joint Congressional Com nittee
that. during Julv, 1941, he received the meanings of seven
decoded Japanese dispatches, hut that, after carly August,
the Navy Department sent him no word which adeqaately
portraved the growing tenrion between the United States
and Japan, or suggested the possibility of Jupanese action in
the Hawailan wrea in event f war. The timing of this :ilence
Is most significant. The diphmatic-economic encirclem >nt of
Japan had then been in eflee: less than three weeks, President
Roovsevelt returned from his Newtoundland conferenec with
Mr. Churchill in the middle »f August. Japan was soon to be
forced by the United States o choose between war or s arren-
der to the encirelement,

Despite the fuct that Adiiiral Kimmel received the infor-
mation from secret Japane. e communications during July,
1941, the control of the diss mination of military intell genee
from intereepted Japanese 1iessages had been greatly tight-
ened by both the War and Navy Departments durirg the
carly spring of that vear.

This change in the Wa  Department came into effect
throngh the enunciation of a poliey by General Marsha 1 that
the knowledge of the U.S. bility to decode the intercepted
Jupanese traflic was to be rertricted to the least possible num-
ber of persons, ad that no distribution of informatior from
that source should be made outside Washington. If, <t any
time, the Director of War Plins considered that dissemiation
of such intelligence was nee ssary, he would prepare tie re-
quired dispateh for General Marshall's action, Cognizance of
this dissemination was thus restricted to the Army Clief of
Stafl and the Director of Wer Plans.

Parallel action in the Navy Department was the result of
a conference between Adminl Stark, Rear Admirals Ingersoll
and Turuer and Captain Kirl, Director of Naval Intelliience,
in Aprile 1941 Adiniral Star : then decided that the Dicector
ol War Plans would theneeforth be charged with the respon-
sibility for the dissemination of all information that im olved
the evaluation of Japauese iatentions or that could infl zence
the operations of the outlvit g commands. This decisio 1 was
communicated to all the priacipal Assistants of the Clief of
Naval Operations.

The elimination of one of tae long-standing functions Hf the
two Intelligence organization s in Washington, the dissc mina-
tion of cvaluated intelligene:, was a unique happening .

I Ceneral Marshadl and Admiial Stark were orderid, in
mid-August, to stop the travsmission of Magic to Haw i, as
Admiral Kimmel's testimony so strongly suggests, onl © two
additional officers had to e informed—Brigadier G neral
Cerow and Rear Admiral Trner.

The deliberale character of this denial is emphasized by
the efforts which Admiral Kinmel made during the first half
of 1941 1o assure that the Novy Department would kee > him
fully informed on all matters that could aflect the Fleet. Dur-
ing that time, he wrote two letters to Admiral Stark n the
subject; one was dated Febraary 18 and the other, Mey 26.
‘The last paragraph of the sccond letter read: “It is sugs ested
that it be made a cardinal p inciple that the Commanc er-in-
Chict, Pacific Fleet, be imme liately informed of all imp retant
developments as they occur and by the quickest avrilable
means.
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Admiral Kimmel handed this letter to Admiral Stark per-
sonally during June, 1941, and was assured that the informa-
tion to his command would be handled as he requested. This
assurance was effcctive for less than two months.

The almost complete denial of information, during the
three months preceding the Pearl Harbor attack, will be made
very clear in the following chapters, which contain the most
significant Japanese messages. Only one of the many messages
which are not included herein was ever sent to Admiral Kim-
mel. In early December, a Japanesc message from Bangkok
to Tokyo concerning an intended Japanese landing at Khotu
Baru in the Kra Peninsula was addressed to him for informa-
tion.

This wholesale denial of information to Hawaii was con-
trary to the accepted tenets of the art of war. It is incompre-
hensible unless we accept that President Roosevelt wanted
the Japanese surprise attack upon Pearl Harbor.

Chapten &

TOKYO’S INTEREST

IN THE EXACT LOCATION
OF U. S. VESSELS

IN PEARL HARBOR

HROUGHOUT the first nine months of 1941, the Japanese

Consulate in Honolulu, following the common practice of
all such posts in American ports, had becn reporting to Tokyo
the movements of all U.S. naval units in the Hawaiian area.
The interception of these routine reports had no significant
value for U. S. Intelligence units. But Tokyo dispatch #83 of
September 24, 1941, which is recorded below, completely
changed the character of the Hawaiian Consulate reports, and
removed them from the routine category. This message and
the others which followed it on the Tokyo-Honolulu circuit
held invaluable implications for the U.S. Army and Navy
Intelligence Services.

As we are only interested in the information that was
available to the Washington authorities before the Pearl Har-
bor attack, the sequence of messages which follows contains
only those which were decoded before that event.

When the War and Navy Departments Intelligence Divi-
sions were weighing the implications of Tokyo’s September
24 dispatch to the Honolulu Consulate, and more especially
when they were reaching the only possible conclusions from
that message, their minds must incvitably have reverted to a
dispatch which had been received in Washington, eight
months beforc. For that reason, that earlicr communication
is the logical introduction to the Tokyo-Honolulu traffic, which
immediately follows it herein.

Ambassador Grew, Tokyo, to State Department, January
27, 1941: “IIIE PERUVIAN MINISTER 11AS INFORMED A MEMBER
OF MY STA¥F TIHAT IIE JIAS HEARD FROM MANY SOURCES, IN-
CLUDING A JAPANESE SOURCE, TIHAT IN THE EVENT OF TROUBLE
BREAKING OUT BETWEEN TIIE UNITED STATES AND JAPAN, TIIE
JAPANESE INTENDED TO MAKE A SURPRISE ATTACK AGAINST
PEARL HARBOR WITH ALL THEIR STRENCTII AND EMPLOYING
ALL THEIR EQUIPMENT. TIIE PERUVIAN MINISTER CONSIDERS
THE RUMORS FANTASTIC. NEVERTHELESS, HE CONSIDERED THEM
OF SUFFICIENT IMPORTANCE TO CONVEY THE INFORMATION TO
A MEMBER OF MY STAFF.”

U. S. NEWS & WORLD REPORT, April

Tokyo to Consul General, Honolulu, September 24, 1941
(#83): “HENCEFORTII, WE WOULD LIKE TO IIAVE YOU MAKE
REPORTS CONCERNING VESSELS ALONG TIIE FOLLOWING LINES
IN SO FAR AS POSSIBLE:

“l. THE WATERS OF PEARL HARBOR ARE TO BE DIVIDED
ROUGIILY INTO FIVE SUB-AREAS, WE HAVE NO OBJECTION TO
YOUR ABBREVIATING AS MUCH AS YOU LIKE.

“AREA A. WATERS BETWEEN FORD ISLAND AND THE
ARSENAL,

“AREA B. WATERS ADJACENT TO THE ISLAND SOUTII AND
WEST OF FORD ISLAND. TIIIS AREA IS ON TIIE OPPOSITE SIDE OF
THE ISLAND FROM AREA A.

“AREA C. EAST LOCH.

“AREA D. MIDDLE LOCII.

“AREA E. WEST LOCH AND THE COMMUNICATING WATER
ROUTES.

“2, WITH REGARD TO WARSHIPS AND AIRCRAFT CARRIERS
WE WOULD LIKE TO IIAVE YOU REPORT ON THOSE AT ANCHOR,
(THESE ARE NOT SO IMPORTANT) TIED UP AT WHARVES,
BUOYS, AND IN DOCK. DESIGNATE TYPES AND CLASSES BRIEF-
LY. IF POSSIBLE, WE WOULD LIKE TO HAVE YOU MAKE MEN-
TION OF TIIE FACT WIEN THERE ARE TWO OR MORE VESSELS
ALONGSIDE THE SAME WHARF.”

(Decoded in the War Department, October 9, 1941)

Consul General, Honolulu to Tokyo, September 29, 1941
(#178): This message -was in answer to Tokyo dispatch
#88, and set up a two-letter code designation for each of
the five prescribed Pearl Harbor areas.

(Decoded in the Navy Department, October 10, 1941)

Tokyo to Consul General, Honolulu, November 15, 1941
(#111): “AS RELATIONS BETWEEN JAPAN AND THE UNITED
STATES ARE MOST CRITICAL, MAKE YOUR ‘SHIP IN HARBOR
REPORT IRREGULAR, BUT AT A RATE OF TWICE A WEEK, AL-
TIIOUGH YOU ALREADY ARE NO DOUBT AWARE, PLEASE TAKE
EXTRA CARE TO MAINTAIN SECRECY.”

(Decoded in the Navy Department, December 3, 1941)

Consul General, Honolulu to Tokyo, November 18, 1941
(#222): This was a lengthy report of U.S. vesscls in the
different Pearl Harbor areas.

(Dccoded in the War Department, December 6, 1941)

Tokyo to Consul General, Honolulu, November 18, 1941
(#113): “PLEASE REPORT ON TIE FOLLOWING AREAS AS TO
VESSELS ANCHORED TIIEREIN: AREA ‘N,) PEARL HARBOR, MA-
MALA BAY (HONOLULU) AND THE AREAS ADJACENT THERETO.
MAKE YOUR INVESTIGATIONS WITH GREAT SECRECY.”
(Decoded in the War Department, December 5, 1941)

Tokyo to Consul General, Honolulu, November 20, 1941
(#111):* “PLEASE INVESTIGATE COMPREHENSIVELY THE
TFLEET . . . BASES IN THE NEIGHBORHOOD OF TIE HAWAIIAN
MILITARY RESERVATION.”

(Decoded in the War Department, December 4, 1941)

Tokyo to Consul General, Honolulu, November 29, 1941
(#122): “WE JIAVE BEEN RECEIVING REPORTS FROM YOU ON
SHIP MOVEMENTS, BUT IN THE FUTURE WILL YOU ALSO RE-
PORT EVEN WIIEN THERE ARE NO MOVEMENTS.”

(Decoded in the Navy Department, December 5, 1941)

There is nothing more significant connected with the
Japanese surprise attack than the foregoing decoded dis-
patches on the Tokyo-Honolulu circuit. They gave unmis-

* Note: Tokyo dispatches of both November 15 and 20 carried the
same scrial number.

v
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takable evidence of the Japanese intentions to deliver such
an attack upon the U.S. Flect in Pearl Elarbor.

Before Scptember 24, the routine Honolulu ship move-
ment reports merely served to keep Tokyo informed of the
strength and composition of the U. S. Naval Forces in Ia-
waiian waters.

After that date. the Honolulu Consulate was making {re-
quent reports giving the exact location of carriers. battleships,
and cruisers in Pearl Harbor, and all naval movements in
and out of that base. Why did Tokyo want information of
this particular character? There was ouly one conceivable
answer- to prepare the detailed plan for a surprise attack on
the major units of the Fleet moored there, And the land-
locked character of Pearl Thurbor made only one form of
attuck possible it must be delivered  from the air.

After studying Tokvo dispatch #83, no military intelli-
genee organization could fail to reach that deduction. No
amount of thought can evolve any other rational purpose
behind Tokyo's desive for continuing information, detailing
the berthings in Pearl Harbor,

In this connection. it must be appreciated that, when a
flect moves into an area, a permanent berthing plan is pre-
pared for cach of the main bases in that area. Each vessel
thus has a regnlurly assigned berth, whiclt is vacant when-
ever she is absent. The only time that a ship in Pearl Harbor
did not occupy her own berth was when she was in drydock
or at a wharf at the Navy Yard., Conscquently, the first
Houoluhu report of ship locations in Pearl Elarbor gave Taokvo
the permanent berthing plan—a fact which suceceeding re-
ports cuickly confirmed,

Throughont November, Tokyo's interest in Peard Harbor
not only continued, it definitely intensified. On the [ 5th,
Honolulu was told to step np the frequeney of its “Ship in
Iarbor reports” o two a week. On the 29th, the dispatch told
that Tokvo had been recviving a series of ship movement
reports from Honolulu, but directed that thencetorth reports
be made even when there were no movements, Secrecy is
stressed in severn] of the messages. November 29 was the
“deadline date.” so Trequently mentioned in the Japanese
dispatches in the neat chapter, where its significance s dis-
cussed.

These highly importaut November dispatches were not de-
coded in Washington until December 4 and 5. Nevertheless,
that still wave plenty of time to relay the significant revela-
tions of this Il set of Tokvo-Honolulu dispatches to the
[Lawaiian Commanders.

Not the slightest hint of all this was given to Admiral Kim-
mel or General Short, Why was such irrelutable evidence of
the coming attack so withheld? Why did Washington con-
tribute so completely to the surprise featwre of that attack?
There can be only one answer—because President Roosevelt
wanted it that wayl!

Clapter 5

JAPANESE DIPLOMATIC
DISPATCHES DURING
NOVEMBER, 1941

ne intercepted  Japanese traffic, especially that on the
Tokyo-Washington circuit, was particularly heavy during
November, 1941, The Kurusu-Nomura negotiations were in
large meusure responsible for this, although other aspeets of

the developing Pacific crisis so played their part. Fort mate-
Iy. only a rcasonably smcll percentage of the Jajancse
intereepts was really significant, and thus necessary to a full
understanding of the final “mppenings on the road tc war,
The dispatches which follow indicate the mounting tenseness
of Tokva’s attitude towind tie Washington negotiations, and
the obvious certainty with which the Japanese movd to-
ward their seeret attack after the receipt of the U. S. note
of November 26.

On November 3. 1941, zanbassador Grew in Toky) sent
a seven-parl message to o he State Department. ( ertain
passages of that message form anideal introduction o this
chapter, and are quoted herewith:

“SICHT NICHI (TOKYO'S LE. DING NEWSPAPER) OF NOV IMBER
18T CARRIED A BANNER HEADLINE ‘EMPIRE FACING GREATEST
CRISIS OVER AN ARTICLE O.1 NEED FOR PUTTING A STOP TO
FCONOMIC WAR BETWEEN U ITED STATES AND JAPAN. ATICLE
AND EDITORIAL (TELEGRAPT ED TO WASHINGTON ON NOVEM-

THYS

CTHE VIEW THAT WAR IN THE FARL EAST CAN BE A 'OIDED
BY CONTINUATION OF TRADE EMBARGO . . . IS NOT SUPIORTED
BY WHAT I1AS OCCURRED,;

“JAPAN WILL EVEN RIS NATIONAI, HART KARI FATHER
THAN CEDE TO FOREIGN PIESSURE;

“IHE PRIMARY POINT FOI DECISION WOULD APPEAR TO IN-
VOLVE THE QUESTION AS TO WIHFTHER OUR NATIONAL NEEDS,
POLICIES, AND OBJECTIVES }ISTIFY WAR WITH JAPAN N THE
EVENT THAT DIPLOAMACY SHOULD FAIL;

“MY PURPOSE IS ONLY 7D ASSURL AGAINST MY CCUNTRY
CETTING INTO WAR WITIT JAPAN TIIROUGH ANY POSSIBLE
MISCONCEPTION OF THE CA?ACITY OF JAPAN TO RUSI IEAD-
LONG INTO A SUICIDAL CON *LICT WITI THE UNITED § ‘ATES.”

Tokyo to Embassy, Washington, November 5, 1941
(#736); “BECAUSE OF VAR OUS CIRCUMSTANCES, IT If ABSO-
LUTELY NECESSARY THAT A .1. ARRANCEMENTS FOR TH 7 SIGN-
ING OF THIS AGREEMENT ..F COMPLETED BY THE 2iTH OF
THIS MONTH. I REALIZE T IAT THIS IS A DIFFICULT ORDER,
BUT UNDER TIIE CIRCUMSTANCES IT 1S AN UNAVOIDABIE ONE.
PLEASE UNDERSTAND THIS TIIOROUCGIILY AND TACKLFE THE
PROBLEM OF SAVING THE JAPANESE-UNITED STATES RELA-
TIONS FHOM FALLING INT) A ¢HAOTIC CONDITION. DO SO
WITH GREAT DETERMINATICN AND WITH UNSTINTED IFFORT,
I BEG You.”

(Decoded in the Navy Department, November 5, 1341)

Tokyo to Embassy, W ashington, Nocvember 11. 1941
(#762); “JUDGING FROM THE PROGHESS OF TIHE COIVERSA-
TIONS, THERE SEEM TO Bl INDICATIONS THAT THE UNITED
STATES IS STILL NOT FULLY AWARE OF THE EXCEEDINCG CRITI-
CAINESS OF TIIE SITUATIO . THE FACT REMAINS THAT THE
DATE SET FORLH IN MY MESsaGE #7306 IS ABSOLUTILY IM-
MOVABLE UNDER PRESENT CONDITIONS. IT IS A DIFINITE
DEADLINE AND THEREFORE IT IS ESSENTIAL THAT A SETTLE-
MENT BE REACIHED DY ANDOUT THAT TIME, THE SES{ION OF
PARLIAMENT OPENS ON TIE l3ro. . . . THE GOVEI NMENT
MUST HAVE A CLEAR PICT JHE OF THINGS TO COME N PRE-
SENTING TS CASE AT THE : ESSION. YOU CAN SEE, THE EFORE,
THAT THE SITUATION IS N JARING A CLIMAX, AND TEE TIME
IS INDEED GETTING SHONT. "

(Decoded in the Navy 1 epartmeat, November 12 1941)

Tokyo to Consul Genera , Hong Kong, Nocember 1L, 1941:
“CHOUL.D THE (WASHINGTC X) NECOTIATIONS COLLAP E, THE
INFERNATIONAL  SITCATION 1IN WHICH TIHE EMPIRI WILL
FIND HERSELT WILI. BE OME OF TREMENDOUS CRISIS, ACCOM-
PANYING THIS, THE EMP RE'S FOREIGN POLICY AS IT LIAS
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BEEN DECIDED BY THE CABINET, INSOFAR AS IT PERTAINS
TO CHINA IS:

“(s) WE WILL COMPLETELY DESTROY BRITISH AND AMERI-

s CAN POWER IN CHINA.

“(B) WE WILL TAKE OVER ALL ENEMY CONCESSIONS AND
ENEMY IMPORTANT RIGHTS AND INTERESTS (CUSTOMS AND
MINERALS, ETC.) IN CHINA.

“(c) WE WILL TAKE OVER ALL RIGHTS AND INTERESTS
OWNED BY ENEMY POWERS, EVEN THOUGH THEY MIGIT
HAVE CONNECTIONS WITH THE NEW CHINESE GOVERNMENT,
SHOULD IT BECOME NECESSARY.”

(Decoded in the Navy Department, November 26, 1941)

Tokyo to Embassy, Washington, November 15, 1941
(#775): “. . . WHATEVER THE CASE MAY BE, THE FACT RE-
MAINS THAT THE DATE SET IN MY MESSAGE #736 1s AN
ABSOLUTELY IMMOVABLE ONE, PLEASE, TIEREFORE, MAKE
THE UNITED STATES SEE THE LIGIIT, SO AS TO MAKE POSSIBLE
THE SIGNING OF TIHE AGREXMENT BY THAT DATE.”
(Decoded in the Navy Department, November 15, 1941)

Tokyo to Kurusu, Washington, November 16, 1941: “ror
YOUR HONOR'S INFORMATION,

“l. 1 HAVE READ YOUR #1090 AND YOU MAY BE SURE THAT
YOU HAVE ALL MY GRATITUDE FOR TIIE EFFORTS YOU IIAVE
PUT FORTI, BUT THE FATE OF OUR EMPIRY, ITANGS BY A SLEN-
DER TIIREAD OF A FEW DAYS, SO PLEASE FIGIIT IIARDER TIIAN
YOU EVER DID BEFORE.

“9. . . . IN OUR OPINION WE OUGHT TO WAIT AND SEE
WIIAT TURN TIIE WAR TAKES AND REMAIN PATIENT, HOWEVER,
1 AM AWFULLY SORRY TO SAY TITAT THE SITUATION RENDERS
THIS OUT OF THE QUESTION, I SET TIIE DEADLINE FOR TIIE SO-
LUTION OF THESE NEGOTIATIONS IN MY # 736 AND THERE WILL
BE NO CHANGE. PLEASE TRY TO UNDERSTAND THAT. YOU SEE
HOW SHORT THE TIME IS; THEREFORE, DO NOT ALLOW THE
UNITED STATES TO SIDETRACK US AND DELAY THE NEGOTIA-
TIONS ANY FURTIIER. PRESS THEM FOR A SOLUTION ON THE
BASIS OF OUR PROPOSALS AND DO YOUR BEST TO BRING
ABOUT AN IMMEDIATE SOLUTION,”

(Decoded in the Navy Department, November 17, 1941)

Tokyo to Embassy, Washington, November 22, 1941
(#812): “rr 18 AWFULLY HARD FOR US TO CONSIDER CIIANGING
THE DATE WE SET IN MY #736. YOU KNOW THIS, HOWEVER, I
KNOW YOU ARE WORKING HARD. STICK TO OUR FIXED POLICY
AND DO YOUR BEST. SPARE NO EFFORTS AND TRY TO BRING
ABOUT THE SOLUTION WE DESIRE. THIERF, ARE REASONS BEYOND
YOUR ABILITY TO GUESS WIIY WE WANTED TO SETTLE THiI JAPA-
NESE-AMERICAN RELATIONS BY THE 25TH, BUT IF WITHIN
THE NEXT THREE OR FOUR DAYS YOU CAN TINISII YOUR CON-
VERSATIONS WITH TIIE AMERICANS, IF TIIE SIGNING CAN BE
COMPLETED BY TIHE 29T, LET ME WRITLE IT OUT FOR YOU—
TWENTY-NINTII; IF THE PERTINENT NOTES CAN BE EXCIIANGED;
IF WE CAN GET AN UNDERSTANDING WITII GREAT BRITAIN AND
THE NETHERLANDS; AND IN SHORT, IF EVERYTHING CAN BE FIN-
ISHED, WE HAVE DECIDED TO WAIT UNTIL THAT DATE, THIS
TIME WE MEAN IT, THAT THE DEADLINE ABSOLUTELY CANNOT
BE CHANGED. AFTER TIIAT, THINGS ARE AUTOMATICALLY
GOING TO HAPPEN, PLEASE TAKE TIIIS INTO YOUR CAREFUL
CONSIDERATION AND WORK HARDER TIAN YOU EVER HAVE BE-
FORE. TIIS, FOR THE PRESENT, IS FOR THE INFORMATION OF
YOU TWO AMBASSADORS ALONE.”

(Decoded in the Navy Department, November 22, 1941)

Tokyo io Embassy, Washington, November 24, 1941
(#823): “THE TIME SET IN MY MESSAGE #812 1S IN TOKYO
TIME.”

(Decoded in the Navy Department, November 24, 1941)

Embassy, Washington to Tokyo, November 26, 1941
(#1180): “. . . OUR FAILURE AND HUMILIATION ARE COM-
PLETE . . . WE MIGHT PROPOSE, FIRST, THAT PRESIDENT
ROOSEVELT WIRE YOU (the Emperor) THAT FOR THE SAKE OF
POSTERITY HE HOPES THAT JAPAN AND THE UNITED STATES
WILL COOPERATE FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF PEACE IN THE
PACIFIC. . . .

(Decoded in the Navy Department, November 28, 1941)

Embassy, Washington to Tokyo, November 26, 1941
(#1189): “aAT 4:45 ON THE AFTERNOON OF THE 26TH, I AND
AMBASSADOR KURUSU MET WITII SECRETARY HULL AND WE
TALKED FOR TWO IIOURS.

“HULL SAID . . . T AM SORRY TO TELL YOU THAT WE CANNOT
AGREE To IT {Japan’s treaty proposal of November 20). wg
FEEL COMPELLED TO PROPOSE A PLAN . . . RECONCILING TIIE
POINTS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN OUR PROPOSAL OF JUNE 21ST
AND YOURS OF SEPTEMBER 25T, S0 SAYING IIE PRESENTED US
THE FOLLOWING PROPOSALS:

“A. ONE WIIICH SEEKS OUR RECOGNITION OF HIS SO-CALLED
‘¥OUR PRINCIPLES.

“B. (1) TIIE CONCLUSION OF A MUTUAL NON-AGGRESSION
TREATY BETWEEN TOKYO, WASHINGTON, MOSCOW, THE NETI(ER-
LANDS, CHUNGKING, AND BANGKOK.

“(2) AGREEMENT BETWEEN JAPAN, THE UNITED STATES,
ENGLAND, TIIE NETHERLANDS, CHINA, TTIAI ON TIIE INVIOLA-
BILITY OF FRENCII INDO-CIIINA AND EQUALITY OF ECONOMIC
TREATMENT IN FRENCH INDO-CHINA.

“(3) TIE COMPLETE EVACUATION OF JAPANESE FORCES
FROM CHINA AND ALL FRENCH INDO-CIIINA.

“(4) JAPAN AND THE UNITED STATES BOTH DEFINITELY
PROMISE TO SUPPORT NO REGIME IN CHINA BUT THAT OF
CHIANG KAI-SHEK.

“(5) THE ABOLITION OF EXTRA-TERRITORIALITY AND CON-
CESSIONS IN CHINA.

“(6) THE CONCLUSION OF A RECIPROCAL TRADE TREATY
BETWEEN JAPAN AND TIE UNITED STATES ON THE BASIS OF
THE MOST FAVORED NATION TREATMENT.

“(7) THE MUTUAL RESCINDING OF JAPANESE AND AMERICAN
FREEZING ORDERS.

“(8) STABILIZATION OF YEN-DOLLAR EXCIANGE.

“(9) NO MATTER WHAT SORT OF TREATIES EITHER JAPAN
OR TIIE UNITED STATES HAS CONTRACTED WITH THIRD COUN-
TRIES, THEY BOTII DEFINITELY PROMISE THAT THESE TREATIES
WILL NOT BE INTERPRETED AS HOSTILE TO THE OBJECTIVES OF
THIS TREATY OR TO TIE MAINTENANCE OF PEACE IN THE
PACIFIC. (‘THIS IS, OF COURSE, SUPPOSED TO EMASCULATE THE
THREE-POWER PACT.)”

The last paragraph is omitted here. It contained nothing
but an account of the Ambassador’s arguments and the state-
ment that the Envoys were dumbfounded by the U.S. pro-
posals, a tact which can hardly be classed as news.
(Decoded in the War Department, November 28, 1941)

Tokyo to Embassy, Washington, November 28, 1941
(#844): “WELL, YOU TWO AMBASSADORS IIAVE EXERTED SUPER-
HUMAN EFFORTS, BUT, IN SPITE OF TIIIS, THE UNITED STATES
HAS GONE AMEAD AND PRESENTED THIS ITUMILIATING PROPOSAL.
THIS WAS QUITE UNEXPECTED AND EXTREMELY REGRETTABLE.
THE IMPERIAL GOVERNMENT CAN BY NO MEANS USE IT AS A
BASIS FOR NEGOTIATIONS. THEREFORE, WITH A REPORT OF TIIE
VIEWS OF TIIE IMPERIAL GOVERNMENT WHICIHI I WILL SEND
YOU IN TWO OR THREE DAYS, THE NEGOTIATIONS WILL BE DE
FACTO RUPTURED. THIS IS INEVITABLE. HOWEVER, 1 DO NOT
WISH YOU TO GIVE THE IMPRESSION THAT TIIE NEGOTIATIONS
ARE BROKEN OFF. MERELY SAY TO THEM TIAT YOU ARE
AWAITING INSTRUCTIONS, AND THAT, ALTHOUGIT TIIE OPINIONS
OF YOUR GOVERNMENT ARE NOT CLEAR TO YOU, TO YOUR WAY
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OF THINKING THE IMPERIAL GOVERNMENT HAS ALWAYS MADE
JUST CLAIMS AND HAS BORNE GREAT SACRIFICES FOR THE SAKE
OF PEACE IN THE PACIFIC . . . SINCE THINGS IIAVE COME TO
THIS PASS, 1 CONTACTED THE MAN YOU TOLD MrE 1O (the Em-
peror) 1N YOUR #1180 AND HE SAID THAT UNDER THE PRISENT
CIRCUMSTANCES WIIAT YOU SUCGEST 1S EBNTIRELY UNSULT-
ABLE. . . ."”

(Decoded in the Navyv Department, November 28, 1941)

Tokyo to LEmbassy. Washington, November 29, 1941
(F#F857): “. . . IN CARRYING OUT THESE INSTRUCTIONS. PLEASE
BE CAREFUL THAT THIS DOES NOT LEAD TO ANYTHING LIKE
A BREAKING OFF OF THII NEGOTINTIONS.

This sentence was at the end of o message directing further
conversation with the U.S. Government on the negotiations.
This was merely a part of the effort to keep alive the appear-
ance of continuing negotiations.

(Decoded in the Navy Departiment, November 30, 1941)

On November 27 and 30, 1941, extended  trans-Pacific
telephone  conversations took  place between  Ambassador
Kurusu and Mr. Yamamoto. Chiet of the American Division
of the Japanese Forcign Office. Significant passages of cach
of these exchanges were:

Yamamoto to Kurusu, November 27, 19:41: “REGARDING
THE NEGOTIATIONS, DON'T BREAK THEAM OFY,

(Translated in the Navy Departinent, November 28, 19:41)

Kurusu to Yamamoto, November 30, 19-411: “Ani: THE [APA-
NESE-AMERICAN NEGOTIATIONS TO CONTINUR?

Yamamoto: “ves.”

Kurusu: “yoU wWERE VERY | RGENT ABOUT THEM BLEI'ORE,
WEREN'T YOU; BUT NOW YOI WANT TO STHETCH THEM OUT.
WE WILL NEED YOUIL HELP. BOTH THE PREMIER AND THE
FOREIGN MINISTER WILL NEED TO CHANGE THE TONE OF THEIR
SPEECHES., DO YOU UNDERSTAND? PLEASE USE MORE DISCHE-
TION.”

(Translated in the Navy Department. November 30, 1941)

Tokyo to Embassy, Berling November 30, 19-41 (£9853):
Tustructs the Ambassador to inform Ilitler as follows: "t
CONVERSATION BEGUN BETWEEN TOKYO AND WASHINGTON LAST
APRIL . . ., NOW STANDS RUPTURED—BROKEN . . . SAY VERY
sECRETLY TO THEM (Iitler and Von Ribbentrop) toar Taene
15 EXTREME DANGER THAT WAR MAY SUDDENLY BREAK OUT
BETWEEN THE ANGLO-SAXON NATIONS AND JAPAN THROUGH
SOME CLASTI OF ARMS AND ADD THAT THE TIME OF THE BUEAK-
ING OUT OF WAR MAY COME QUICKER THAN ANYONE DREAMS.

These significant extracts were part of « long three-part
message.

(Decoded in the Navy Departinent, December 1, 1941)

Tokyo to Embassy. Berlin, November 30, 1941 (=986):
This message was the second long one of the same dav. and
was in two parts. It gave the Japanese version ot the nego-
tiations with the United States. It stated that ™y continta-
TION OF THFE NEGOTIATIONS WOULD BE DETRIMENTAL TO Ol R
cause,” and characterized certain of the Ancrican proposals
of November 26 as "INSULTING . . . CLEARLY A TRICK. Japan
concluded that the United States had decided to recard her
ds an enemy.

(Decoded in the Nuvy Departinent, Decanber 1, 1941)

,

Tokyo to Embassy, Washington, December 11941 1= 565):
“ITIE DATE SET IN MY MESSAGE FS12 1AS COME AND GONE
AND TIIE SITUATION CONTINUES TO BE INCREASINGLY CRITICAL.

“ ... TO PREVENT TIIE UNITED STATES FROM BECOMING UN-
DULY SUSPICIOUS WE HAVE BEEN ADVISING THE I'RESS AND OTH-
ERS THAT THOUGH THERE ARE SOME WIDE DIFFERE NCES

64

BETWEEN JAPAN AND THE UM ITED STATES, TIE NEGOTLs TIONS
ARE CONTINUING. (THE ANO'E IS FOR ONLY YOUR INFORMA-
TION.)”

(Dccoded in the Nuvy Dep. rtment, December 1, 1941)

Throughout the Washiuston negotiations, Tokve had
stressed a0 deadline date {o  their completion, after  vhich
“things were automatically giing to happen.” Certain pirases
in the intercepted dispatehes strongly indicated the inpor-
tance that the Japanese gov anment attached to the confer-
ence, and left no doubt tha: this was Japan’s last effnt to
reach an understanding witl the United States by peaceful
means, viz.: “Tackle the problem of saving the Jap: nese-
American relations from fa ling into a chaotic condition™:
“There secem to be indicat ons that the United Sta os is
not fully aware of the extrerae criticalness of the situation™;
“The tute of our Empire hiings by a slender thread of a
few dayvs.”

Automatic actions after th s breakdown of such vital nego-
tiations could only mean ac s of war, Morcover, the "“okyo
dispatch to the Consul Gene al in Hong Kong plainly  tated
that Japan had decided up m war with the United Sstates
and Great Britain il these negotiations failed.  That mes-
sage was decoded on November 26, the day that secre-
tary Hnoll handed the Japurese Ambassadors the American
note which so cffectively te minated the Washington nego-
tiations, as  President Rooszvelt clearly  intended that it
should.

Two davs later, any lingcring doubt that diplomac - had
completely [ailed was removed for the American Goverr ment
by the Tokvo dispatch whizh told the Japunese Am assa-
dors that "The Tmperial Government can by no incans
nse it [the American note} as a basis for further nczotia-
tions. Therelore, with a reprt of the views of the Imperial
Covernment  which T will send vou in two or three
dayvs, the negotiations will e de facto ruptured.” Although
this wus not needed, the awo Tokvo dispatches to Ber-
lin, translated on Decemb o 1, were further  supporting
evidence.

['rom November 28 on, Prasident Roosevelt and his "Vash-
ington advisers knew with certainty that war was at hand,
and that the Japanese reply o the American note woul 1 for-
madly initiate that war.

Therealter, Tukvo, by ropeatedly emphasizing th: im-
portance of maintaining the appearance of continuing nego-
tintions, strongly evidenced thuat surprise was essent al to
those “things which were « atomatically going to haj pen.”
(Sce President Roosevelt's stitement in Chapter 7.)

This accorded with the veell-known Japauese pract ce of
starting her wars with a su prise attack. In Chapter L we
saw that Washington had be m given every reason to d :duce
that Pearl Harbor would be die objective of that attacl .

Japan had onlv two sowd objectives in the Pacife for
such an attack—the Pacific Fleet and the Panama Canal.
And. for her strategic purpo es in the Western Pacific, dam-
ave to the Panama Canal icant nothing in comparisn to
the severe crippling of the Pacific Fleet. With that Fleet
basced on Pearl Harbor, it is 10t an overstatement to sa - that
Tapan's objectives in the Pozific had been reduced tc one.
President Roosevelt apparer tly had the strategic insi¢ht to
appreciate that fact when he insisted that the Fleet continue
to base in Hawaii.

Admiral Kimmel was alwa rs conscious that his Fleet night
be subjected to a surprise attack by the Japanese. His Fleet
orders showed that. But, hii big question had long leen—
when, If he and his senior Admirals, with whom hc con-
tinually discussed the situa ion, had been kept abre st of
the knowledge possessed by Washington and Manila, there
would have been no questions in their minds in the firs  days
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of December, That has always been the crux of the Pearl
Harbor story.

But there then would have been no surprise attack, and
there is no telling how or when the United States would have
become a participant in the war.

Not one word of the Japanese messages in Chapters 4 and
5 was ever transmitted to the Hawaiian Commanders.

apter 6

THE CODE DESTRUCTION
MESSAGES

TI-IE most drastic answer to strained international relations
is a declaration of war. The decisive action, short of war,
is a severance of diplomatic relations.

When diplomatic relations arc interrupted, the ambassa-
dors are recalled and the embassies are officially closed.
Nevertheless, many members of the embassy staffs remain in
residence and the diplomatic inviolability of the closed em-
bassies is fully respected. Furthermore, the consulates con-
tinue their normal functions during such times because, by
international usage, they are not part of the diplomatic or-
ganization. Secret matter in thc embassics and consulates is
therefore entirely safe from scizure or alien scrutiny during
periods of severed diplomatic relations.

The outbreak of war presents a very different picture. The
newly hostile embassies and consulates are immediately
seized, and their personnel is arrested for internment pend-
ing repatriation. When the imminence of war is recognized,
a nation therefore becomes greatly concerned for the security
of her sccret communications and her sceret correspondence,
and takes steps to assure that nothing of that nature will
fall into enemy hands when her diplomatic and consular posts
are scized.

Thus, when a nation orders her embassies and consulates
in particular countries to destroy their codes, ciphers, code
machines and files of secret correspondence, that action can
mean only one thing—the close approach of war with thosc
countries. A nation would ncver interrupt all possibility of
secret communication with her diplomatic and consular posts
in a country for any lesser reason.

In the pre-Pearl Harbor days. the Japanecse regarded their
Purple code as the one possessing the highest security. The
system employed a secret machine for enciphering and de-
ciphering. Only the more important of the Japanese posts
were equipped to usc that code--embassics, and such con-
sulates as those in Muanila, Singapore, and Batavia. Sccret
communications with other consulates were conducted in
codes of a lower order of security.

During the critical last days ol the peace, the Japanese
were naturally bent upon preserving the secreey of their war
intentions. This consideration divided the transmission of their
code-destruction orders into two categories; those that could
be sent in the Purple Code, and those which must be sent in
the less secure codes. For, during thosc timcs, the Japancse
apparently did not consider the possibility that their Purple
Code had been compromised.

To increase the sccurity of their code-destruction messages
to ministries and consulates not cquipped with the Purple
Code, Tokyo set up the special “Winds™ and “Hidden Word”
codes. For reasons made plain thercin, the whole Winds epi-
sode is reserved for discussion in Chapter 10. The Ilidden
Word Code was set up by the following message:
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Tokyo to Embassy, Washington, November 27, 1941 (Cir-
cular #2409. In 4 parts complete.): “HANDLE AS CHIEF OF
OFFICE ROUTING.

“WITH INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS BECOMING MORE
STRAINED, THE FOLLOWING EMERGENCY SYSTEM OF DIS-
PATCIIES, USING INGO DENPO (hidden words or misleading
language telegrams) IS PLACED IN EFFECT. PLEASE STUDY
THIS CAREFULLY,

“MAKE UP A TABLE WITH TIE LEFT COLUMN CONTAINING
TIIE CODE WORDS AND TIIE RIGIIT TIIE CORRESPONDING PLAIN
(DECODED) TEXT. PLEASE SEE THAT THERE IS NO MISTAKE IN
TRANSCRIBING 'T11IS.

PART 1

“EXAMPLE. A MESSAGE MEANING: JAPANESE AND U.S.S.R.
MILITARY FORCES IAVE CLASIED, WILL READ: TILJIKATA AND
KUBOTA CLERKS IIAVE BOTII BEEN ORDERED TO YOUR EMBASSY
oN 1571 (BEGIN SPELL) S T O P (END SPELL).

“IN ORDER TO DISTINGUISII THESE CABLES FROM OTIIERS,
THE ENGLISH WORD § T O P WILL' BE ADDED AT TIIE END AS
AN INDICATOR. THE JAPANESE WORD OWARI (END) WILL NOT
BE USED.”

PART 2 ’
Code Word Meaning
“IATAKEYAMA RELATIONS BETWEEN JAPAN AND . . + .
. . . HAVE BEEN SEVERED.

RELATIONS BETWLEN JAPAN AND....
. ARE NOT IN ACCORDANCE WITH
EXPECTATIONS.”

«
IIATTORI

PART 38
“HIJIKATA JAPAN'S AND . . . . . « « « o » + MILITARY
FORCES HAVE CLASTIED.
“KASHIWAGI WE ARE COMMENCING MILITARY ACTION
AGAINST . . + o o » o -
“KOYANAGI ENGLAND
“KUBOTA U.S.s.R.”
PART 4
“MINAMI U.8.A.7

(Deccoded in the Navy Department, December 2, 1941)

This message contained 53 code words and their meanings.
In the interest of brevity, most of these have been omitted.
Only the code words necessary to an understanding of the
example in Part 1 of the message and the “Hidden Word”
dispaich rcceived in Washington on December 7, 1941
(Chapter 8) are included.

Tokyo to Embassy, Washington, December 1, 1941 (Cir-
cular #2444); “rYlIE FOUR OFFICES IN LONDON, HONG KONG,
SINGAPORE AND MANILA IIAVE BEEN INSTRUCTED TO ABAN-
DON TIIE USE OFF CODE MACIIINES AND TO DISPOSE OF TIIEM.
TIE MACIINE IN BATAVIA IIAS BEEN RETURNED TO JAPAN,
REGARDLESS OF CONTENTS OF MY CIRCULAR #2447, TIIE U.s.
(EMBASSY) RETAINS TIIE MACITINES AND MACHINE CODES.

“PLEASE RELAY TO FRANCE, GERMANY, ITALY AND TURKEY
FROM SWITZERLAND; AND TO BRAZIL, ARGENTINA AND MEXICO
CITY FROM WASIHINGTON.”

(Decoded in the Navy Department, December 1, 1941)

Tokyo (Togo) to Embassy, Washington, December 2, 1941
(#867): “l. AMONG TIHE TELELGRAPHIC CODES WITII
WHICII YOUR OFFICE IS EQUIPPED BURN ALL BUT TIIOSE NOW
USED WITII TIIE MACHINE AND ONE COPY EACII OF TIE ‘O
CODE (OITE) AND TIIE ABBREVIATED CODE (L). BURN ALSO
THE VARIOUS OTIIER CODES WHICII HAVE BEEN IN YOUR
CUSTODY.

“2, STOP AT ONCE USING ONE CODE MACIIINE AND DESTROY
IT COMPLETELY.

“3. WHEN YOU IIAVE FINISHED TIHIS, WIRE ME BACK THE
ONE WORD ‘UARUNA’,
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“4, AT THE TIME AND IN THE MANNER YOU DEEM MOST
PROPER DISPOSE OF ALL FILES OF MESSAGES COMING AND
COING AND ALL OTHER SECRET DOCUMENTS.

“5. BUAN ALL THF CODPES WHICH TELEGRAPH OFFICIAL
KOSAKA BROUGHT YOU. HENCE THE NECESSITY OF GETTING IN
CONTACT WITH MEXNICO CITY MENTIONED IN MY #5600 ~o
LLONGER EXISTS.”

(Decoded in the War Department. December 3, 1941)

The War and Navy Departments quickly had evidence
that tne Japancse code destruction was proceeding apace.
On December 3, the British Admiralty told them that the
Japanese Embassy in London had completed that operation,
By Saturday. December 6. sixteen “Harunas™ had been in-
tereepted. including those from the consulates in New Orleans,
San Francisco and Seadtle.

Japanese Embassy. Berne, to Japanese Y.mbassy, Ankara,
December 2, 1941 (Tokyo Circular #2447 ); “ORDERS HAVE
BEEN ISSUED TO OUR DIPLOMATIC OFFICIALS IN NORTH AMERICA
INCLUDING MANILA. CANADA. PANAMA, CUBA. THE SOUTIH SEAS,
INCLUDING TIMOR. SINORA. CHIENMAI AND ALL OUR OFFICIALS
IN BRITISH (INCLUDING OUR EMBASSY IN LONDON)  AND
NETHERLANDS TERRITORY TO INFORAM ME [ I'ON THE BURNING
OF ALL THEIR TELEGHAPHIC CODES EXCEDT ONE COPY OF
OITE AND L.

“"RELAY FROM BERLIN TO LISBON. HELSINKL, BUDAPEST AND
VIENNA: RELAY FROM ROME TO BUCHAREST. ————: RELAY
FROM BERNE TO VICHY. ANKARA. LISBON. MADRID: RELAY FROM
RIO TO BUENOS AINES. LIMA. SANTIACO, - - -1 MEXICO CITY,
PANAMA, BOGOTA; RELAY FROM BANGKOK TO  IIANOI,
SAIGON, . . .7
(Decoded in the War Departiment. December 6, 19-41)

The final two messages of the Japanese code destruction
series, sent by Tokvo early on the morning of the Pearl Har-
bor attack, are discussed in Chapter 8 with the other Wash-
ington happenings of December 6 and 7.

Taken in conjunction with the code  destruction mes-
suges, Tokyo’s instructions concerning the movements of per-
sonnel were also cvidences of the iinminenda: of war.

During the summer and fall of 1941, Scveretary Terasaki,
an espionage expert, was in Washington to direet the ercation
of a Japanese spy network in Latin America. On December
2, Tokvo ordered his immediate departure from the United
States. The following exchange between the Washington
Embassy and Tokyo resulted:

1941

Iimbassy, Washington to Tokyo, December 3,
(#1245); “TERASAKI NOW IN THE MIDST OF
INTELLIGENCE WORK AT MOST IMPORTANT TIME. WOULD LIKE
TO HAVE TIIM STAY OVER A WHILE AND GO BY SATLING OF THE
TOTI. TAKAGI ON TATSUTA AMARU BUSINESS . . .

(Decoded in the Navy Department, December 10 194D

Tokyo to Embassy, Washington. December 3. 1941 {#896);
“RE YOUR #1243: WILL YOU PLEASE HAVE TERASAKL. ANDO.
YAMAMOTO, AND OTIHEFRS LEAVE BY PLANE WITHIN THE NEXT
COUPLE OF DAYS.”

(Decoded in the Navy Departiment, December 6, 1941)

Commander Kramer told the Naval Cowrt of Inguiry
that official Washington had no iutention of permitting Jap-
anese Embassy personnel to leave the United States during
those carly davs of December, 1941, In other words, the Wash-
ington authoritics recognized that war was so close as to make
it desirable to block the departure of Jupanese diplomatic offi-
cials, but no definite, unmistakable message conveying that
recognition was sent to the Hawaiian Commanders.
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By December 8, the Nary Departinent had Tokyo Cir-
cular #2444 and Tokyo di:patch #867, and sent th.: four
messages which appear beloa. In the headings of thesz, the
following abbreviated titles will be used:

OPNAV O:fice of the Chief of Nav:1 Op-
eralions;

CINCAF Ccmmander-in-Chief, Asiatic
Fleet:

CINCPAC Ccmmander-in-Chief, Pacific
Fleet:

COMN 14 Commandant, 14th Naval Listrict
(ITawaiian Islands);

CON 1B Ccmmandant, 16th Naval I istrict

(Philippine Islands);
NAVSTA GUAM N.val Station, Guam.

The multiple-address svitem has long been a f:ature
of Naval Communications. The addressces are dividel into
two  groups—thase to whoia the receipt of the m:ssage
will mean action, and thosc to whom it is sent purcly for
inlormation.

OPNAY, For action to: JINCAF, CINCPAC, CO.J{ 14,
COM 16, December 3. 1941

“HIGHLY RELIABLE INFORN ATION IIAS BEEN RECEIVED THAT
CATEGORIC AND URGENT INSTRUCTIONS WERE SENT YEST RDAY
TO JAPANESE DIPLOMATIC AND) CONSULAR POSTS AT IIONG KONG,
SINGAPORE, BATAVIA, MANIL\, WASHINGTON AND LOND)N TO
DESTHOY MOST OF THEIR COT IS AND CIPIIERS AT ONCE AND TO
BUKN ALL OTIER IMPORT:NT CONFIDENTIAL AND S:ICRET
DOCUAMENTS.”

This message was prepar-d and released by the D rector
of Naval Intelligence. Tt is iuteresting to note that the file
copy contained the following passage: “From the fori-going
infer that Orange plans early action in Southeast Asia.” That
seutence, however, was dele ed before the message wa . sent.
Only Admiral Stark and Re r Adimiral Turner could 1elease
a dispatch which contained iny deductions concerning Japa-
nese probable intentions. Tlis order had then been in effect
in the Navy Departuient for many months.

OPNAV, For
ber 3, 1941

For information to: CINCPAC, COM 14

COPEK

"CIMCULAR TWENTY FOUR FORTY FOUR FROM TOKY ) ONE
DECEMBER ORDERED LONPO S, HONG KONG, SINGAPORI: AND
AMANILA TO DESTROY PURPIE MACHINE., BATAVIA MACHINE
ALREADY SENT TO TOKYO. DJECEMBER SECOND WASIII {GTON
ALSO DIRECTED DESTROY P'RPLE. ALL BUT ONE CO°’Y OF
OTHER SYSTEMS. AND ALL  SECRET DOCUMENTS. BAITISII
ADMIRALTY LONDON TODAY REPORTS FMBASSY LONDO Y HAS
conprLiEn.”

CINCAF, COM 16, Lecem-

action fo:

Although, in accordanc: with naval procedure  this
message was addressed o hie flag officer in cach instance,
the Copek means it actuallr was from the Decrypting; Unit
of Naval Communications t¢ similar units on the staffs of the
four addressees. It will be noted that it was sent orly for
information to  Admiral K mmel's staff unit and tc  that
ol the Fourteenth Naval District. This will be dis :ussed
shortly.

Recognizing that war was imminent in the closing cays of
the first week of Decembr, 1941, Washington sent the
following two dispatches, 5 well as many similar oies to
diplomatic and consular pos s in Japan and in Japane:e-held
territories on the Asiatic ma nland:

IEWS & WORLD REPORT, April 2, 1954

u. s.
Approved For Release 2005/01/05 : CIA-RDP75-00149R000700490026-7

001080p0ux =~



Approved For Release 2005/01/05 : CIA-RDP75-00149RM0 FoRA4190626:F of Pearl Harbor

OPNAV, For action to: NAVSTA, GUAM, Decem-
ber 4, 1941
For information to: CINCAF, CINCPAC, COM 14,
COM 16
Transmit with Deferred Precedence
“GUAM DESTROY ALL SECRET AND CONFIDENTIAL PUBLI-
CATIONS AND OTIER CLASSIFIED MATTER EXCEPT THAT
ESSENTIAL FOR CURRENT PURPOSES AND SPECIAL INTELLI-
GENCE RETAINING MINIMUM CRYPTOGRAPIIC CHANNELS
NECESSARY FOR ESSENTIAL COMMUNICATIONS WITII CINCAF,
CINCPAC, cOM 14, coM 16 AND OPNAV. BE PREPARED TO
DESTROY INSTANTLY IN EVENT OF EMERGENCY ALL CLASSI-
FIED MATTER YOU RETAIN. REPORT CRYPTO CIIANNELS RE-
TAINED.”

OPNAV, For action to: CINCPAC, December 6, 1941

For information to: CINCAF

Transmit with Deferred Precedence

“IN VIEW OF THE INTERNATIONAL SITUATION AND TIIE
EXPOSED POSITION OF OUR OUTLYING PACIFIC ISLANDS YOU
MAY AUTIIORIZE TIIE DESTRUCTION BY THEM OF SECRET AND
CONFIDENTIAL DOCUMENTS NOW OR UNDER LATER CONDI-
TIONS OF GREATER EMERGENCY. MFANS OF COMMUNICATION
TO SUPPORT OUR CURRENT OPERATIONS AND SPECIAL INTEL-
LICENCE SHOULD OF COURSE BE MAINTAINED UNTIL TIIE LAST
MOMENT.”

These last two dispatches were matters of cognizance
of the Communications Security Division of Naval Com-
munications. In the draft of this dispatch of December 6,
prepared by the Head of that Division, the context began
with the phrase, “in view of the imminence of war.” It was
testified that the Director of Naval Communications ordered
the changes which produced the final wording of the message,
as set forth above. It will be noted that the words, “in view
of the imminence of war,” were deleted and the highly mis-
leading expression, “now or under later conditions of greater
emergency,” was substituted. We have seen how information
was denied to the Hawaiian Commanders during those days.
It now appears that an offshoot of that doctrine of denial,
during the early days of December, was avoidance of the
suggestion that war was very closc at hand, in messages that
had to be sent into the Paciflc.

According to routine Naval Communications procedure,
messages are assigned one of the following precedence
classifications: (1) priority, to require thc promptest possi-
ble transmission and delivery; (2) routine, to assure handling
free of unnccessary delays; (3) deferred, to indicate that
there is no particular urgency connected with the dclivery.
Unless a dispatch is definitely marked to indicate priority or
routine precedence, it is forwarded with deferred precedence.
To prevent unduc delays in the handling of deferred
precedence messages, a limiting time for their delivery is
usually indicated in the heading of the dispatch.

The Judge Advocate of the Naval Court of Inquiry tried
to establish why Rear Admiral Noyes, as late as the afternoon
of December 6, 1941, had released the last of the dispatches
with a deferred precedence. The answer was very vague,
but its essence secemed to be that when the witness, as Di-
rector of Naval Communications, personally ordered the
sending of a message, it went out very quickly, no matter
what precedence it was given. The Court showed no further
interest in the incident.

Nevertheless, Rear Admiral Noyes did not begin to answer
the implications which must be drawn from the precedence
assigned to this dispatch, so late in the rapidly developing
Pacific situation. In the first place, no matter how fast the
dispatch left Washington, as a result of its particular handling
there, once it got into the system, its further progress would
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necessarily have been handicapped by its obvious unim-
portance. Not only was this a message of deferred preced-
ence, but no limit was placed upon its deferred time of
delivery.

The handling of these four code-destruction messages by
the Navy Department was most unfortunate. After all the
information that had been denied the Hawaiian Commanders,
here was the conclusive evidence that Japan was on the verge
of initiating war with the United States and Great Britain,
and the transmission of that evidence to the Naval Com-
manders in Hawaii was badly bungled.

The first dispatch of December 3 was unfortunately
worded. The destruction by the Japanese posts of “most of
their codes and ciphers” means that war was in the offing,
but that the close approach to its initiation would be indi-
cated later by a Tokyo order to destroy all secret matter.
Actually, the Tokyo dispatches of December 1 and 2 had,
in cffect, ordered that complete destruction. The single ex-
ception was the Washington Embassy which was told to keep
one set of codes and one cipher machine, clearly to enable
it to receive further messages from Tokyo, including the one
which would initiate the war.

The Copek dispatch of the same day was more accurately
worded. Tt was apparently sent to assurc that the Corregidor
Decrypting Unit had a copy of this Magic message. That
could explain why it was sent for action to the staffs of the
Asiatic Commanders, and merely for information to the staffs
of the Hawaiian recipients. As Admiral Kimmel did not know
about the Philippine on-the-spot reception of Magic, the dif-
ferent addressce classifications for the Asiatic and Hawaiian
Commands could easily lead to confused deductions by him.

The wording of the dispatch dated December 6 certainly
conveyed no inkling that war could be expected in a matter
of hours. Furthermore, the deferredspreference assigned that
dispatch and the one to Guam, dated December 4, carried
no suggestion of urgency of execution, cven as late as the
eve of the Japanese attack.

The natural deduction in Hawaii from the four messages,
as worded and sent, must be that the Washington authorities
did not consider the outbreak of war unduly close at hand.

All of which emphasizes that there should not have been
any danger, at that late date, that the Hawaiian Commanders
could draw erroneous conclusions from the careless wording
of two dispatches, the thoughtless addressing of another, and
the deferred precedence assigned for the transmission of two
others. Such deductions would have been impossible if those
Commanders had been receiving the most significant of the
decoded intercepts on the Tokyo-Washington, Tokyo-Berlin,
and Tokyo-Honolulu circuits.

Clapiter 7

THE WHITE HOUSE
CONFERENCE OF
NOVEMBER 25, 1941

T nooN on November 25, 1941, President Roosevelt met

with his principa. advisers in the White House. In addi-

tion to the President, Secretaries Hull, Stimson, and Knox,

and General Marshall and Admiral Stark were also present.

The discussion which took place at that meeting, and certain

background facts concerning it, mark it as a vitally important
incident in the Pearl Harbor story.
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The following extracts of Sceretary Stimson's testimony
to the Congressional Investigation (Chapter 12) cover the
most significant features of that discussion:

“The President at once brought up the relations with
the Japanese. Mr. Hull said that the Japanese were poised
for the attack-—-that they might attack at anv time. The
President said that the Japanese were notarious for making
an attack without warning and stated that we might be at-
tacked, say next Monday, {or example.

“One problem troubled us very much. It vou know vour
enemy is going to strike vou, it is not usually wise to wait
until he gets the jump on vou by taking the initiative. In
spite of the risk involved, however, in letting the Tapanese
fire the first shot, we realized that in order to have the full
support of the American people it was desirable to make
surc that the Jupanese be the ones to do this so that there
should remain no doubt in anvone’s mind as to who were
the aggressors.”

The Stimson diary for November 25 stated this problem in
these words:

“The question was how we should maneuver them [the
Japanese] into the position of firing the first shot without
allowing too much danger to ourselves. It was a diflicult
proposition.”

There is the complete picture of the Roosevelt strategy for
the initiation of the wur: Jupanese action was connted upon
to bring an aroused and united American people into the war:
a Japanese surprise attack was fully expected: if the surprise
failed, the Japanese were to be maneuvered into firing the
first shot; all present at the conference fully appreciated that
cither the surprise attack or the mancuver to assure that the
Japanese fired the fiest shot would cause serfous UL S. losses.

The manctiver to cause the Japanese to fire the first shot
was definitely based upon the expectation of a surprise at-
tack, and was in reality mercly a minor refinement of Presi-
dent Roosevelt's plan to entice that attack. For, no shot could
be fired unless the oppuosing forces came into tactical contact.
and it is very clear that the President and his advisers were
counting upon a Japanese movement into American waters to
produce that contuct. And. under the existing U, $.-Japanese
relations, even without the knowledge of Fapanese intentions
supplied by Magic. there could not be the slightest doubt in
the minds of any of those present at the conference that such
a Japanese move must be the prelude to a surprise attack.
[f the surprise suceceded, the Japanese would aulomatically
five the first shot of the war, as President Roosevelt so carnest-
ly desired. The so-called mancuver was theretore merely
intended to cover the contingeney that the advancing Japa-
nese forees might be detected an appreciable time belore
they could deliver their attack. The maneuver wos imple-
mented by the simplest possible order to the Paciflic Com-
manders—merely a stutement that Washington  desired. it
possible. that the Japanese fire the first shot.?

President Roosevelt's remarks concerning  the Jupanese
surprise attack deserve close serutiny. Not ouly do they refiect
his complete knowledge of Japan's invariable method of start-
ing her modern wars, but his selection of Monday as the day
of the week for the altack is most arresting. Sunday in Pearl
Harbor is Monday in the Far Easte and all Japunese references
to the attack, both before and after the event. placed it on
Monday, December 8. Through the years, there have been

¢ Actually, Admirai Kinnnel did not observe these instractions in
the orders he issucd to the destroyers patrolling the waters oft
Pearl Harbor, which were closed to submerged submarines, and a
submarine contact was depth-charged in those waters with un-
known results, on the morning of December 7, 1941, over an hour
before the Japanese began their air attacks.
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persistent rumors that President Roosevelt, before the event,
had received sceret reports o the intended Japanese a tack
from Far Kastern sources. Ili: placing of the attack on ! fon-
day lends some credence to tl ase rumors. Unless such reorts
had caused him to associate Monday with the coming atack,
why did he not conform to Army and Navy estimates and
pluace it on Sunday?

The truth of those rumors T as actually been publicly e tab-
lished for over two vears, although that fact only recently
became known to this author.

On May 17, 1951, the New York Daily News and riany
other papers, to which the ¢slumn is syndicated, carri:d a
feature article by its Washing ton reporter, Mr. John O.)on-
nell, which told of various Far Eastern police and intellig :nee
reports which were then reposing under close guare on
Capitol Il in Washington. A nong these documents weri- the
Japanese sccret police repor s which were surrenderel to
General MacArthur in Tokyo i1 September, 1943, and the con-
fession of the funous Russian s py. Dr. Richard Sorge, whe had
organized and directed the opcrations of a widespread spy ring
in Japan, until his arrest by the Japancse on October 18, 1941.

The article in the New Yorl Daily News had very intc -est-
ing comments on the police ad intelligence reports, bul our
present concern centers in the Sorge confession and the sicret
Japanese police reports. Befo e his execution in carly 1342,
Do Sorge made a complete 32,000-word confession ol his
activitics to his Japanese cuy tors. This confession was for-
warded to the Peutagon in Washington by General ! {ac-
Arthur, so that the account o the Sorge activities are t) be
found in the sceret files in o w national capital in both the
Sorge confession and the Jap mese secret police docum nts.

The following is a verbatin extract from Mr. O'Dom ell’s
article in the New York Daily News of May 17, 1951:

“When the spy's confessiorn. was sent here, somebod s in
the Pentagon deleted from die original the damning s ate-
ment by Sorge that he had informed the Kremlin in C cto-
ber. 1941, that the Japs inended to attack Pearl Hurbor
within 60 dayvs and that e had reccived thanks for his
report and the notice that W ashington—Roosevelt, Mars 1all,
Adin. Stark, ef al—had been advised of the Japanese i ten-
tious. There is no record tha - this information was ackn wl-
cdeed here. But the (Japar 2se) police documents maie it
clear that Stalin & Co. had this accurate information and
passed it back to us in retura for our information aboul the
impending attack by Germaay on Russia.”

In reply to a direet question, Mr, O'Donnell says, “Before
writing the column, the com lete record of Sorge’s cor fes-
sion had been made available to me although 1 was never in
possession—except Lor the time required for reading the deu-
menls.” 1L will be noted that dr. O'Donnell positively states
that the “"complete record of e Sorge confession” was a rail-
able to himm belore he wrote the article. That means Hoth
documents—the 32,000-word ¢ orge confession and the pdlice
docrunent which related to the Sorge activities and confes: ion.
This statement is especially i nportant because certain or-
tions of the Sorge confession aad been deleted from the file
copy in the Pentagon, obviously for the purpose of preser ring
the sceret of Pewr] Harbor and Cresident Roosevelt's part tl ere-
in {rom the knowledge of anyo e who might sce that file ¢py.

We thus now know that President Roosevelt was wa:ned
at least twice of the Japanese intended attack, by Amb: ssa-
dor Grew in January, 1941, aud by Sorge, via the Kremlin, in
October, 1941, This, coupled vith the Washington silencz to
the Hawaiian Commanders concerning  these  intelligince
reports, clogquently testifies to e fact that President Roose velt
wanted the Jupanese attack. S seretury Stimson’s testimony to
the Congressional Committee oes far to support this deluc-
tion, as we saw at the beginniag of this chapter.
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The reader is now ready to weigh the pale character of
the information contained in the so-called War-Warning Mes-
sages, sent to the Hawaiian Commanders on November 27,
1941, and the consequent defects of those messages as por-
trayers of the situation then actually known to President
Roosevelt and his Washington advisers.

Chliapter §

THE SO-CALLED WAR
WARNING MESSAGES

wrrics of Admiral Kimmel and defendants of the Washing-
ton Administration magnify the significance of a Navy
Department dispatch of November 97, Dhecause it contained
the sentence, “This dispatch is to be considered a war warn-
ing.” They would have us believe that this one message
counterbajanced the withholding of the mass of information
which, as we have scen, made the Japuancse surprise attack
possible. The message read:

“TIIS DISPATCIL IS TO BE CONSIDERED A WAR WARNINC.
NEGOTIATIONS WITII JAPAN LOOKING TOWARD STABILIZATION
OF CONDITIONS IN TIIE PACIFIC ITAVE CEASED AND AN AGGRES-
SIVE MOVE BY JAPAN IS EXPRECTED WITIIIN TIIE NEXT FEW DAYS.
TTIE NUMBER AND EQUIPMENT OF JAPANUESE TROOPS AND TIIE
ORGANIZATIONS OF NAVAL TASK FORCES INDICATES AN AM-
PIIBIOUS EXPEDITION AGAINST FITIER THE PIILIPPINES, TUAL
OR KRA PENINSULA, OR POSSIBLY BORNEO. EXECUTE AN APPRO-
PRIATE DEFENSIVE DEPLOYMINT PREPARATORY TO CARRYING
OUT TIHE TASKS ASSIGNED IN WPL 46, INFORM DISTRICT AND
ARMY AUTITORITIES. A SIMTLAR WARNING IS BEING SENT BY TIIE
WAR DEPARTMENT. SPENAVO INFORM BRITISI{. CONTINENTAL

»

DISTRICTS, GUAM, SAMOA TAKE MEASURES AGAINST SABOTAGE.

This dispatch was slightly: more definite than the two pre-
ceding dispatches sent on October 16 and November 24,
especially as the contents of the two former messages had
heen quickly neutralized by follow-up letters from Admiral
Stark. Tt did not, however, begin to give the complete picture.

The Navy Department disratch of November 27 and a
sirnilar one from the War Department to General Short were
sent, on that day, in obedience to a dircct order from Presi-
dent Roosevelt which was issued when the American note of
November 26 was delivered to the Jupanese Ambassadors.
Shortly after that delivery, Secretary Hull had informed the
heads of the Army and the Navy that diplomatic negotiations
had failed, and that further action must be the responsibility
of the Armed Forces. The two messages of November 27 to
the Hawaiian Commanders would have been greatly strength-
ened if this quotation from the Sceretary of Statc had been
included! But that would have made it too cvident to the
historians of the future that the American note had been de-
liberately drafted to end all chance of further negotiation.

A study of the Navy dispatch leads to the conclusion that
its wording was carcfully chosen. For Admiral Hart, Com-
mander-in-Chicf of the Asiatic Fleet, it was an adequate
message, despite its lack of technical language. He was told
that Japan was about to expand her Far Eastern war and
that arcas, within the limits of his command, would come
under attack. The Philippines were definitely mentioned  as
a possible Japanese objective. Furthermore, Admiral Hart had
a thorough understanding of the developing diplomatic ten-
sion between Japan and the United States, as the Corregidor
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Decrypting Unit kept him informed of the outgoing diplo-
matic messages from Tokyo to Washington and Berlin.

At the same time, Admiral Kimmel was informed that the
war would spread, but to localities far removed from his
Flect. Nowhere in the message was there an intimation that
the war might come to Hawaii. Predictions of operations dis-
tant from Hawaii characterized every communication to the
Admiral which carried a suggestion of war with Japan.

During the Congressional Investigation, when the text of
this dispatch was published, one Boston commentator char-
acterized it as a “masterpiece of double talk.” For Admiral
Kimmel, this description fits it perfectly. For other Command-
ers, it conveyed a sufficiently accurate picturc. It was indeed
a masterpiece!

The War Department sent a similar dispatch to General
Short, except that it was weaker than the Navy one in its
depiction of the status of the negotiations, as that passage in
the War Departroent message read: “Negotiations with Japan
appear to be texminated with only the barest possibility of
resumption.” The Hawailan Army Commander reacted as
Admiral Kimmel did to the Navy message. Again there was
no suggestion of a possible overseas attack upon Hawaii, and
so the General ordered an alert against sabotage. In this
type of alert, planes and exposed equipment arc gathered in
close groupings, so that a small guard can supply the neces-
sary protection against local marauders. This close assemblage
of material makes this alert most vulnerable to air attack,
becausc it ensures the maximum possible offect from cach
well-placed bomb.

On November 28, General Short reported this action to
the War Department, and thereby definitcly transferred the
responsibility for the inadequate Hawaiian “alert” to the
Army Chief of Staff. This report clearly created a very cm-
barrassing situation for the War Department as, for the en-
suing ninc days, it was faced with the urgent duty of order-
ing a change in the dispositions of the Hawaiian Command.
But, if this had becn done, the Hawaiian Commandcrs would
immediately have recognized that Washington took a far
graver view of the Pacific situation and possible eventualitics
in their area than the messages of November 27 had led
them to believe.

One must infer that, faced with this dilemma, General
Marshall adhered to the policy of silence, as from November
98 to Dccember 7, General Short’s message rested in the
War Department, unanswered. And, when the attack was
delivered, the Hawaiian Army planes were closely grouped
for the slaughter. Only a positive directive could have kept
the soldicr, General Marshall, silent in such a situation, and
the directive could only have come from President Roosevelt.

Before the Joint Congressional Committec, Admiral Kim-
mel emphasized the weaknesses of the Navy message in
these words:

“The statement in the Navy Department dispatch to me
to the effect that the negotiations had ceased on November
97th was a pale reflection of actual events; so partial a
statement as to be misleading. The parties had not merely
stopped talking. They were at swordpoints. So far as Japan
was concerned, the talking which went on after November
96th was play-acting. It was a stratagem to conceal a blow
which Japan was preparing to dcliver. The stratagem did
not fool the Navy Department. The Navy Department
knew the scheme. The Pacific Fleet was exposed to this
Japanese stratagem becausc the Navy Department did not
pass on its knowledge of the Japancse trick.”

How justified those strictures were! On November 27,
when the two messages were sent, President Roosevelt and
his Washington advisers knew that: the American note had
terminated the negotiations beyond all shadow of a doubt;
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Tokyo had told Iloug Kong, on November 14, the failure of
the negotiations meant war with the United States and Great
Britain; the deadline date which would mark the initiation
of war operations was only two days ahead: Tokvo had evi-
denced a keen and continuing interest in the exact location
of the principal U.S. vessels inside Pearl Harbor.

The fact that. by December 2. the War and Navy Depart-
ments had sent no amplifving messages to the Hawaiian
Commands strongly substantiates that the disputches of No-
vember 27 were written primavily for history and that their
ambiguity was deliberate. For, by that tinue, the Washington
recipients of Magic knew that: the American note had defi.
vitely terminated the negotiations: the appearance of nego-
tiation was to he maintained by the Ambassadors, obviously
to cloak a contemplated surprise attack: Betlin had been (old
by Tokyo that war with the Anglo-Saxon nations would came
quicker than anvone imagined.

The outstanding defects of the November 27 DICSSAEeS s
war warnings were: they were not couched in technical
lungnage: they were not supplemented by orders from the
War and Navy Departments directing the actions preliminary
to war, which were preseribed in the existing War Plans.
Without those orders or the knowledge which Magic alone
conld supply. those messages could mean little, if anvthing,
to the Hawaiian Commuanders,

By November 28, at the latest. the tollowing measures
should have Dheen taken: the Wir wnd Niwvy Departients
should have ordered the Commanding Goneral of the -
waiian Department and the Commandant ol the Fourteentl
Naval District to excente the Joint Army-Navy Coastal Fron-
tier Defense Plan for the Fhewaiian area, except those provi-
sions which would be too apparent to or wonld wteet the civil-
tau population; the Nuvy Department should have issued the
Mobilization Order. preseribed by the War Plans, to the Naval
Establishment. or at least o the Pacific Fleet i Hawaiian
waters. This would have placed the Hawaiion Commands on
a war basis, but would not have anthorized acts of war,

At the same time. the Army and Navy CGommands in Ha-
waii should have been unified. The need for this in the
event of war had long been recoanized. Tt could he accom-
plished, at any time. by order of the President. Tt was or-
dered immediately after the Japanese attack, and remained
in cffect thronghout the war.

There was another unnatural lapse on the part ol the
Navy Departinent. The Chicl of Naval Operations, by law,
is responsible Tor the war readiness of the Naval Establish-
ment. Vitally importaad features of that readiness are the
locations and dispositions of the various flects in anticipation
of the first impact of war. By November 2850 it was clearly
apparent 1o the High Commund in Washington that the
Pacific Fleet should keep the sea until the isue of peace or
war with Japan had been defnitely decided. Admiral Stark
did not issue such an order. Furthermore, alter the imminence
of war becime unmistikable. e made no attempt to acquaint
himself with the steps that had been tahen in that flect to
meet the outhreak of the war.

Once again, it is impossible to believe that Admiral Stak
willingly failed to perform his tull duty in these matters, e
certainly kiiew the duties and responsibilities of his office.
As he publichy said. all he did during those times was on
order of higher anthority, in other words. the President ol
the United States.

The ghuing character of these failures is emphasized by
the fact that, in ecarlier Pacific emergencies of far lesser in-
tensity, both Departments were prompt to issue alert and
mobilization orders, as the following dispatches indicate:

War Department to Hawaiian Command. June 17, 19-10:
“INMEDIATELY  ALERT COMPLETE DEFENSINE ORGANIZ ATION

¢001916

TO DEAL WITH POSSIBLE THANS-PACIFIC RAID , ,

ALERT UNTIL FUNTHER ORDIRS. . . .

« MA NTAIN

Navy Department to Co nmander-in-Chief. Pacific Fleet,
June 17, 1940 “BE ON ALEIT AGAINST OVEICSEAS RAID 7

Nacal Operations to Co.amander-in-Chief, Pacific Fleet,
January 21, 1941: "1 TRIS £ STIMATE PROVES CORRECT CON-
TEMPLATE ORDERING MOBILLIATION ACCORDING TO RAIN 30W 3
WITH FOLLOWING MODIFICA” JONS ., .

The negleet of the War :nd Navy Departments, be:ween
November 28 and December 7. to order the prewar lispo-
sitions required by the Wa o Plans could have been ¢ aused
oulv by the deliberate intert to keep Admiral Kimmedl and
General Short inignorance of the true Pacific situatior . Un-
accompanicd by alert and mobilization orders. the disp itches
of November 27 were little nore than “genceral information”
miessages for the Hawaiian Commands.

During that time, Admiral Stark was faced with one other
very irving situation.

Ou November 28, the car ier Enterprise lelt Pear] T arbor
in a1 Task Foree to Terry plancs to Wake Island. On Deccmber
3. the Lexington left on a si pilar mission to Midway. f the
Fleet had proceeded to sea o 'ter November 28, it wounle thus
have carried the totally ina lequate air suprort whicl one
carrier could supply. as the only other carvier, then iy the
Pacific. the Saratoga. was 1 the West Goast, having  just
completed w0 Navye Yard ovarhaul. After Docember . the
Fleet would have been totall » without sea-horne air surnort.
Under either of these two cot ditions. contact with a Jap mese
Carrier Tusk Foree could on v have meant its total de true-
tion through repeated air at acks. Tts only course of : ction
at sea would have been to redire into the area of the se: and
air approaches to Hawaii fron the West Coast. waters s hich
a fapanese force upon a sor rise attack mission would most
certainly avoid.

Admiral Kinnnel reported e departure of the Enteiprise
and the contemplated emplc yment of the Lexington to the
Chiel ol Naval Operations - lear evidencee that he dic not
appreciate the imminence of war. Under the cond tions
known to him. it thus became Admiral Stark’s bounden duty
to order the immediate recall of the Enterprise and the can-
cellation of the Lexington's n ission. Any naval officer free to
act wonld have done so. Adniral Stark did nothing. This is
one more powertul picce of evidenee that his decisions diring
that time were inhibited by ¢ rders from President Roose velt,

Clapter G

THE FINAL DENIAL
OF MAGIC TO
THE HAWA IAN
COMMANDIRS

- coME Now to the final acts in the dramatic withl old-
Wing ol information from Admiral Kimme! and General
Short, those during the perioc from December 1 to Dercern-
bher 7. 1941,

Students of Japanese milita y history had long enterta ned
the belief that Japan's surpris s attack to initiate a war vith
a western nation would probasly be delivered on a Satu-day
or Sunday because. on those days, during peacetime, the
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greatest number of oflicers and men arc habitually absent
from their ships and stations on weck-end liberty. As early as
April 1, 1941, the following message was sent by Naval Op-
erations to the Commandants of all Shore Stations: “PERSONNEL
OF YOUR INTELLIGENCE SERVICE SIIOULD BE ADVISED TIAT
BECAUSE OF TIE FACT TIAT PAST EXPERIENCE SIIOWS THE
AXIS POWERS OFTEN BEGIN ACTIVITIES ON SATURDAYS AND
SUNDAYS OR ON A NATIONAL ITOLIDAY OF TIE COUNTRY CON-
CERNED, THEY SIOULD TAKE STEPS ON SUCH DAYS TO SEE TIIAT
PROPER WATCHES AND PRECAUTIONS ARE IN EFFEcT.” Why
this was not addressed to the Fleet Commanders and why it
should be confined to personnel of the Intelligence Services
is difficult to understand, despite the fact that the message
was originated by the Director of Naval Intelligence. In any
event, the thought was perfectly clear.

Many in Washington had expected that Japan would attack
on the 30th of November, because that was the first Sunday
after November 29, the “deadline date.” When that day
passed without incident, the next Sunday was December 7.
And during that fateful week, the evidence in Washington
of the coming Japanese war mounted rapidly.

The reader is already familiar with the essential Magic
messages, received on or before December 5. The Japanese
messages of December 6 and 7 are reproduced and discussed
later in this chapter.

The events of that week provide the keystone to eur arch
of evidence regarding the significance of the denial of Magic
to Admiral Kimmel and General Short. They dispose of any
lingering possibility that this was due to oversight, and thus
prove conclusively that the denial was deliberate. They dis-
close the persistence with which the high Army and Navy
Commands in Washington adhered to this policy of silence,
so completely at variance with military practice.

The chronologic presentation which follows deals first with
three brief but significant happenings and then arrives at the
extended accounts of December 6 and 7.

December 1

Commander McCollum prepared a memorandum digest
of the Japanese situation which he considered should be sent
to the outlying naval commands, especially those in Hawaii.
This was discussed by Admiral Stark with all his principal
advisers and with the Commander also present. It was decided
that no message based upon the memorandum would be sent
by the Navy Department.

December 4

The Japanese code-destruction messages caused Com-
mander McCollum to draft a proposed dispatch summarizing
the U.S.-Japanese situation for transmission to the Com-
mander-in-Chief, Pacific Fleet, which contained the phrase,

war between Japan and the United States is imminent.”
Captain Wilkinson directed the Commander to consult with
Rear Admiral Turner. The latter opposed the sending of the
message, significantly basing that opposition solely on the
“War-Warning Dispatch” of November 27, and after giving
that message to the Commander to read, asked him if he still
thought his message was necessary. Ile replied that he did.
Admiral Turner then said that if it was sent, it would have to
be heavily deleted, and proceeded to indicate the passages
that he was unwilling to see transmitted. Commander McCol-
lum took the emasculated message back to Captain Wilkinson,
and left it with him, after recounting what had happened in
Admiral Turner’s office. The dispatch was never sent.

December 5

On December 5, Colonel Sadtler, Signal Corps, U.S.
Army, received a telephone message from Rear Admiral
Noyes that an Execute of the Winds Code had been re-
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ceived. This report and the other Japanese code-destruction
dispatches convinced the Colonel that the outbreak of war
was close at hand. He consequently prepared a succincet mes-
sage, which read about as follows: “War with Japan imminent;
eliminate all possibility of another Port Arthur.” This reference
was to the Japanese surprise attack that started the Russo-
Japanese War, an incident well known to all students of
military history. Knowing that only General Marshall and
Brigadicr Genéral Gerow in the War Department could
authorize the sending of such a dispatch, Colonel Sadtler took
his message to the latter in an attempt to have it approved.
General Gerow dismissed the Colonel with a flat refusal to
consider the suggestion, The Colonel then took the matter to
Colonel Bedell Smith, Senior Secretary on General Marshall’s
STTE " When Cofonel Smith learned that General Gerow had
refused to comsider sending the message, he did the same.
That ended the incident.

December 6

The Japanese Ministry in Budapest reported to Tokyo
that the American Minister had, on that day, presented the
Hungarian Government with a British Communiqué to the
effect that a state of war would break out on the 7th. This
poorly worded Japanese dispatch could only mean war in-
volving Japan. Great Britain was then already at war with
Hungary, an ally of Germany, which was the reason that the
American Minister was handling the diplomatic affairs of the
British Government in Budapest.

Ambassador Winant from London also reported to Wash-
ington that a large Japancse amphibious force had been
sighted off Cambodia Point headed for the Kra Peninsula and
distant 14 hours’ steaming thercfrom. Every government con-
cerncd, including the United States, thus positively knew, on
that Saturday, that the Pacific War would be initiated on the
next day, Sunday, December 7.

Saturday, December 6, in Washington

The following account of the cvents of that day in our
national capital is a mixture of known fact and deduction.
Every cflort will be made to keep cach incident plainly in its
proper category.

The so-called Japanese Pilot Message was received during
the foreuoon and was ready for distribution by mid-afternoon
in both the War and Navy Departments. This message read:

Tokyo to Embassy, Washington, December 6, 1941 (#901):

“(l) TIE GOVERNMENT IiAS DELIBERATED DEEPLY ON THE
AMERICAN PROPOSAL OF TIIE 26TII OF NOVEMBER AND AS A
RESULT WE 1IAVE DRAWN UP A MEMORANDUM FOR THE UNITED
STATES CONTAINED IN MY SEPARATE MESSAGE #902 (IN
ENGLISII ).

“(2) THIS SEPARATE MESSAGE IS A VERY LONG ONE. I WILL
SEND IT IN 14 PARTS AND I IMAGINE YOU WILL RECEIVE IT
TOMORROW, HOWEVER, I AM NOT SURE. TIIE SITUATION IS EX-
TREMELY DELICATE, AND WIEN YOU RECEIVE IT I WANT YOU
TO PLEASE KEEP IT SECRET FOR THE TIME BEING,

“(3) CONCERNING TIE TIME OF PRESENTING TIIE MEMO-
RANDUM TO THE UNITED STATES, I WILL WIRE YOU IN A SEPA-
RATE MESSAGE. HOWEVER, I WANT YOU IN THE MEANTIME TO
PUT IT IN NICELY DRAFTED FORM AND MAKE EVERY PREPARA-
TION TO PRESENT IT TO TIIE AMERICANS JUST AS SOON AS
YOU RECEIVE INSTRUCTIONS,”

(Decoded in the War Department before 3:00 p.m.,

December 6, 1941)

Two features of this message were particularly noteworthy:
the American-Japanese situation was characterized as “ex-
tremely delicate”; the 14-part message was to be delivered to
the Washington Government at a specially designated time,

’
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and this timing was so imporlant that it was to be made the
subject of a separate message.

The recipients of Magic in Washington had known for
over a week that the Japanese reply to the American note of
November 26 would be a declaration of war. The Id-part
message was that answer, hence definitely a declaration of
war, Japan had started her three previons wars—with China
in 1894, with Russia in 1904, and her attack upon German-
held Tsingtao in 1914—with surprise attacks synchronized al-
most to the minute with the deliveries of her declarations of
war.

The next day was Sunday. the dav of the week upon which
Japan was expected to deliver her surprise attack if she
should ever decide to initiate a war with the United States.
A Japanese amphibious force was known te be in position to
make a dawn attack upon the Kra Peninsulic on the next dav.
During the ecarlier days of the week, the Japunese code-
destruction messages made the imminence of war a cer-
tainty. The receipt of the Pilot Message made it practically
certain that Japan would start the war on the next day, Sun-
day, December 7, 1941.

By mid-afternoon on that Saturday. official Washington
had followed Japan’s every diplomatic move for days, as she
prepared for her proverbial method of initinting wars. It also
then knew that Magic was soon to provide information of the
two items needed to complete the routine—the context of the
declaration of war, and the time of its delivery.

Furthermore, due to {ortuitous delays in the processing of
four dispatches on the Tokvo-Honolulu cirenit, the recipients
of Magic were reminded on Thursday, again on Friday, and
again on Saturday, the three days before the attack. that
Tokyo’s known interest in the exact location of U. 8. ships in
Pearl Harbor had not only continued, but had intensified.
Was a nation, about to be subjected to an attempted (D) sur-
prise attack as the first act of war, ever before so fortunate!

The Washington silence which followed the receipt of the
Pilot Message was the most vital key to the true Pear] Harbor
story. War within 24 hours, initiated by a surprise attack
which, according to all the evidence, would be delivered upon
the U.S. Fleet in Hawaii. stared General Marshall and Ad-
miral Stark in the face from that moment onward, and they
made no move during 21 of the 22 hours which intervened
before the attack to inform Admiral Kimmel and General
Short. Nothing but a positive Presidential order could have so
muzzled them after the receipt of the Pilot Message. The later
Japanese messages and the continuing absence of warning to
the Hawaiian Commanders, discussed in the remainder of this
chapter, merely add support and emphasis to this inescapable
fact.

Colonel Bratton began the War Departinent deliveries of
the Pilot Message on Saturday at 3:00 pac That means that
the five other Magic recipients on the War Departinent list
saw that significant message on that alternoon, as it is highly
unlikely that any of them had left their offices so curly 1 the
dav, in those critical times. Even it one ol the recipients did
happen to be absent, it would cause little delay in the de-
livery to him. During those davs, the principal subordimates
alwavs knew the whercabouts ol their immediate senjors
when the latter were not in the War Department.

The testimony concerning the Navy's handling of the Pilot
Messapgre was decidedly vague. One fact, however, is certain.
As the Army unit was processing all Magic received on that
day up to the time of Colonel Bratton’s distribution of the
Pilot Message, this means that seven finished copies were in
the Navy Department at abont 3:00 r.ar. Although Com-
mander Kramer, at the time of the investigation, hud no re-
membrance of the deliveries, Captain Wilkinson saw the mes-
sage before he 1eft his office at 6:00 v.a., and understood that
it “was brought to him in the normal course of events in con-
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nection with Magic.” It is diflicult to conceive of ary ap-
preciable delay in the Nav:- Department’s distribution. The

message foretold the coming of the long-awaited reply to the e

American note of Novembe 26 and its timed delivery, mat-
ters of deep interest to Presi dent Roosevelt, The first th ought
consequently would have besn to rush it to the White - {ouse,
and that would have induced the almost simultanco s de-
liveries to the other recipien s, as the information wou d also
be most important to Admiril Stark. We must therefor o con-
chude that the Navy distril ution of the Pilot Message was
made between 3:00 par ard 6:00 par.

During the afternoon, tharefore, the recipients of Magie
knew that one of the most inportant state communicat:ons in
American history was abou  to arrive in Washington, Their
natural reactions should have been a keen desire to learn its
tenor at the carliest possibl2 moment and to see the whole
message as soon as it was rcady. But, we are about to “ecord
an attitude of apparent apa hy in high military-naval :ircles
toward the whole matter, i n apathy that has never, in all
history, had a counterpart at a time of such import to a 1.ation.

Thirteen parts of the mai message, Tokyo #902, <rrived
in the Navy Departinent be ween 11:45 aar and 2:5. pou.
As it was in coded English, 12 decode came out of the urple
machine in that language. The translation to comple:e the
processing was therefore cor cerned solely with Japanese pro-
cedure signs, punctuation, te., and the preparation Hf the
finished copies of the carly lecodes began shortly afte - 3:00
r.at. Despite the fact that it vas the Army’s day to hancle the
Japanese intercepts, the Nivy unit processed 11 of the 13
parts. Parls 9 and 10 only v ere sent to the War Depa tment
for their decoding and min - translation. The full 12 parts
were ready tor distribution in the Navy Department by
9:00 p.at.

Tokvo delaved the trans nission of the full messaze by
withholding Part 11 until ¢ wly Sunday morning. Thi: indi-
cales the care which the ] .panese exercised throughhut in
their endeavor to keep thei intentions sceret until tle last
possible moment.

Large sections of the 13- art message were devotell to a
review of the diplomatic nc gotiations as scen through Japa-
nese eyves, These were writt-n for history, and have nc other
effective significance. Howey 21, cortain extracts of the 1P parts
received on Saturday unmis akably indicated that they were
part of « Decluration of War These are quoted herewitli:

Tokyo to  Embassy, \Vishinglon, December 6, 1941
(£902:

(PART 2 OF 1.1)

HOWEVER, BOTH TIIE UNTED STATES AND GREAT BAITAIN
HAVE RESORTED TO EVERY I JSSIBLE MEASURE TO ASSIST TIE
CHUNGKING REGIME SO AS 1T OBSTRUCT TIIE ESTABLIST MENT
OF A GENERAL PEACE BETWIEN JAPAN AND CIINA. INTI RFER-
ING WITHL JAPAN'S CONSTRUZTIVE ENDEAVORS TOWARI« THE
STABILIZATION OF EAST AS)4, EXERTING PRESSURE O TIE
NETHERLANDS EAST  INDIES  OR MENACING FRENCII  INDO-
CHINA, THEY HAVE ATTEMPT 5D TO FRUSTRATE JAPAN'S ASPIRA-
TIONS 1O HEALIZE THE IDEA] OF COMMON PROSPERITY N CO-
OPERATION WIFIL THESE REGI INS. FURTHERMORE, WIHEN | APAN,
IN AGCONDANCE WITH ITS PROTOCOL WITIL FRANCE, TOOK
MEASURES OF JOINT DEFENSE WITIHI FRENCIL INDO-CIINA, BOTI
THE, AMERICAN AND BRITISI GOVERNMENTS WILLFULL " MIS-
INTERPRETED [T 1S A THREAT TO THEIR POSSESSIONS A <D IN-
DUCING TIE NETHERLANDS GOVERNMENT TO FOLLOW SUIT,
THEY ENFORCED THE ASSET- TREEZING ORDER, TIIUS $SEVERING
ECONOMIC RELATIONS WITH APAN. WIHILE MANIFESTINC THUS
AN OBVIOUSLY HOSTILE AT ITUDE, THESE COUNTRIES HAVE
STRENGTHENED THEIR MILI ALY PREPANATIONS PERFI CTING
AN ENCIRCLEMENT OF JAPA'i, AND BROUGHT ABOUT A SITUA-
TION WHICH ENDANGERS TIE VERY EXISTENCE OF TIIE EM PIRE,”
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(PART 9 OF 14)

“THE AMERICAN GOVERNMENT, OBSESSED WITH ITS OWN
VIEWS AND OPINIONS, MAY BE SAID TO B SCIIEMING FOR TIHE
EXTENSION OF THE WAR. WHILE IT SEEKS, ON TIE ONE IIAND,
TO SECURE ITS REAR BY STABILIZING TIIF. PACIFIC AREA, IT IS
ENGAGED, ON TIIE OTIIER IIAND, IN AIDING GREAT BRITAIN AND
PREPARING TO ATTACK, IN TIIE NAME OF SELF DEFENSE, GER-
MANY AND ITALY, TWO POWERS THAT ARE STRIVING TO ESTAB-
LISIT A NEW ORDER IN EUROPE. . . . IT IS EXERCISING IN CON-
JUNCTION WITII GREAT BRITAIN AND OTHER NATIONS, PRES-
SURE BY ECONOMIC POWER. RECOURSE 10 SUCH PRESSURE AS
THE MEANS OF DEALING WITH INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS
SHOULD BE CONDEMNED AS IT IS AT TIMES MORE INIIUMAN
TIIAN MILITARY PRESSURE.”

(PART 10 OF 14)

“. « « IX IS A FACT OF IIISTORY TIIAT COUNTRIES OF EAST
ASTA FOR TIIE PAST IIUNDRED YEARS OR MORE IIAVE BIEN
COMPELLED TO OBSERVE THE STATUS QUO UNDER TIIE ANGLO~
AMERICAN POLICY OF IMPERIALISTIC EXPLOITATION AND TO
SACRIFICE TIIEMSELVES TO TIIE PROSPERITY OF TIE TWQO NA-
TIONS. TIIE JAPANESE GOVERNMENT CANNOT TOLERATE TIIE

2

PERPETUATION OF SUCH A SITUATION, . . .

(PART 13 OF 14)

. THE (American) PROPOSAL MENACES TIIE EMPIRES
EXISTENCE ITSELF AND DISPARAGES ITS HONOR AND PRESTICE.
THEREFORE, VIEWED IN ITS ENTIRETY, TIIE JAPANESE GOVENN-
MENT REGRETS TIIAT IT CANNOT ACCEPT TIE PROPOSAL AS A

BASIS OF NEGOTIATION. . , .”
(Processed in War and Navy Departments by 9:00 p, M.,
December 6, 1941)

««

The above quotations were filled with fighting words. In
Part 2 and again in Part 13, the United States is accused of
action which threatens the existence of the Empire. In Part 9,
she is charged with the intention to attack Germany and
Italy, and under the Tripartite Treaty, such an attack must
at once bring Japan into the war. Again in the same Part, the
United States is condemned for excrting inhuman economic
pressure upon Japan. In Part 13, all idea of further negotia-
tion is rejected. What could Part 14 add. when it amived, to
Washington’s knowledge of what Japan intended to do? Such
allegations in a communiqué between nations could have only
one meaning—war.

On the witness stand, neither General Marshall nor Admiral
Stark could remember anything concerning his actions or
movements on that Saturday. Although the veil of ignorance
which shrouds their day has never been lifted, a few meager
facts concerning the evening of cach have come to light.

In his last appearance before the Joint Congressional Com-
mittee, the General testified that Mrs. Marshall recalled to
him that they had accepted no social invitations between
November 1 and December 7, because she was convalescing
from an accident in which she had suffered three broken ribs,
He was therefore then convinced that he was at home
throughout that Saturday evening and night. 1lc also positive-
ly stated that he did not see President Roosevelt, that cvening,
nor talk to him on the telephone. This slight improvement of
memory did not extend to his actions during the afternoon.

Captain Krick, U.S.N., the final witness before the Joint
Congressional Committee, reconstructed much of Admiral
Stark’s Saturday evening, The Captain and his wife were the
Starks’ guests at dinner and at the National Theatre. Aftor
the performance, the party returned to the Stark residence,
where the Kricks remained for about 20 minutes.

On that evening, Admiral Stark arrived home about 7:00
P.M., ostensibly from the Navy Department. Before leaving
for the theatre, the Admiral gave a house servant a memoran.
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dum containing the telephone number of the National The-
atre. On his return, the Admiral was informed by the servant
that the White House had called during his absence, and he
went to a study on the second floor, where therc was a private
telephone to the White House. It thus appears that President
Roosevelt and Admiral Stark conversed over the telephone
that Saturday night.

It is impossible to determine from the available evidence
whether the important recipients of Magic saw any of the
individual parts of the long message as these were successive-
ly completed during the afternoon.

According to his later testimony, Colonel Bratton told each
of the recipients when he delivered the Pilot Message that
he would keep in touch with the long Japancse message as
the varions parts became available. That was the natural re-
action of a subordinate to his responsibilities to those seniors
in connection with the receipt of the long-awaited answer to
the American note of November 26.

If Admiral Stark remained in his office until after 6:00
P.M., as it appears that he did, it would be most surprising
if he did not sce many parts of the long message during the
late afternoon. Several of these came to Captain McCollum’s
attention as soon as they were processed, and his professional
training guarantces that he would show them at once to his
immediate senior, Captain Wilkinson, and then to Admiral
Stark and Rear Admiral Turner.

Captain Wilkinson told the Hewitt Investigation on June 5,
1945, that he had scen several of the individual parts of the
message before he left his office at 6:00 p.M. on December
6, 1941. On December 17, 1945, before the Joint Congression-
al Committec he reversed himself and said that he did not
sec any of these during that afternoon. Captain McCollum’s
testimony on this point makes Captain Wilkinson’s first re-
membrance on the witness stand scem the more likely.

There are many arresting teatures connected with the War
and Navy Department’s distribution of the 13-part message
on Saturday night.

Colonel Bratton apparently never had any intention of mak-
ing deliveries to Secrctary Stimson and Generals Marshall,
Gerow and Miles on that night, despite the fact that such
night deliveries were his long-established practice and Gen-
eral Marshall was available at his home. The Colonel left one
copy at the State Department for Secretary Hull, e finally
contacted General Miles by telephone and reported to him
what he had done. The General told him to make the remain-
ing deliveries on Sunday morning.

Colonel Bratton’s handling of the message was most sur-
prising. He told the Joint Congressional Committee that it
was a purely diplomatic message which did not hold Ppartic-
ular significance for the Army, in view of the many such mes-
sages which had previously been reccived—a surprising ap-
praisal by an expericnced intelligence officer, unless he was
repeating the reason which had been given to him, by dirce-
tion of the three Generals, to explain why he was not to make
his usual night deliveries to them on that Saturday. It is not
conccivable that an officer of experience would consider de-
laying the dolivery of such a vitally important message to
the Army Chief of Staff upon his own responsibility.

The Navy Department distribution followed the normal
procedure. Shortly before Commander Kramer left the Navy
Department, he tried to contact Admirals Stark and Turner
by telephone, but was unsuccessful. He commenced his do-
livery round shortly after 9:00 p.v. with the 13 parts of mes-
sage #902. In succession, he delivered copics to the White
House, to Sceretary Knox, and finally to Captain Wilkinson.
The latter was entertaining Brigadier General Miles and
Captain Beardall, and all three officers read the message. The
Commander reported to Captain Wilkinson that he could not
get in contact with Admiral Stark and Rear Admiral Turner.
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The Captain ordered him to make the deliveries to those two
officers on the following forenoon. It is diflicult to understand
why Admiral Stwrk’s servant did not inform the Commander
over the telephone that the Admiral was at the theatre. That
would have enabled him to deliver the Admiral’s copy at about
11:30 par.

Belore Captain Beardall. the Previ-tent’s Aide. Teft the Navy
Department at about 3:30 par. he knew that the 1-E-part
message was coming in. e consequently ordered Licutenant
Schultz to wait in a small office near the White House mail
room for the delivery of this Magic. When Licutenant Schulte
gave the message to President Roosevelt, he was in his stady
with Mr. Tlopkins. After reading the 13 pagts, he looked up
and said, “This means war.” He wanted to dget Admiral Stark
on the telephone but was told that the Admiral was at the
theatre. There was no mention of any other telephone call.
Nothing was said about @ warning to the Fleat during the time
that Licutenant Schultz was with the President.

We have seen that President Roosevelt almost certainly
talked with Admiral Stark alter the latler’s retwrn frowo the
theatre. It is significant that President Roosevelt, having just
read a message which to him meant war, gave the Admiral no
orders to send a warning to the Hlowadian Commanders, He
considered it necessary to send a message on November 26,
when the American note, terminating the Washington nego-
tiations. was handed to the Japanese Ambassadors. Why did
he not order a similar message to be seut when he had definite
proof that the American note had Toreed Japan to war? What
more positive proof canld there e that he did not want Ad-
miral Kimme! and General Short to be forewarned on that
Saturday night?

The most arresting feature of the nou-dalivery of the 13-
part message to Cenerals Marshall and Gerow and Admirals
Stark and Tummer was the fact that these were the ouly four
officers in the War aund Nuvy Departments combined, who
were authorized to send messages o the outlving commands,
which contained evalunations of Japauese intentions.

In that connection. it must be noted that Brigadier General
Miles ordered Colonel Bratton to delay the delivery of the
13-part message to General Marshall and Brigadier Ceneral
Gerow until Sundayv moring, and that Captain Wilkinson
gave an identical order to Commander Kiamer concerning
the deliveries to Admiral Stark and Rewr Admiral Turner.
There are only two possible explanations that are conceivable
from a military standpoint. Either the Direetors of Military
and Naval Intelligence knew that the four officers in guestion
had already seen the significant parts of thit message or they
had previoushy been instructed that those seniors did not want
to be given the message on that Saturday night. Otherwise. a
message which “meant war”™ to the President of the United
States was withheld from the Chict of St of the Annv and
the Chief of Naval Operations solely upon the initidive ol
their subordinates. Such decisions on the same night by two
juniors, no matter what their rank, would be one of the wmaz-
ing happenings of military history—so amazing as to he al-
most unbelievable.

With no actual knowledge ot the movements obf General
Marshall and Admira) Stark. it will never be known whether
or not they conferred with the President during that alter-
noon. It would be most surprising il they did not. With the
knowledge that the Japanese Declaration of War was about
to be received. the Chiel Exccutive would surely want to
mect with the Heads of his Army and Navy. The late Satur-
day-night telephone conversation between the President und
Admiral Stark. after the former had seen the Japanese com-
munication, probably added uothing to what had already been
said carlier in the day.

It is impossible to avoid the conclusion that the top officers
of the Army and Navy in Washington avoided the formal de-
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livery to them of the Japanes: [3-part messiage on Satu-day
evening and night. It could I ter be most difficult to exHlain
to a wondering country why the outlving commands were not
informed. There is a handy rcason {or every human decision.
In this case. their subordinates conld be told that they vere
fully conversant with the diple matic sitnation—an ungues tion-
able fact--and the delivery of one more Japanese diplonatic
disputch was therelore nnnecessary on that night.

And so that last critical da - passed and no word was sent
to the Hawaiian Commander . The Asiatic Commander:, on
the other hand, through their Deervpting Unit on Corregidor,
knew evervthing about the dtuation that Washington did.
A nation. on the verge of war : nd fucing a surprise attack 1pon
its main eet, and no last minu e warning Lo the Commanc er of
that Fleet! A unique happeni g without parallel in histo y!

In this conncction. there vas an interesting happening in
the Commandant’s office of tie Pearl Harbor Navy Yard, on
the afternoon of December 9 1941, Seerctary Knox an 1 his
Aide. Captain Beatty, had flovn to Pear] Harbor immed: ately
after the wttack, and these tvo, Admiral Kimmel, Reawr Ad-
miral Bloch. and the writer were preseut while facts conn wcted
with the surprise attack were under discussion. Suddenly, the
Seerctary turned 1o Admiral Kimmel, and asked. “But swhat
happened to the dispateh we sent you from Washingtcn on
the night of December 6027 Admiral Kimmel replied that he
had received no such message either before or after the a tack.
I evident surprise, the Seeretary turned to Captain Beat v for
corroboration or explanation. Momentarily, the Captain® [ace
was a study in dismay. e vas so overcome with confusion
that he never did answer the Seeretary’s question. Why? He
obviously knew that no message had been sent to A miral
Kimmel by the Washington authoritics on December 3. As
Aide to the Seeretary, the Captain was in a position tc pick
up many of the inside happ mings. Did he know abott the
almast complete denial of infarmation to the Hawaiian Com-
manders. while the Purple machine and the Deerypting Unit
on Corregidor were keeping he Asiatic Commuanders in com-
plete touch with the develop ag political situation? Or was he
merely embarrassed because his boss had trodden so clhse to
undesirable disclosures as fa as Washington was conccrned?
We will never know, but sue’t embarrassment on the pa t of a
senior officer is an unusual happening, especially on th» part
of one who knew his way around as well as did Ciptain
Beatty. Were we close to some very real disclosurer that
Tuesday afternoon?® Tnany ¢ ent, Admiral Kimmel nevcr sue-
ceeded in reopening the episade with the Sceretary.

Sunday, December 7, it Washington

Between 4 aan and 6 a0, the messages whose tests are
sot forth or indicated below were reecived in the Navy De-
partment, where they were ¢ 2eoded and then sent to th: War
Departinent for the complet on of their processing. The later
harelling of this Magic foras part of the narrative of this
eventual day.

The last installment of apanese Message #902, dated
December 7, 1941, read:

(PART 14 OF 14)

“OBVIOUSLY IT 18 THE IN ENTION OF THE AMERICAL! GOV-
ERNMENT 10O CONSPIRE W TH GHEAT BRITAIN AND DTIIER
COUNTRIES TO OBSTHUCT JA 3AN'S EFFORTS TOWARD T IE ES-
TABLISNIMENT OF PEACE THIOUGID THE CREATION OF + NEW
ORDER IN EAST ASIA, AND ISPECIALLY TO PRESERVE ..NGLO-
AMERICAN RIGHTS AND INTERESTS DY KFEPING JATA < AND
CHINA AT WAR. THIS INTENT ON HAS BEEN REVEALED CI EARLY
DURING THE COURSE OF THE 2RESENT NEGOTIATIONS, TII J§ THE
EARNEST HOPE OF THE JA 2ANESE GOVERNMENT TO ADJUST
]AP:\.\'ESE-A}\IF.RICAN RELAT:ONS AND TO PRESERVE AN PRO-
MOTE THE PEACE OF THE PACIFIC TIHROUGII COOPE IATION
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\WITII THE AMERICAN GOVERNMENT ITAS FINALLY BEEN LOST.

“THE JAPANESE GOVERNMENT REGRETS TO IIAVE TO NOTIFY
HEREBY TIIE AMERICAN GOVERNMENT THAT IN VIEW OF THE
ATTITUDE OF TIIE AMERICAN GOVERNMENT IT CAN NOT BUT
CONSIDER TIAT IT IS IMPOSSIBLE TO REACII AN AGREEMENT
IITROUGIT FURTHER NEGOTIATIONS.”

The text of two later dispatches, the first of which was
known as the time-of-delivery message, was as follows:

Tokyo to Embassy, Washington, December 7, 1941 (#907):
“VERY ITMPORTANT. RE MY #902. wWILL TIE AMBASSADORS
PLEASE SUBMIT TO TIIE UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT (IF POS-
SIBLE TO TITE SECRETARY OF STATE) OUR REPLY TO TIIE UNITED
STATES AT 1:00 ».M. ON TIE 7TII, YOUR TIME.”

Tokyo to Embassy, Washington, December 7, 1941 (#910):
“AFTER DECIPHERING PART 14 oF My #902 AND ALSO MY
#907, #908, anxp #C09, PLEASE DESTROY AT ONCE TUFE RE-
ATAINING CIPITER MACHINE AND ALL MACIINE CODES. DISPOSE
IN LIKE MANNER ALL SECRET DOCUMENTS.”

Dispatches #908 and #909 contained messages of com-
mendation for the Ambassadors and the members of the
Embassy staff, respectively, and thus clearly indicated that
their work in Washington was finished, a fact which was
confirmed by the complete destruction of codes and sceret
documents ordered in Message #910.

Some officers, later on the witness stand, maintained that
Tokyo Message #902 was not necessarily a Declaration of
War. This argument is difficult to understand. Part 14 fully
sustained the belligerent tonc of the most significant parts
of the message reccived on Saturday. What could Japan
have meant when she said to the United States that she had
finally lost all hope of prescrving peace in the Pacific and
she considered further negotiations tutile? What could the
carefully timed delivery of the message have meant but war?
What possible purpose could there have been behind such
timing of a mere interruption of diplomatic relations? Further-
more, most of the officers in question were recipients of Magic,
and knew on November 28 from Tokyo Dispatch #844 that
the Japanese regarded the Washington conference as a com-
plete failure, and that Tokyo had told the Consul General in
IHong Kong on November 14 that such failure meant war with
the Anglo-Saxon powers. It is remarkable how often important
witnesses overlooked or forgot vital items of information
which should have been indelibly impressed upon their minds,
because that information was associated with tremendous
events in which those witnesses were very prominent actors.

The last warning to the Japanese posts in Canada, Cuba,
and the United States was the following message in the
Hidden Words Code sct up by Tokyo Circular #2409
(Chapter 6):

Tokyo to Consul General, Panama, December 7, 1941
(Circular # 2494): URGENT 92494 “KOYANAGI” RIJIYORI SEIRINO-
TUGOO ARUNITUKI “HATTORI” “MINAMI’ KIENBUNKO SETURITU
K'KINO KYOKAINGAKU SIKYUU DENPOO ARITASS §T O P—TOGO.

Di-tribution: Minister, Ottawa; and the following con-
sulates: Panama; Havana; Honolulu; New York; Vancouver;
San Francisco; Portland, Oregon; Secattle; New Orleans;
Chicago; Los Angeles.

(Decoded in the Navy Department, by 10:00 a.m.,

December 7, 1941)

The significant words are within quotes above, and the
translation reads: “Relations between Japan and England
and the United States are not in accordance with expectation.”
It is interesting to note the use of the code word hattori,
as late as December 7, instead of cither: kashiwagi, “we are

commencing military action against . . . . . .. .00
hatakeyama, “relations between Japan and . .

have been severed.” This last attempt at deceptlon could not
then have had any effect upon the recipients of Magic.

When the meaning of this message was reported to the
President and others, on the morning of December 7, the sig-
nificance of minami was overlooked, and as a result, this mes-
sage appeared to refer only to Anglo-Japanese relations. This
oversight, however, was immaterial as Washington then had
ample evidence that Japan also intended war upon the
United States.

It would be natural to cxpect that Admiral Stark and
General Marshall would arrive in their offices very early on
that Sunday morning. No matter what they had been told
on Saturday, they would want to see the full reply to the
American note of November 26, whose arrival was foretold
by the Pilot Message, as soon as possible. They would want
to be available and ready for any immediate action which
might become nccessary. Furthermore, Sunday was recog-
nized as thie most critical day of the week during highly
strained reiations with one of the Axis powers.

Admiral Stark arrived in his office at 9:25 a.M. and was
immediately shown the full 14-part message, which had been
available in the Navy Department for an hour. Captain
Wilkinson then recommended that a warning be sent to the
Pacific Fleet, but the Admiral did not consider that necessary.
Even when he was shown the time-of-delivery message, at
about 10:20, and was again advised to inform Admiral
Kimmel of the implications of the situation, he still adhered
to his dccision of silence.

By 11:00 a.m., the Navy Department’s distribution of all
the Japaucse dispatches received during that Sunday fore-
noon and of all available other Magic had been completed.
President Roosevelt received his deliveries as promptly as did
Admiral Stark. After the President’s personal intercst in a
message to the Pacific Commands on November 26, his
silence on that subject when faced with the significant mes-
sages of December 6 and 7, which mcant to him that war had
arrived, must again be noted.

Nothing that had come to General Marshall’s attention on
Saturday, or prior thereto, caused him to vary his normal
Sunday routine on that fatetul December 7. He started the
day with his usual Sunday-morning horseback ride through
the Virginia countryside.

Colonel Bratton reccived the War Department copics of
Part 14 of the long message shortly after 8:30 a.m., and of
the time-of-delivery dispatch about 9:00 a.m. Convinced that
the latter meant a Japanesc surprise attack somewhere m the
Pacific, at or about 1:00 p.M., Washington time, he immedi-
ately attempted to get in touch with General Marshall. Un-
able to do so on account of the morning ride, he instructed the
General’s orderly that he had an urgent message that the
General should see as soon as possible. The orderly said he
would start at once in search of the General, as he knew
where he usually rode. The General called the Colonel at
10:25, but did not want the messages brought to his quarters,
as he was leaving shortly for the War Department, and would
see them therc after his arrival. General Marshall reached his
officc at 11:25.

Generals Gerow and Miles and Colonel Bratton followed
the Chief of Staff into his office. The latter immediately com-
menced to read the 14-part message, a copy of ‘which was
lying on his desk. Colonel Bratton tricd to show him the far
more important time-of-delivery message, but the General
would not be diverted until he had completed his perusal of
the long message. And time was fleeting!

When the General finally saw the other message, all the
officers present agreed that it indicated a Japanese attack
upon U.S. Forces somewhere in the Pacific, at or about
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1:00 p.ar. What a time to reach that conclusion! Three hours
sooner would have given time for a real air defense of Pearl
Iarbor, with all planes in the aiv instead of being grouped
closely togethier on the ground wuaiting for the slaughter.

The General then drafted a message to the Commanding
Generals, U.S. Forces in the Far East, Caribbean Defense
Command. Hawaiian Department. and Fourth Army, [t read:
“IAPANESE ARE PRESENTING AT ONE I*M. EANTERN TIME TODAY
WHAT AMOUNTS TO AN ULTIMATUM. ALSO THEY ARE UNDER
ORDLERS TO DESTROY THEIR CODE MACHINES IMMEDIALELY, JUST
WIHAT SIGNIFICANCE THE HOUR $ET MAY HAVE WE DO NOT ANOW
BUT BE ON THE ALERT ACCORDINGLY. INFORAM NAVAL AUTTIORI-
TIES OF THIS COMMUNICATION. MaBRsSHALL.

The General telephoned Admiral Stk that he was doing
this, and ashed if the Navy desived its Commanders in-
cluded for information. At first, the Admira) said that he did
not consider that to be necessary, but aheost immediately,
called back and asked that the Naval Commanders be so
included.

The message was ready tor encoding at 11:538 an It was
sent by Western Union to San Franasco, wnd by RCA com-
merctal radio to Honolulu. 1t reachied General Short's head-
quarters six hours atter the Japanese attack. wnd Admiral
hanmel had it two howrs later.

It General Marshall had used the trans Yacific telephone,
General Short and Admiral Kimmel would probably have
had the message thirty or forty minutes before the attack
began, That would have had dittle, it any, eflect, Probably
the only improsvement that coutd have been made over the
conditions which actually existed would have been that the
crews of the ships would have been at their hattle stations
betore the attack, which would have increased the anti-
aeraft five during the first {ifteen minutes of the bombing.
There would not have heen sufficient time to man the
planes, warm them up, and get them in the air. Nor could
the mobile Army anti-aiveraft batteries have reached their
assigned positions at Peart Harbor,

It was later explained that General Marshall did not use
the trans-Pacific telephone with the scrambler attachment
because the Army Communications experts did not consider
that method sufficiently sccure lor such a message, This is
diflicult to understand, President Roosevelt and Prime Min-
ister Churchill, during those times, talked to cach other over
the trans-Atantic telephone, and guarded ws their conversu-
tions undoubtedly were, much that they said was certainly
not for German or Jupancse vars.

The actions of Admiral Stark and General Marshall, on
that Sunday morning, scem astounding, The final denial of
information o the Thwaiian Commanders by the Washing-
ton authorities was an amazing happening, but judgment on
Stark and Marshall should be reserved until the Tundamental
{acts of the case can be reviewed and analyzed. Henee the
following attempt at simple rationalization.

liveryone in Washington and  London, acquainted  with
Magic, was convineed that Japan wounld itiate war with
the Anglo-Saxon nations on that day. The British Govern-
ment had so informed the Hungarian Government the das
before. It was no accident that M. Churchill had Ambassa-
dor Winant and Mr. Averell Thurman as his guests at his
country home when he received word ol the Pearl Harbor
attack. President Roosevelt, Admiral Stk and General Mar-
shall were as conversint with the situation as was the British
Prime Minister.

Adiniral Stark arrived at his oflice decidedly too late for a
day carmarked for such momentous events. That tardiness,
however. made no difference. Onee there, he twice refused
to send any word to Hawaii: at 9:23, when faced with «
message that meant war to the President and which Tater
was an ultimatum to the Army Chief of Stafl; at 10:20,

when handed the time-of-d divery message which strongly
indicated a surprise attack 01 the Pacific Fleet in Hav dtan
waters to ]l those who were familiar with Japanese m: lifary
history.

General Marshall held hinsell incommunicado, and thus
avoided the formal delivery o him of the declaration o2 war
and time-of-delivery messages until he reached his off ce at
11:23, too late for cflective action. .

U the significant meaning i these messages had beer sent
o the Hawaiian Commandens between 9:00 and 10:00 aa,
Washington time, three to tiur hours before the attacs, by
Navy radio or trans-Pacific clephone, the reception ol the
Jupanese attuck would have been a far different affair The
Army and  Navy anliwiverait batteries would have been
ready for action and, far more important, the defensi-e air
forces wouid have been in tac air. Very few, if any, f the
large ships would have beey able to clear the harbo, but
win lighter protection, the osses would have been reduced
tremendously.

Itis scems to say that it Admiral Stark had sent sich a
disputch soon after hie saw  he long message, or it Grneral
Muarshall bad arrived at his oftice at 9:00 a.ag, had secn the
two messages which Colonel Bratton had for him at the tume,
and had reacted as he did . fer 11:25, the Japanese *vould
have had a far less successfi] morning at Pears Harbo.. But
the rationulization bas not et been carried far enouh to
pernuit of any final conclus ons,

1t the warning message 1d been sent to the L -aifan
Commanders, three hours scfore the attack, pictur: the
Ivand of Oahu, commencirg at 4:30 aar—telepnone mes-
sages recalling personnel trcm their homes passing th ough
centrals containing a4 goodl:  percentage of Jupanese oper-
ators; roads to Pearl Harbe e dilled with Army guns, troo
trucks, and other impedin enta; all roads crowded with
officers and men returning o their stations; intensive aitivity
at every Anmy post and Naval station; plane engines roaring
al every Air station; ships  aising steam and testing salety
vitlves. The Jupanese spies wsuld have appreciated the nean-
ing at once, and would have flushed the word to the Acmural
in Command of the attack ug torces. With all charce of
surprise gone, the decision might well have been to ancel
the attack.®

And the possibility of causing the cancellution f the
surprise attack mnst have boen the sole reason for not send-
ing word to Ilawaii ou that Sunday morning. One short

° The Japanese had no intent u of attacking a nest from which
the birds had lown, Conseque atly, their plans provided an cighit-
signal code by which their esp onage agents in Hawaii coubl have
transmitted word to the Attack Force Comnuander, if all or mpor-
tane parts of the U S, Fleet aad suddenly departed from Pearl
Harbor in the days immediate y preceding Sunday, Decen ber 7.
This system of connnuuteation was based upon periscope ol serva-
tion ot three designated shore ositions and the use of the 1 dio of
the submarines. The three shors positions were located on Ianikai
Ba, and in Kemala village—aoout one wile apart upon tle cust
coist of Ouhi—and on the sou hern slopes of Maui. For the night
signals, house lights were to he ve been used at the two Oab 1 posi-
tions and a bonfire on Maui. T1 ¢ night signals were to be dis dlayed
tor one hour. Each signal of th2 code was numbered, and th ¢ hour
ol the night selected at cach osition for showing the ligh s con-
veved e signal number and its associated imcaning to the we tching
wibniarine. During the day, tie use of shapes displayed 1 pon a
Star Boat, anchored in Lunik i Bay, would transmit the signal
nunmbers, The communication : etup also provided for radio cports
to the Japanese naval forces, wiich were to be accomplished by the
wording of pre-wrranged fake  dvertisements inserted in the Want
Ad broadeasts. which were a n ghtly part of the programs of Hono-
lulu Station VKGMIG.

The foregoing is a bricf par: phrase of Honelulu Consul Ceneral
Kita's dispatch to Tokyo #24, dated December 3, 1941, This in-
formation was not available ty the U, S. authoritics prior to the
Pear] Harbor attick, as it was 1 ot decoded in the Navy Dep: chinent
until December 11, 1941,
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diggratch would not have increased the chance that the Japa-
nise would deduce that their codes had been compromised—
the Japanese Commander’s reaction to the loss of the element
of surprise would most probably have been that his force
had been sighted, sometime during the night. One short
definite dispatch would not have unduly overloaded the
Washington-Pearl Harbor circuit, nor have confused Ad-
miral Kimmel. The two principal Army and Navy reasons,
later offered in explanation of the months of denial of infor-
mation to Hawaii, therefore, could not possibly apply to the
denial during the forenoon of Sunday, December 7.

Another astonishing feature connected with this last denial
was that the time-of-delivery message definitely established
that Pear] Harbor would be the scene of the attack. Added to
the carlier evidence, there was no other plausible deduction.
We have seen that there were only two attractive objectives

—~Wide World

WASHINGTON SCENE, DEC. 7, 1941

In the back yard of the Japanese Embassy,
a diplomat watches as documents are burned

for a Japanese surprise attack in the Pacific—the Fleet in Pearl
Harbor and the Panama Canal. One o’clock in Washington
was noon in Panama. On the other hand, it was 7:30 in
Hawaii, the exact time that the planes would reach their
objectives, based upon the assumption of a launching area
about 150 miles from Pearl Harbor and a morning twilight
take-off. Furthermore, 7:30 was the time that the crews of
American ships were habitually piped to breakfast. An attack
upon Pearl Harbor, shortly after that time, would thus con-
form in every particular to the accepted technique of those
days for a surprise attack by carrier-based planes.

To deliver a mid-day attack on Panama, the carriers would
have had to advance to the launching area during six hours
of daylight through the crowded focal waters of the western
approaches to the Canal—an operation that would never be
considered in connection with a surprise attack.

It is difficult to believe that these inescapable facts were
completely overlooked in the continuous conference in Ad-
miral Stark’s office during that forenoon.

There was never any military reason for preserving to the
Japanese the opportunity of a surprise attack through the
denial of information to the Hawaiian Commanders. Free to
act, it is an absolute certainty that both Admiral Stark and
General Marshall would have done everything in their power
to prevent such an attack. And yet, on the morning of Decem-
ber 7, Washington refused to send one short message to
Hawaii in time to cushion the cffects of the Japanese attack!

That is the most revealing fact of the entire Pearl Harbor
story. There is only one conceivable reason for it—nothing
must be done to prejudice the chances of the attack, even at
the last moment. Japan was about to bring war to the United
State, and President Roosevelt did not intend that any Ameri-
can action should cause them to change their plans at the
last minute.

It may surprise the reader to be told that none of this
reasoning is intended as criticism of the principal actors.

General Marshall and Admiral Stark, as heads of the Army
and Navy, could do nothing throughout but obey the orders
of the Nation’s Commander-in-Chief, unless they preferred
to ask to be relieved from their posts of duty. In that case,
it would have devolved upon their successors to carmry out
the orders. In this connection, it must be understood that
officers of the Army and Navy are trained throughout their
professional lives to obey implicitly every lawful order, no
matter how distastetul it may be to them. Rigid adherence to
this maxim is vital to that cohesion of action which is the
primary requisite of the military art.

Those untutored in the demands of war will undoubtedly
be shocked at the thought of deliberately accepting the ship
and personnel losses that a surprise attack was certain to en-
tail. That viewpoint loses sight of the fact that armics and
navies exist to perform any action demanded of them in the
interests of their country. During the British evacuation at
Dunkirk, Prime Minister Churchill had orders issued to the
garrison at Calais to hold that position to the last man. That
meant that every man was to give his life in that defense. The
Churchill memairs tell how soul-trying that decision was for
him. But an carly crumbling of the southern flank would
have meant a far greater loss of life on the beaches at Dun-
kirk. It is an incscapable fact that the Commander in war
is dealing with human lives. His great responsibility is to ex-
pend them to the best advantage. A bratal thought, but one
of the fundamental facts of war!

The Pearl Harbor attack brought a thoroughly aroused
United States into the war, and thereby assured the complete
defeat of the Axis powers. The isolationism which then
gripped the country would always have been a strong deter-
rent to a Congressional declaration of war. Also, such an
initiation of the war would have badly handicapped the later
national effort, due to the divided sentiments of the people
regarding the necessity for fighting. If this is a fair appraisal
of President Roosevelt’s line of reasoning, as it seems to be,
his decision to entice the Japanese to deliver a surprise attack
upon the Fleet in Pear] Harbor must be accepted as thor-
oughly sound from his standpoint, despite the losses which re-
sulted.®

# Althongh the following anecdote is recoguized as completely
hearsay, it is included here because when it was told to this writer,
he had no thought of attempting to write this story, and because
the simple and sincere manner of its telling was most convincing.

During the writer's tenure of duty as the Commandant of the
First Naval District, in the latc days of World War II, a leading
doctor of Boston told him that, on December 7, 1941, a prominent
American, very close to the Roosevelt administration, entered a
Boston hospital (The New England Baptist) for an operation on
the following day. Early the next morning, under the influence of
})rc—opcrational medication, he suddenly attempted to get out of
hed, exclaiming, “I have to get out of here. Everything happened
just as we expected, but our losses were terrible.”
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PART Il

!

Chapten 10

THE TRUE STORY
WAS NOT FOR
PUBLIC KNOWLEDGE

Dum.\'c 1944, the Pearl Harbor secret hecame very im-
portant politically, This was so because Mr. Rooscvelt
was seeking his fourth clection to the Presidency, and Mr.
John T. Flynn's pamphlet, The Truth About Pearl Harbor,
had encouraged the Republicans to seek the political ad-
vantages to be gained by agitating the subject s much as
possible, while the Democrats used every conceivable strat-
agem to suppress it. They wanted the subject kept quiescent
until after the national elections at least. and until the end of
the war, if possible. A Congressional Investigation of Pearl
Harbor was always inevitable, hut this would necessarilv be
a public affair whose developments were not casy to foresee,
so the Democratic board of strategy sought by every con-
ceivable means to postpone it as long as possible.

Their delaying tactics to that end were: (1) the Congres-
sional Act which ordered the two Service inquiries; (2) the
Marshall letters to forestall the use of the Pearl Harbor story
by Governor Dewey during his election campaign; (3) the
use of Republican members of the House Naval Aflairs
Committee to prevent any move of their party for a Con-
gressional Pearl Harbor investigation during the continuance
of the war.

The Act of Congress Which Directed
the Two Service Inquiries

On June 13, 1944, the President approved an Act of Con-
gress that ordered the Scerctaries of War and Navy to in-
vestigate the Pearl Ilurbor attack (Chapter 12). This was the
first important step to prevent a public inquiry into the matter
at that time, and the Democratic-controlled Congress had
significantly taken that action. For, there was little prospect
that a Congressional investigation would be ordered while the
Service ingniries were in session. and those nquiries were
held behind closed doors. The public received no inkline of
the results of these seeret inquiries until August 29, 1945,
when the Secrctaries of War and Navy simultanconsly issned
very meager statements of the findings and opinions of the
two investigations, which carried no suggestion ot the true
Pearl Harbor story,

The reason given for the Congressional Act was that it was
conceived to forestall the statute of limitations. which after
December 7, 1944, would prevent the court<martial trials of
officers of the Army and Navy believed to be guilty of serious
derclictions of duty. Many members of Congmss undoubtedly
voted for the Act for that reason, but those interested in pre-
serving the Pearl [lurbor seccret, the Demacratic board of
strategy, would never willingly have seen any officer brought
to trial by General Court-Martial. The rights of the defense
in such a trial would always have given an astute lawver the
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opportunity to break the Pcarl Harbor story wide ofan—a
risk that President Roosevel and his close advisers -ould
always want to avoid, if at al possible.

General Marshall’s Lettirs to Governor Dewe'/

During the last two mont s of the Presidential cam aign
of 1944, there were persister t rumors that Governor Dawey
planned to use one of his «losing speeches to make some
dramatic disclosures concert ing the Pearl Iarbor disster.
As the repetition of the milit: rv-naval features of that ¢ efeat
could then have no decisive solitical effects, this could only
mean that he intended to est blish President Roosevelt's per-
sonal share in the responsibi ity for that event.

The method used by the members of the Demoiratic
board of strategy to prevent the Republican candidate from
taking this action evidenced their serious concern rega ding
what could have been said al out the President in connc =tion
with Pearl Harbor. The wart. me prestige of the Comm: nder
of the Army was utilized to st p Governor Dewey from Lring-
ing the Pear] Harbor story intc the campaign.

General Marshall wrote tw letters to the Republican can-
didate on this subject. The st of these was delivered in
Oklahoma City by a trusted messenger, and requestec the
recipicnt not to read beyvond the first page, unless he d d so
with the understanding that he would maintain secrec # re-
garding the letter and its conents. Governor Dewey refused
to be blindly bound by such a stipulation and returnec the
letter with its significant pages unread.

The General then wrote a second letter, which mad> no
attempt to hind the Governor to seereey regarding it. The
salient features of this letter vere: (1) Governor Dewey was
requested not to use the Pear arbor story during the :am-
paigu. as this action would 3¢ detrimental to the nation’s
war offort; (2) it stated thet Adiniral King had scen the
letter, and fully agreed; (3) n place of the former rec uost
for seereey, it said that President Roosevelt had no knowl «dge
ot the letter.

It can. at vnce, be scen that this letter was the most drastic
means that could be emploved at the time to suppress the
story. To disregard such advi e from these officers coull be
treading dangerously close to he path of dislovalty. And that
was the view that Governor Jewev took. He told his ram-
paign manager that, no matter what he might think of the
opinion, a private citizen mus: accept it from such a so nce
in time of war.

A bricf analysis of the letter proves most interesting.

When the Commanders of he Army and the Navy azree
that o particular action will harm the nation’s war ef ‘ort,
they must ey that, cgrtygy: military aspects will be ad-
versely affected, because th: military is their particular
province. As there was no reison for secrecy regarding the
Amecrican strategy or tactics ¢t Pear]l Harbor, the only :aili-
tary features whose public d'scussion might alfect the war
efflort were: the American na-al losses; the breaking of the
Japunese codes.

By 1944, the Amecrican losses at Pearl Harbor had ong
ceased to affeet the Pacific ojierations. Our Navy was -hen
immeasurably superior to that of Japan, and our forces vsere
everywhere on the offensive i1 the Pacific war.

. ¥ (ORT, ril 2, 195
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It would be no news to Japan to learn that her codes had
been broken before Pearl Harbor, Washington had two inter-
cepted dispatches in April, 1941, from Berlin to Tokyo stat-

_ing that the United States was reading the Japanese mcs-

sages. In July, 1942, the Chicago Tribune carried a fea-
ture article which attributed the American victory at Midway
to the breaking of the Japanese codes. Our high command
soon had unmistakable evidence that this information had
reached Tokyo. So, one more reference to broken Japanese
codes could cause no concern to General Marshall and Ad-
miral King in the last year of the war.

In 1944, therefore, there was no military necessity for the
suppressing of the Pearl Harbor story, unless the two Com-
manders meant that the defeat of President Roosevelt would
adversely affect the nation’s war effort. If that was what was
meant, a more forthright approach would have been to ask
Covernor Dewey to withdraw from the campaign.

The statement that President Roosevclt did not know of
the letter was its most arresting feature. The Democratic
hoard of strategy clearly recognized the political risk which
the letter represented, and were doing what they could to
minimize that risk. If Governor Dewey refused to be de-
terred by the letter, and not only told his version of the
Pearl Harbor story, but also of the reccipt of this letter,
the written communication could become a terrific political
boomerang.

President Roosevelt was a consummate politician, and no
important step in his political campaigns was ever taken with-
out his knowledge and consent. It is inconceivable that the
strategy employed to stop Governor Dewcy’s usc of the
Pearl Harbor story, with its attendant risks, was undertaken
without the President’s approval of its general features. It is
equally certain that General Marshall who saw the President
almost daily, would not consider taking such a dangerous
political step entirely upon his own responsibility. He would
make sure in advance that his contemplated action had the
approval of the Democratic board of strategy.

We can therefore conclude that President Roosevelt ap-
proved the broad plan to stop Governor Dewey on the Pearl
Harbor story, but that the detailed method of approach to
the Governor was concocted by the General in confercnce
with the President’s principal campaign advisers. Thus, it
could have been literally true that President Roosevelt did
not know of the letter.

This was an important step in the campaign to kecp Presi-
dent Roosevelt’s intimate conncction with the Pearl IIarbor
catastrophe from the knowledge of the American public.

Members of the House Naval Affairs Committee
Are Used To Prevent Congressional Investigation
During Continuance of the War

Having preserved the Pearl Harbor secret through most
of 1944, the Democratic board of strategy sought to continue
this security for the story at least until the end of the war.

After the conclusion of the Naval Court of Inquiry and
after the Record of its Proceedings had passed over the desk
of Rear Admiral Thomas L. Gatch, the Judge Advocate Gen-
eral of the Navy, that officer was called into consultation by
Secretary of the Navy Forrestal. The purpose of this con-
ference was to consider ways and means of preventing a Con-
gressional Investigation until after the war. Admiral Gatch
suggested that this could best be accomplished by enlisting
the help of influential Republican Congressmen. The choice
of these was left to the Admiral, and he selected the following
three members of the House Naval Affairs Committee: Bates
of Massachusetts, Maas of Minnesota, and Mott of Oregon.
Mr. Maas could not be present when the conference was held,
but Admiral Gatch says, “I told Bates and Mott everything

U. 5. NEWS & WORLD R¥BFbved FdfRelease 2005/01/05

that T knew about Pearl Harbor, and I think I knew every-
thing about it, told them why I was telling them, and told
them why we couldn’t have an investigation while we were
fighting the Japs, and asked them to head it off.” And they
did, concludes the Admiral.*

The last step in the campaign to keep the true Pearl
Harbor story from public knowledge was the Congressional
Investigation which, as we shall soon sec, successfully main-
tained the secret.

* This incident fivst came to the author’s attention because he de-
livered an address before the Salem Marine Society, shortly after
the end of the war, sctting forth his ideas concerning what hap-
pened in Washington in connection with the Japanese attack. The
Jate Congrossman George Bates was present, and after the talk,
stated that he had heard the same recital from Admiral Gatch, and
the two accounts were in remarkably close agreement.

Chapter 17

THE WINDS CODE
AND ITS EXECUTE*

TIIE Winds episode never would have attained the im-
portance which it acquired in the Pearl Harbor story, if it
were not for the changes of testimony and other incidents
concerning it which developed mainly during the Ilewitt
Inquiry, and the undue emphasis given to it in the Congres-
sional Investigation—as discussed in this chapter.

Once Washington and London knew, from the Tokyo dis-
patches of December 1 and 2, 1941 (Tokyo Circular #2444
and Tokyo dispatch to Embassy, Washington #867, Chapter
6), that the Japanese diplomatic and consular posts in
American and British territories had been ordered to destroy
their codes and sccret files, no further evidence was nceded to
convince the two Anglo-Saxon Governments that Japan was
on the verge of initiating the war. The receipt of the Winds
cxecute on December 4 was thus merely additional corrobo-
ration that Japan so intended.

Prior to the Hewitt Inquiry, the testimony unquestionably
established that a Winds exccute, involving the United States,
was received in the Navy Department on December 4, 1941.
In fact, the authenticity of that execute was not challenged
until much later, and during the three days intervening be-
fore the attack, there was nothing to detract from its value
as corroborative intelligence. From the purely military stand-
point, that is the essential and outstanding fact of the entire
Winds incident.

As already stated in Chapter 6, the Winds and Hidden
Words codes were set up by Tokyo to increase the se-
curity of code-destruction messages to ministries and con-
sulates, which were not equipped to hand the Purple code.
The Hidden Word episode has already been fully discussed.
The Winds code was established by the following two
messages:

Tokyo to Embassy, Washington, November 18, 1941 (Cir-
cular #2353): “REGARDING TIIE BROADCAST OF A SPECIAL MES-
SAGE IN AN EMERGENCY.

“UIN CASE OF EMERGENCY (DANGER OF CUTTING OFF OUR
DIPLOMATIC RELATIONS) AND TIIE CUTTING OF INTERNATIONAL
COMMUNICATIONS, THE FOLLOWING WARNING WILL BE ADDED

* Execute is a technical term which, throughout the discussion of
the Winds episode, mcans the broadcasting of special phrases or
single words in accordance with the procedures proscribed in Cir-
culars #2353 and #2354.
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IN THE MIDDLE OF THE DAILY JAPANESE L[ANCUAGE S1HORT
WAVE NEWS BROADCAST.
“(1) IN CASE OF JAPAN-U.S. RELATIONS: HIGASHI NO KAZFE
AME. °
“(2) JAPAN-U.SS.R. RELATIONS: KITANO KAZE KUMORL ° °
“(3) JAPAN-BRITISH RELATIONS: NISHI NO KAZE HARE. ° ® °
“THIS SIGNAL WILL BE GIVEN IN THI MIDDLE AND AT THE
END OF A WEATHER FORECAST AND FACH SENTENCE WILI, BE
REPEATED TWICE. WIHEN THIS IS HEAND, PLEASE DESTHOY ALL
CODE PAPERS, ETC. TS IS AS YET TO BE A COMPLETELY SECRET
ARRANCGEMENT.
“FORWARD AS URGENT INTELLIGENCE.”
(Decoded in the Navy Department,
November 28, 1941)

It will be noted that there is a definite conflict in these
instructions. The second paragraph savs the warning will be
added in the middle of the broadeast, whereas the last para-
graph of the text savs it will appear in the middle and at
the end.

Tokyo to Embassy, Washington, November 19, 1941 (Cir-
cular #2354); “WHEN OUR DIPLOMATIC RELATIONS ARE BE-
COMING DUNGEROUS, WI WILL ADD THE FOLLOWING AT THE
BEGINNING AND END OF OUN GENENAL INTELLIGENCE BROAD-
CASTS:

“(1) IF IT 1S JAPAN-ULS. RELATIONS. "HIGASHT

“{2) JAPAN-IUSSIA RELATIONS, KITA'

“(3) JAPAN-BRITISIT RELATIONS (INCLUDING THAL MALAYA.
AND N.E.L) ‘NIsHI

“THE ABOVE WILL BE REPEATED FIVE TIMES AND INCLUDED
AT BEGINNING AND END.

“RELAY TO RIO DE JANERIO, BUENOS AINKMN, MEXICO CITY,
SAN FRANCISCO.”

(Decaded in the Navy Department,
November 26, 194])

The long delay in the processing of these two dispatches
was, in all probability, due to the fact that thiy were not sent
in the Purple Code, to which priority was then being given
by both the Army and Navy Decrypting Cnits.

As soon as the contents of these two messages were known
in. Washington, the following steps were taken 1o intercept
the execute of the Winds Code: Naval high-power radio
stations were informed and ordered to monitor the various
Jupanese broadcasts; similar instructions were issued to Army
radio stations in San Francisco aud Hawaii: at the request of
the War Department, the Federal Communications Commis-
sion’s intercept stations were alerted to gnard the required
broadcast frequencics.

It should be appreciated that the broadeasts mentioned in
these two dispatches were entirely different systems, The
code set up in #2353 was designed Tor use ina daily Tokvo
schedule of high-frequency voice broadeasts, while the code
words in #235-F were to be inserted in a daily Tokyo high-
frequency schedule, transmitted by key in Morse Code for
the benefit of the personnel in Japanese diplomatic and con-
sular posts.

At the same time that arrangements were made to monitor
the Jupunese broadeasts for them, cards containing the Eng-
lish translation of the three Japanese phrases and their decoded
meanings were prepared in the Nuvy Department, and were
distributed to the recipients of Magic. This was part of a
special method which was set up in that Departinent lor
reporting the receipt of the Winds execute. The execute, when

® East Wind, Rain
¢ ® North Wind, Cloudy
% ° West Wind, Clear

0001921

received, was to be deliveree to the Director of Naval Zom-
munications. Rear Admiral Noves, who made himself re :pon-
sible for the dissemination o this information. The pu pose
of the cards was to permit thi: to be done by carcfully ph -ased
telephone messages.

There appears to have beey no logical reason for this lone
departure from the routine procedure for the delive y of
Magic, and it apparently led £y many mistakes in the han dling
of the Winds execute.

The story of the Winds exe 2ute in the testimony befor » the
Naval Court of Inquiry and the Army Pear] Harbor Boird is
set forth in the following paagraphs.

About 8:30 s, on Deceraber 4, Licutenant Comm: nder
Kiamer followed the Comn unications Watch Officer into
Commander Saflord’s office, with the remark, “Here i is.”
The remark was intended to convey that the teletype copy
of a message, which the Watch Officer had in his land,
was an execute of the Wit s Code. Commander Kiamer
told the Court that the exscute contained the Jap:nese
phrase. "Higashi No Kaze ane”—East Wind, Rain—v hich
meant war or a break in diplomatic relations with the
United Stales.

Commander Safford folloved the Watch Officer out of
his office, presumably to witness the delivery to Rear Ad niral
Noves.

The Admiral made at leas: two telephone reports o the
receipt of the Winds execute; to Rear Admiral Turner and to
Colonel Sadtler, acting Chief ¢ ignal Officer, War Departrient.
Admiral Stark also wus giver this information, accordii g to
Admiral Noves™ testimony beore the Naval Court. Ad niral
Stark did not remember the neident when he testified.

Colonel Sadtler at once reprted the receipt of the exe cute
to Brigadier General Miles ind Colonel Bratton. When it
developed that he did not knaw to which countries the exe-
cute referred, he was ordered. to find out. Over the plone,
Admiral Noves was not certai 1, but thought that the exccute
indicated a break with Great 3rituin. Asked to verify this, he
replied that he did not then hawve time, as he was expect: d in
Admiral Sturk’s office for a conference.

When this conversation wa reported to General Mile:, he
decided  that the code-destruction messages, already  re-
ceived, made Japanese war in entions perfeetly clear, anc the
exact meaning of the Winds execute consequently did not
matter—the obvious conclusion .

Rear Admiral Ingersoll, the Assistant Chief of Naval € per-
ations, told the Naval Cowrt e was informed of the receipt
ol the Winds execute by an fficer who had in his had a
copy ol a4 message which thet officer defivitely regarde] as
the execute. It will be noted that Admiral Noyes informed
Admiral Turner, but that Adm ral Ingersoll reccived his rc port
thnough other channels. The 12ason for this was that the lust
named officer was not one of t e seven recipients of Magiz on
the Navy Departiment’s distiibution list, whereas Adiaiial
Turner was.

It appears that the deliver; of the Winds exceute by the
Director of Naval Communica ions led to innumerable ex -ors:
no copices were sent to the War Department; the two Naval
Intelligence recipients of Magi 2, Captain Wilkinson and Com-
maunder McCollum, were not informed of the receipt of the
excente: there s a strong prabability that no copy of the
exceute was ever delivered 13 the Navy Department  iles.
Captain Sufford testificd that e saw a copy in the files a out
mid-December, when documetary data was being assem sled
for the Roberts Commission. ™ 0 one clse saw a file copy, hen
or kater. There was definitely a0 copy in the files during the
inquiries from mid-1944 to th2 end of the Congressiona In-
vestigation.

As o result of its monitorin g for the Winds exccute, the
Federal Communications Corinission reported to the wWar
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and Navy Departments the following translations of inter-
cepts heard on Japanese-language voice broadcasts:

Weather Messages from Tokyo Station JVW3, 2200 GMT,
December 4, 1941:

“TOKYO TODAY NORTH WIND SLIGHTLY STRONGER MAY BE-
COME CLOUDY TOMORROW SLIGHTLY CLOUDY AND FINE
WIATHER.

“KANAGAWA PREFECTURE TODAY NORTH WIND CLOUDY FROM
AFTERNOON MORE CLOUDS.

“CHIBA PREFECTURE TODAY NORTH WIND CLEAR MAY BE-
COME SLIGHTLY CLOUDY OCEAN SURFACL CALM.”

(Reported to the Navy Department, 9:05 p.Mm. EST,
’ December 4, 1941)

Weather Message from Tokyo Station JVWS, 2130 GMT,
December 5, 1941:

“TODAY NORTII WIND MORNING CLOUDY AFTERNOON CLEAR
BEGIN CLOUDY EVENING. TOMORROW NORTH WIND AND LATER
¥rOM THE SOUTH.” (Repeated three times.)

(Reported to Colonel Bratton at his home, 7:05 p.m. EST,
December 5, 1941)

Weather Message in Broadcast from Tokyo Station JLGA4,
0002 GMT, December 8, 1941; Repeated from Station JGJ,
0035 GMT, December 8, 1941:

“TIIS IS THE MIDDLE OF THE NEWS BUT TODAY SPECIALLY
AT THIS POINT I WILL GIVE THE WEATHER FORECAST:

“WEST WIND CLEAR:* WEST WIND CLEAR.”
(Entire message repeated twice on both broadcasts.)
(Reported to Lt. Col. Dusenbury at his home, 8:00 .M. EST,

December 7, 1941)

Neither of the two intercepts of December 4 and 5 appears
to be a Winds execute, although there is some slight doubt
about the second one. The Winds Code did not provide for
negative information; there was no way of saying that there
would be no break with a particular country. The December
5 message was repeated three times in the middle of the
broadcast, and there was an alternation of cloudy and clear
skies, while the North Wind was going to shift to the South.
This might have been an attempt to reverse the meaning of
North Wind Cloudy, to inform Japanese diplomatic posts that
there would be no break with Russia.

The last of the three messages reported by the F. C. C.
was unquestionably an execute of the Winds Code, de-
spite the fact that its broadcasts were made several hours
after the Pearl Harbor attack. For, 0002, December 8, Green-
wich time, is 1:32 p.Mm., December 7, Hawaiian time.

The two late broadcasts of that message, however, were
eminently logical. The world then had news of the Pearl
Harbor attack, and knew that the United States and Japan
were at war. But the phrase, Nishi No Kaze Hare, meant war
between Great Britain and Japan, and this was the final effort
to get that code-destruction message to any Japanese post in
British territory which had missed the earlier orders.

Now, a look at the salient features of the Winds testimony
before the Hewitt Inquiry and the Joint Congressional Com-
mittee, and the changes in that testimony from that previous-
ly given to earlier investigations.

There was no essential variation in the evidence of two
witnesses. Admiral Ingersoll again stated that the Winds exe-
cute had been reported to him. Before the Joint Congression-
al Committee, Captain Safford, as on all his other appear-
ances as a witness, was positive that a Winds execute, in-
volving the United States, had been received on the moming
of December 4.

* In Japanese, Nishi No Kaze Iare.

Before Admiral Hewitt and the Joint Congressional Com-
mittee, Captain Kramer testified that he was then convinced
that the Winds execute was received on December 5, and
referred to Anglo-Japanese relations, but not to U.S.-Japa-
nese relations. In his earlier account before the Naval Court
of Inquiry, he placed the receipt of the Winds execute on
Dccember 4, and stated unequivocally that the teletype copy
contained the Japanese phrase, “Higashi No Kaze Ame,”
which meant war or a break in Japanese relations with the
United States.

Admiral Turner did not testify before the Hewitt Inquiry.
His evidence before the Joint Congressional Committee on
the receipt of the Winds execute was radically different from
that which he had previously given to the Naval Court of
Inquiry. According to his earlier account, Rear Admiral
Noyes had reported to him that a Winds execute had been
received. In answer to further questioning, he stated that he
kncew that this exccute meant a break in relations or more
probably war between Japan and the United States.

Before the later Congressional Investigation, Admiral
Turner testified that Rear Admiral Noyes called him on the
telephone, on December 5, and said, “The first weather re-
port has come in” and that its text was, “North Wind Clear.”
The two Admirals agreed that there was something wrong
with this message. The nearest approach to it in the Winds
Code was “North Wind Cloudy,” which meant a break with
Russia. Admiral Turner thought that this supposed Winds
exccute could possibly have been a paraphrase of the Federal
Communications Commission’s intercept of December 4 or
that of December 5.

At this point, it is logical to inquire what caused these
radical changes in important earlier testimony concerning
the receipt of a Winds execute.

During his cross-examination before the Joint Congres-
sional Committee, Admiral Turncr explained his changed
testimony in these words: “Up until the time that I returned
to San Francisco about two months ago, I thought the entire
thing in that Winds message was authentic and they had
merely made a mistake about that ‘North Wind so-and-so.’
On talking to some of the officers, who had gone into it, in
San Francisco, why, they said it had been found out later
that it was a false broadcast picked out of the ordinary news,
but it was news to me at the time.”

In other words, Admiral Turner’s evidence before the
Naval Court of Inquiry was his own remembrance of the
Winds incident, while his later testimony before the Joint
Congressional Committee was essentially the repetition of
conversations in San Francisco which had caused him to re-
vise his own memories of the incident. The officers must have
been most persuasive because: Admiral Turner is not a per-
son whose mind can be casily changed; there were no extant
copies of the Winds execute nor any other documentary evi-
dence with which to buttress the arguments that did cause hts
altered remembrance of the event.

Captain Kramer, during his testimony before the Joint
Congressional Committee, said that he had several talks with
the Counsel of the Hewitt Inquiry, prior to his appearance as
a witness before the Admiral. The subjects of these discus-
sions were the discrepancies between his testimony and that
of others before the Naval Court of Inquiry. These conflicts
could only have concerned the Winds incident, as the remain-
der of Captain Kramer’s former evidence dealt with his duties
in connection with the handling of Magic. As we have seen,
his account of the receipt of the Winds exccute varied in the
Hewitt Inquiry and the Congressional Investigation from that
which he gave before the Naval Court.

Captain Safford underwent an identical experience, prior
to the first of his three appearances before the Hewitt In-
quiry. The Captain concluded that the purpose of his prelim-
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inary talks with the Counsel was to cuuse him to change or
modify his former testimony concerning the Winds execute.
This deduction caused him, immediately {ollowing each such
mecting, to record certain of the Counsel’s remarks and his
impression of them. The reading of these memoranda formed
a part of his testimony before the Joint Congressional Com-
mittee,
One extracet read:

“Iis purpose seemed to be to relute the testimony he-
fore carlier investigations) that wus unfivorable to any
one in Washington, to beguile ‘hostile witnesses” into
changing their stories. and to introduce an ¢lement of doubt
where he could vot effeet a reversal of testimony,”

The memoranda also attributed the tollowing statements

to the Counsel during the course of their three conferences:

“You are the only one who seems to have scen the
Winds execute message:

“How could the Winds execute hinve been heard on the
cast coast of the United States and vot at places nearer
Japan?

“It is doubtful if there ever was a Winds execute mes-
sage;

“It is no reflection on your mentality to have your mem-
ory play vou tricks -ulter such a long period:

“Numerous witnesses that you have named have denied
all knowledge of @ Winds execute message.”

According to his memorandum. at the conclusion of his
testimony, Caplain Saflord asked Admiral Hewitt, “off the
record.” if there was still any doubt in the katter’s mind that
a broadeast of the Winds excente had been made, and that
this was received in the War and Navy Departments. Belore
the Admiral could reply, the Counsel said, “Of course, T am
not conducting the case, and 1 do not know what Admiral
Hewitt has decided, but to me it is very doubtful that the
so-called Winds exeente message was ever sent.” Adniral
Hewitt then added that there was no evidence of a Winds
execute except Captain Saftord’s unsupportal testimony, and
he thought that the Captain was confusing mother message
containing the name of w wind with the one he was expect-
ing to receive.

Admiral Hewitt's statement, that there was no other evi-
dence to support Captain Safford’s testimony concerning the
receipt of a Winds execute, was most surprising. Actually, il
Admiral Noves could have been persuaded that his negative
cvidence before the Naval Court regarding that receipt was
in error. all conflict of testimony on that point belore that
body would have disappeared.

Three important witnesses on the Winds episode in the
Naval Court of Inquiry did not testity belore the Hewitt
Inquiry—Admirals Turner. Ingersoll and Noyes. Admiral
Turner was not available, as he was m the midst of the war
in the western Pacifie. Admiral Ingersoll on duty in San
Francisco, was apparenthy not summoned because of a Tack
of interest in a repetition ol his tormer evidence. Admiral
Noves was not called because the Inquiry was so satisfied
with his testimony before the Naval Court, that a verbatim
transeript of that testimony was incorporated in its Record
of Proceedings by the mere process of copying it from the
recorded heurings of that carlier inquiry. A truly remarkable
procedure, and a strong indication of the bias of the Hewitt
Inquiry.

Rewr Admiral Noyes could have been w useful witness.
On December 4. when he reported the receipt of the Winds
execute to Admiral Stark and Rear Admiral Turner, he must
have been satisfied that the execute was gemiine. The tollow-
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ing line of questioning was in scapable. As he made hiriselt
responsible for its delivery, wl at had he done about repo ting
the message to the Presideat and the Sceretary of the
Navv? Why did he fail to zport the message to Caj tain
Wilkinson and Commander McCollum, two recipient: of
AMagic who never heard of -he exceute? Did he send the
copv of the Winds execute to be filed with the ther
Magic, and i vot, what dispisal did he make of it? ¥hen
and how did he discover th it this execute was not genu-
ine? Why did he not have eopies of the message delivered
to the War Department, in accordance with long-establi shed
procedure?

It is an mescapable fuct thit the best evidence concerning
the receipt of the Winds execute was the original testiniony
wiven before the Naval Court of Inguiry and the Army carl
Harbor Bourd. That represe ated the best remembrance of
cach witness, before doubts were planted in his mind by the
argmnents of others.

By mid-1943, many featur s of the Winds episode could
help to shake the confidence Hf a witness in his carlier  esti-
monyv, such as: the Tapse of time since its occurrence. the
conlusion caused by the F.C Z. veports of the North Winds:
broadeasts of December 4 anl 50 and ol the genuine W inds
exceute of Decenber 7, hour after the attack; faulty Cistri-
bution of the Winds exceute o1 December 4, due to the failure
to tollow the established preeedure for the distribution of
AMagice: the absence of a cop s of the Winds execute it the
Magie files.

After the two Service investigations, in the summer and
carly tall of 1944 persistent rumors were circulated that a
Japanese ende had been broken and that as w resut, it
had been known in Washine ton that war with Japan was
imminent. but that this info nution had never been tans-
mitted to the Hawaiian Coir manders. Even after the Zon-
gressional Investigation, ther : was no popular appreci ition
of the complete breakdows  of the Japanese  diplonatic
codes, Washington's  resultaat  pre-knowledge  of  Jaoan's
every intention, and the derial ol that inlormation tc the
Hawaiian Commanders.

The guardians of the Peorl Harbor secret conseqgu ntly
appear to have recognized th s threat that the Winds ep sode
could be to that seeret, and Letween late 1944 and the con-
vening of the Congressional Tavestigation, a campaign s :ems
to have been waged to orieat the evidence on the Vinds
episade so as to diseredit all dea of the receipt of o geruine
Winds execute. The testimeny belore the later inguiries,
especially that of the Joint Ccagressional Committee, strimgly
supports that deduction. In this connection, one answer of
Admiral Tngersoll is notewort 1v. A Senator asked him, “You
never knew until alter (the) attack that that was 10t a
genuine Winds message?” He replied, “T do not know that
I ever knew until some time after the Court of Inquir last
veur., lhlt that was not a ¢2nuine message. I believd it
was.” im \kuvxs of this answer precludes the thought
that lh nlj_'\l 1ix 9 )1 -(m of the campaign, The
significance of this incident )i in lhc timing of his discovery
that the execute was vot gen sine.

The fact that Admirals Ing 2rsoll and Turner believed until
19-14 or later that the execu e of the Winds Code reported
to them on December 4, 1341 was authentic means that
the excecute was treated as auchentic in the Navy Dcpdri ment
during the only period that nattered, December 4-7, 1941,
For. Admiral Turner was 1ac officer in that Deparrment
charged with the responsibil by for sending the lrlfom ation
obtained from such intercept: to the outlying commands, and
Admiral Ingersoll, as Admral Stark’s principal assistant, |
would, as a matter of norral procedure, check to ssure
thit any action which he cor sidered necessary as a res 1t of
the receipt of the intercept had been taken.
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The Majority Report of the Joint Congressional Com-
mittee totally overlooked these facts when it devoted its
entire Appendix E to discrediting the receipt of an authentic
Winds execute—a fitting climax to the undue laboring of the
Winds episode throughout the Congressional Investigation,
apparently for no good reason except for the possible cffect
upon public opinion.

It must be appreciated that a postwar Congressional in-
vestigation was always inevitable. That would be in answer
to popular demand and would be an open hearing. All
previous inquiries had been sccret. With the press and
general public alive to the possible disclosures of the Winds
episode, this incident could conceivably break the Pearl
[Tarbor secret wide open.

When the Joint Congressional Committee convened in
November. 19045. the affirmative cevidence concerning the
receipt of a genuine Winds exccute had been reduced to the
testimony of Captain Safford plus the fact that the receipt
of an exceute had been reported to Admiral Ingersoll. All
other testimony before that body cast serious doubt upon
the receipt of a genuine execute involving the United States.
Cross-examination developed the conflict between this evi-
dence and that given by the same witnesses before carlier
inquiries, but the general effect of this appears to have been
negligible.

The Winds testimony betore the Joint Congressional Com-
mittee was so satisfactory to the Administration forces that
it was prolonged beyond all necessity and without any regard
for a due sense of proportion.

Captain Safford, the one witness who continued to insist
that a genuine Winds exccute involving the United States
had been received on December 4, was subjected to an un-
Delievably harsh cross-examination. At one point, his private
correspondence was offered in evidence. and certain remarks
therein concerning Admiral Stark produced a line ot question-
ing whose main purpose appeared to be to humiliate the
Captain, by publiclv developing his critical inmost thoughts
regarding his senior officer. Finally, in great embarrassment.
the Captain remained mute in the face of a particularly
pointed question. and his hazing on this subject was
discontinued. .

Many witnesses were put on the stand merely to testity
that they had never heard of a Winds execute. Dispatches
from the British and Dutch Governments were introduced
to show that none of the stations of those countries had heard
2 Winds exceute. Testimony that Manila never intercepted
such a message was also produced. ’

The American authoritics in Tokyo were asked to in-
vestigate the Winds episode from the Japanese end, and the
resulting evidence was introduced, althongh it was decidedly
tainted. When first questioned the Japanese had never heard
of a Winds Code setup. Confronted with Circulars #2353
and #2354, they then stated that no execute had ever been
sent, despite documentary evidence that one was sent on
December 7, Washington time. A search of the Tokyo files
was not conclusive, as during the latter half of August, 1945,
the Japanese had started to burn their secret files, and many
had been destroyed before an order from the Emperox
stopped the operation.

Why was the Winds cpisode thus so labored and ex-
aggerated before the Joint Congressional Committee?

There seems to be only one logical answer. The Ad-
ministration forces were saying to the American people,
“Ilere is the evidence of the falsity of the rumor regarding
the broken Japanese Code which was to produce such dra-
matic disclosures of the story behind the Pearl Harbor story.
There was never anything to the supposed incident. If your
suspicions are again aroused, remember the exploded myth
of the Winds episode.”

And through all this, there is no gainsaying the fact that
the best evidence concerning the execute of the Winds Code
was that presented before the Service investigations, when
the witnesscs were giving their testimony based upon their
own undiluted memories.

In conclusion, we must stress again that the main im-
portance of the Winds Code and its execute to the Pearl
Harbor story lies in the orientation of testimony con-
cerning it. which occurred between October, 1944, and
November, 1945, and in the undue emphasis that was
placed upon the discrediting of the whole incident in the
proceedings and in the Majority Report of the Joint Con-
gressional Committee.

Cliapter 12

THE EIGHT
PEARL HARBOR
INVESTIGATIONS

iNcE the Pearl Harbor attack, there have been eight in-
S vestigations of that catastrophe. These are herein identi-
fied and briefly discussed.

The Roberts Commission, December 18, 1941, to January
28, 1942, was convened by order of the President, to ascer-
tain and report the facts relating to the Japanese attacks
upon Pearl Harbor, especially to determine whether any
derelictions of duty or errors of judgment on the part of U.S.
Army or Navy personnel had contributed to the enemy suc-
cesses. The members of the Commission were: Associate
Justice Roberts, U.S. Supreme Court; Admiral Standley,
U.S.N. Ret.; Rear Admiral Reeves, U.S.N. Ret.; Major
Cencral McCoy. U.S. A. Ret.; Brigadier General McNarney,
U.S.A.

The Commission tunctioned primarily as a tact-finding
body. Such interested parties as Admiral Kimmel and Gen-
cral Short were not allowed the benefit of counsel, and were
not permitted to hear the testimony of any other witnesses.
They thus had no chance to cross-examine witnesses, and had
no knowledge of any of the evidence before the Commission,
other than their own.

The only really eftective proceedings of the Commission
were those held in Hawaii. The sessions in Washington were
primarily to obtain background . information to aid the
Hawaiian hearings. Not only did the Roberts Commission
thus concern itself entirely with the happenings in Hawaii
to the exclusion of what occurred in Washington, but one
of the incidents in connection with its proceedings in Hawaii
is worthy of close scrutiny.

The stenographic staff hired by the Roberts Commission
was unbelievably inept. When Admiral Kimmel's recorded
testimony was submitted to him for verification, it was found
to be filled with errors and at times was completely unintel-
ligible. Documents from which the Admiral had read were
not properly identified, and large sections of such testimony
were often found to be entirely omitted. Furthermore, the
questions and answers were frequently so badly garbled as
to make no sense. Admiral Kimmel and the author spent two
days and nights in an attempt to restore a modicum of ac-
curacy to the record of this testimony.

When this work was completed to the best ot then ability,
the author took the corrections to Mr. Walter Bruce Howe,
the Recorder of the Commission, who quickly reported that
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Justice Roberts would permit no changes i the stenographic
record of Achniral Kitnmel's testimony. As that record wits
completely inaccurate, this decision was incomnprehensible.
So. the author next took the matter up with Admiral Staid
ley. o member of the Commission, and was tokl that o
change would he permitted in the transeript of Admiral Kim-
mels testimony. but that notations of the enors therein wonlid
be placed inan Appendin to the Record of Proceedings of
the Commission,

The futility ol this handling was at onee brought to Ad.
miral Standlesv’s attention. No reader wonld refer. even
paragraph or so. to w distant Appendix, oor undertake the
arduous task of reconstineting Admiral Kirnmels testitnon
The fact was stressed it Admiral Kinmel had no desire to
change his original testimomy in s was, hut merelh w oited
it orathinlly  reproduced. Admiral Stadley repeated thad
nothing turther could he done abont it as Justice Roberts
would not alter his decivion. The anthor then said that what
Admiral Kinmmel wis asking was the common procedure in
the case of errors in the recorded testimony beltore militar
courts, and asked win s unless the Conmission was in eflect
a one-man body, its fowr Serviee members could not over
rule the Chairman’s decision in this matter of the correetion
ol Admiral Kimmel's testimony.

Then occurred the arvesting teature of the whole incident.
Admiral Standlev remained silent for severd moments. star
ing at the avthor, and then said. “Admiral Kimmel and vou
are under no illusions about what is ¢oing to happen to him
as a result of this investigation, are vou” The answer was
no. but Admiral Kimmel would still like the record of his
testimony to be an accurate reproduction of what he had said
and done during his time as a witness. There the matter rested.

[t cannot be controverted that the Commission violated
tandamental principles of justice. when it investigated  the
conduct of the Hawaiian Commands withouat according then
Commanders the legal vights of defendants o interested
parties. That denial did not deter the Commission {rom charg-
ing Admiral Kitnmel and General Short with the lollowing
derelictions of duty: failing to confer respecting the warn-
ings and orders received on or after November 270 not adapt-
ing and using the existing plans to meet the emergency.

These charges appear to have been drawn principally tor
public consumption. They are legally defective, in that they
do not specify what “orders and warnings™ in the first instance,
nor what “plans”™ m the sccond. The Hawaiian Commanders
did confer on the Wur and Navy Departinent messaaes of
November 27. After that date, the only messages of any
significance sent to Hawaii were the code-destruction dis-
patches.

As we have already sceu. the pertinent plans that were not
placed in effect during that critical period were: the declara-
tion of an M day. which would have implemented the maobili-
zation features of the war plans: the Joint Annv-Navy Coastal
Frontier Defense Plans, especially those for Hawaii and the
Panama Canal Zone; the unification of the Hawaiian Com-
mands. The placing of those plans and cammand arrange
ments in cffect was the immediate responsibility of the Wi
Plans Divisions of the War and Navy Departinents, under the
direet supervision of General Marshall and Adiniral Stark.

The Roberts Commission found that the Sceretaries ol
State. War, and Navy and General Marshall and Admiral
Stark had fulfilled their obligations in connection with the
Pear! Harbor attack.

This means that the discharge of their every duty and
responsibility relating to that attuck was free of any taint ol
negleet or blame of any character. So much of that opinion
us relates to the Sceretaries was sound. If the Commission
had made a full investigation, it is difficult to sec how they
could have cleared Admiral Stark and General Marshall of

respounsibility: for the who esale denial of informat on  to
Hawaii and tor the tailre: noted in the second pre seding
paragraph, unless it deduce 1 and accepted the fact 1 at the
officers were obeving the orc ers of their Commander-ir -Chicl
in these madters.

The opinions of the Comnission set forth in the pre eding
paragraph, coupled with t} 2 charges against the [Ta vaiian
Conumanders, were inost innbortant. By placing all the blame
upon Admiral Kimmel and General Short. the prestige of the
Wishington Administration vas fully preserved in the Hublic
mind. Populn confidence  n President Roosevelt ard his
principal government assistaats was psvehologically es cential
to the snceesstul prosecution of the war,

We shall shortly see tha the Army Pear]l Harbor Board
and the Naval Conrt of Incuiry took diamnetrically o posite
views from that of the Robets Commission—the Army Board
reagarding the conduct ol Ceneral Marshall and the Naval
Court concerning that of Ad nival Stark and Admiral Ki nmel.

The Hart Dhupary, Febroary 12 to June 15, 1944, was
ordered by the Navy Depar ment to take evidence pertinent
to the Peal Thabor attack iu order to guard again t the
possible loss of important te timony through hazards o war-
time serviee. I was a one member inquiry, conducted by
Admival Hart, UL SONL Ret.

Ostensibly to forestall the statute of limitations, 1 hich,
it it hecame effective. would srevent the trial by court-n artial
ol oflicers of the Anny and tie Navy considered to be milty
ol ~ertous derelictions of duy, Congress passed an Ac:. ap-
proved Juue 130 1944, whicl directed the Sceretaries o War
and Navy to investigate the Yearl Harbor catastrophe. @ nd to
commence proceedings aga nst such persons as the facts
might justity. The Army Pecrl Tarbor Board and the - Naval
Court of Inguiry were conver ed in compliance with tha: Act,

The Army Pearl Harbor Board. July 20 to October 20,
1941, was directed (o ascert dn und report the facts re ating
to the Pear] Harbor attack., nd to make such recomm »nda-
tions as it deemed proper. The members of the Board were
Licutevant General Grunert, U. S, AL, Major General Russell,
U.SC AL and Major General Frank, U, S. A.

The opinions of this Boar. concerning the responsil:ilities
of three General Officers cre worthy of close atte wion.
Puraphrased for brevity aud 1 better popular understun ding,
they were as follows:

General Marshall failed it his relations to the Haw aiian
Department by: (1) not keping its Commnanding General
fully advised of the growing enseness of the Japanese situa-
tion. (2) not replving to Ger eral Short’s “subotage aler ” ve-
port of November 270 whieh clearly indicated tha  the
Hawaiian Commander had  nisconstrued the Departnient's
warning message of that dat2; (3 not forwarding to Gen-
eral Short. on the evening f December 6 and during; the
carly morning of December 7, the critical information indi-
cating a break with Japan. twugh there was ample titie to
do so; (4) not determining the state of readiness o the
Hawadian Command, betweer November 27 and Dece nber
7. 19410 despite the impendiag threat of war;

Muajor General Gerow, Clief of the War Plans Div sion,
War Departinent, lailed in hir duties in the following pa ticu-
lars: (1) not keeping the Commanding General, ITaw aiian
Department, adequately infornied on the impending war «itua-
tion, through failure to supplt him with the substance ¢¢ the
Magic traflic; (2) not sending to General Short, on Nove nber
27, a clear and concise divedtive, instead ol approvinge the
conlusing message which wis sent; (3) not realizing that
General Short's state of readir ess report on November 27 was
not iutended to aflirm a read ness for war, and consequ mtly
failing to correct the Hawaiia 1 sabotage alert; (4) not t: king
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steps to implement the existing joint plans and agreements
between the Army and Navy to insure the functioning of the
two services in the manner contemplated;

Lieutenant General Short failed in his duties in the follow-
ing particulars: (1) not placing his command in a state of
readiness for war after a war warning, for, despite the in-
complete and confusing character of his information, it was
sufficient to warn him of the tenseness of the American-
Japancse relations and the imminence of hostilities; (2) not
attempting to reach an agreement with the responsible naval
commanders for the implementation of the Joint Army-Navy
Coastal Frontier Defense Plan; (3) not informing himself of
the effectiveness of the Navy distant reconnaissance; (4) not
replacing ineflicient staff officers.

It scems that the Board was needlessly hard upon Gen-
eral Short. His unanswered report of his sabotage alert defi-
nitely told the War Department, ten days before the attack,
that he did not begin to appreciate the tenseness of the
American-Japanese situation. General Short enjoyed a high
professional reputation and his failure to appreciate the situa-
tion is proof positive that he did not have sufficient informa-
tion, despite the Board’s assertion to the contrary. The im-
plementation of the Joint Plan would not occur to an officer
who thought that a sabotage alert was an adequate disposition
of his forces. Furthermore, as the Board found, the imple-
mentation of those plans was the direct responsibility of
Brigadier General Gerow. Also, an officer who considered a
sabotage alert adequate to the situation would not be con-
cerned with the character of the Navy’s long-distance scouting.

If the War Department authorities had corrected General
Short’s sabotage alert, as it was their duty to do, the Hawaiian
Commands would have been fully alerted for war.

The Naval Court of Inquiry, July 24 to October 19, 1944,
was ordered to inquire into all the circumstances connccted
with the Japanese Pearl Harbor attack, to determine all the
facts of the case, to state whether any person or persons in
the Naval service had committed any offenses or had in-
curred any serious blame, and to recommend what further
action should be taken. The members of the Court were:
Admiral Murfin, U.S. N. Ret., Admiral Kalbfus, U.S. N. Ret.,
Vice Admiral Andrews, U. S. N. Ret.

In its opinions, the Court cleared Admiral Kimmel of blame,
but it charged that Admiral Stark did not display sound judg-
ment when he failed to cause to be transmitted to Admiral
Kimmel, during the eritical period from November 27 to
December 7, information regarding the Japanese situation;
did not, on December 7, communicate to the Pacific Fleet
Commander the receipt of a message which indicated that a
break in diplomatic relations was imminent, and that an at-
tack in the Hawaiian area might be expected soon.

As in the case of the Roberts Commission, the Court again
took no cognizance of the Washington failures, on or ahbout
November 27, to: announce an M day; arrange with the Army
to have the Joint Army-Navy Coastal Frontier Defense Plans
for all Pacific Commands placed in effect; take similar steps to
accomplish the unification of the Hawaiian Commands. We
have just seen that the Army Pearl Harbor Board did not
overlook those failures in the case of General Gerow.

At this point, it is necessary to digress momentarily, The
apparent criticisms of the performance of duty by high-
ranking officers of the War and Navy Departments must be
examined at once to determine the justice of those criticisms.

In any attempt to rationalize concerning the behavior of
the Washington High Commands, the primary consideration is
the military character of the officers in question. First, only
officers of high reputation are chosen to fill the top positions
of the Army and Navy. Secondly, the officers to fill the posi-
tions in the next echelon of command are also selected with

care. All senior officers in Washington in late 1941 were
graduates of the War College of their respective Services.

There are two other powerful arguments which support
this line of reasoning. The apparent lapses of efficiency in late
1941 covered a very brief period in the carcers of the officers
concerned. And, not only did the officers bring reputations of
a high order to their Washington duties but, during the war
which followed, most of them demonstrated marked pro-
fessional ability, and many of them rose to the topmost ranks.
Continuing violations of the fundamental principles of the
Art of War on their own initiative by such officers would be
astounding. Unless we accept that their actions were con-
trolled by motivating orders from President Roosevelt, the si-
multancous ineffective conduct of the affairs of thaaArmy and
Navy in Washington, during the month preceding the attack,
and especially during the first days of December, is absolutely
incomprehensible.

There is no doubt that the opinions of the Army Pearl
ITarbor Board and the Naval Court of Inquiry were a serious
threat to the preservation of the Pearl Harbor secret. The
most severe criticisms contained in those opinions centered
upon Army and Navy personnel in Washington—Generals
Marshall and Gerow in the Army, and Admiral Stark in the
Navy. This was getting perilously close to the Commander-in-
Chief, President Rooscvelt.

In accordance with the legal procedure of both the Army
and the Navy, the final action upon such inquiries is vested
in the Secretaries of War and Navy. The reaction to the situa-
tion by both Departments was identical. Both decided to
delay their final judgments upon the two Service investigations,
and to order further inquiries to supplement the evidence set
forth in their proceedings. This was the official explanation by
each Department for convening the Clausen Investigation, in
one instance, and the Hewitt Inquiry in the other.

Although both these investigations traveled widely and
heard a great deal of testimony, it does not appear that either
uncovered any particularly significant new evidence. They
did, however, develop some decided revisions of earlier testi-
mony, and these later versions were the ones subsequently
heard by the Joint Congressional Committee.

The Clausen Investigation, November 23, 1944, to Septem-
ber 12, 1945, was ordered by the War Department to supple-
ment the investigation of the Army Pearl Harbor Board by
continuing the examination of witnesses until the facts con-
cerning the Pearl Harbor catastrophe were made as clear as
possible, and until the testimony of every witness in posses-
sion of material facts could be obtained. This was a one-man
investigation, conducted by Lieutenant Colonel Clausen,
U.S.A.

The Hewitt Inquiry, May 14 to July 11, 1945, was or-
dered by the Navy Department to continue the investigation
until the testimony of every witness in possession of material
facts could be obtained and all possible evidence exhausted,
Admiral Hewitt, with the assistance of a legal adviser, con-
ducted the Inquiry.

It has always been obvious that the War and Navy De-
partments were not satisfied with the findings and opinions
of the Army Pearl Harbor Board and the Naval Court of
Inquiry. It will be noted how the orders to the later in-
vestigations, set forth above, suggest that those findings and
opinions were based upon insufficient evidence.

The evidence taken by Colonel Clausen was entirely in
the form of affidavits. This was an ideal procedure for elimi-
nating or reducing conflicts of testimony. The preparatior ot
Colonel Bratton’s affidavit was an excellent example. Befo-e
the Army Pearl Harbor Board, he named three officers \vith
whom, on the night of December 6, 1941, he had left copies
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of the 13-part message for delivery to Generals Marshall.
Gerow and Miles. These alleged recipients were all General
Officers when they testilied belore Colonel Clausen, and each
denied that he had received such a delivers on the night in
question. These statements were shown ta Colonel Bratton
before he prepared the final dralt of his own alfidavit, and
this then differed radically from his carlier testimony before
the Army Board. and unmistakably evideneed the effects of
the contrary evidence which he had just sern. His testimony
before the Clausen Inguiry was later repeated before the
Joint Congressional Committee.

Colone]l Bratton told the Congressional Investigation that
Colonel Clausen did not attempt to influence him in any
way during the preparation of his affidavit. Nevertheless, the
subjection of a witness to a preponderance of coutrary evi
dence just prior to his giving of hix own testimony must
weaken his couflidence in his memory of past events, especially
when hie is trving Lo projecet his mind back over a span of four
years.

We discussed the Winds cpisode testimony belore the
Hewitt Inquiry in the preceding chapter. There was another
incident before that Inquiry which merits special attention.
Shown copics of two [apanese dispatches, Viee  Admiral
Wilkinson was asked if he had previously seen them. He
replied that he had seen one during the afternoon of Saturday.,
December 6, 1941, and several parts of the long message as
it was coming in during that same time. Before he could
proceed further. the Counsel quickly interjected. “Admiral,
will you identifv the messages for the record.” The witness
stated in effect that they were the Pilot and the t4-part
messages. Whereupon, the Counsel immediately diveeted the
examination into other channels.

Why did the Hewitt Inquiry tail to desclop whether or
not the furmer Director of Naval Intellizence had shown anv
of the parts of the long message to Admiral Stark on that
fateful Suturday afternoon? That Inqguiry knew that nothing
had come to light concerning Admiral Stark’s doings on that
day, and its orders required that all possible evideuce be
fully developed.

Six months later, before the Joint Congtessional Comnmit-
tee. the Vice Admiral testificd that he did not see any part
of the long message on Saturday. December 6. until the
13 parts were delivered to him at his home at about 11:00
p.aiL, that night.

When  Admiral  Kimmel  heard  of  the  contemplated
Hewitt Inquiry. he officially vequested  the Navy Depart-
ment that he be accorded the right ol an interested party
to be present with counsel during the hearings, to listen
to the testimony, and to cross-cxamine the witnesses, That
request was refused. :

Based upon both the Proceedings of the Naval Court ol
Inquiry and the evidence obtained by Admiral Hewitt, the
Sceretary of the Navy, on August 29, 1943 made public the
following conclusion: “Then Admiral ITusband E. Kimmel
and Admiral Harold B. Stwrk, particularly during the period
{from 27 November to 7 December, 1941, Lailed to demon-
strate the superior jndament necessary to exercising command
commensurate with their rank and assigned duties.”

This conclusion sustained the opinion of the Naval Court
of Inquiry in the case of Admiral Stark. but reversed the
opinion of that body concerning the conduct of  Admiral
Kimmel. From « standpoint of justice and fair play, it is most
regrettable that the Navy Departiment denial Admiral Kimmel
the rights of au interested party before the Hewitt Inquiry.

On the same day, August 29, 1943, the report of the Sce-
retary of War on the Proceedings of the Army Pearl Harbor
Board, supplemented by the evidence obtained by the Clausen
Inquiry, was made public. The highlights of this report were
as follows:

86

Noting that the Army Peixl Harbor Board had crit cized
Ceneral Marshall for the she rtcomings of the General Staff,
it characterized this criticisr as unjustified, and said o that
officer that “throughout this matter he acted with his usual
greal skill, cnergy and effict meyv™

Stating at oue point that he War Plans Division erred in
not sending General Short more information, it later said that
this and other criticisms were not of sufficient import to
implv “any general inefficiendy in a Stadl which was peiform-
ing the heaviest duties witl. great ability,” This laucatory
view, however, was stronghy contradicted by the final eon-
clusion. which expressed sustantial, but not complet 3, ac-
cod with the opinions of the Armyv Pearl Harbor Boarc con-
cerning the respansibilities @ nd errors of the War Plaas di-
vision;

It found that General Shert had been given ample infor-
mation to warn himm to alert b s command against a surpr se air
attack by Jupan. As the Geaeral had been relieved fiom a
Command status on Januacy 11,0 1942, for his emrcrs of
indegment. this action was considered to be sufficient;

It limits the Magic knowr to the War Departiment, prior
to December 6, which was 1ot passed on to General short.
to the following: the Tokvo messages which set the “dcad-
line date” for the completion ot the negotiations in Wa hing-
ton: the code-destruction i 2ssages of December 1 aad 2
Honohilu Consukde reports of ship movements and disposi-
tious in Pear]l Harbor; the noessages which set up the Yinds
Code;

It minimized the Hono'alu reports to Tokyvo o1 the
location of the ships insidi Pearl IHarbor with this com-
pletely erroncous statement © “Other somewhat similir ()
information was being giver Tokvo by Japancse Consulates
in other ports™;

It identifies the vitally inportant Japanese messagss re-
ceived on December 6 and «uring the morning of Dece :mber
7. stresses that General Marshall saw none of these ur til he
reached his office on Sunday morning and that he then acted
upon them at onee: but it cives no thought to the fact that
11:25 aar was a remarkal le time of day for the Clief of
Stadl to beeome first availab'2 {or action in a time of svch in-
ternational tension,

This simultuncous action ty the two Sceretaries restored to
the Pearl Harbor seeret the :ecurity it had enjoved for early
four vears as a result of the findings of the Roberts Cemmis-
sion. The War Department report realfirmed that, as far as
the Army was concerned. j ractically all the blame for the
disaster rested with General Short. On the Navy side of the
pictare, a little ground was ost. as Admiral Stark was made
to share the responsibility wih Admiral Kimmel.

The War and Navy Departiments took one other vey im-
portant step for the preservation of the Pearl Harbor secret.
The Proceedings of both th: Army Pearl Harbor Board and
those of the Nuval Court ot Inguiry continued to be classed
as sceret, That there was the 1 no military justification for that
action at once bhecomes appi rent when we remember tat all
Japanese resistunce had cecsed by August 29, 1945, and it
was then only four davs un il the formal swrrender of Jupan
on board the US.S. Misso wi in Tokyo Bay, tor whch all
arrangements had then beer completed.

The Clarke Incestigation, September 14 to 16, 1941, and
July 13 to August 4, 1945, ~vas first ordered by the War De-
partment to investigate the andling of Top Secret conimuni- -
cations by the Militury Inte ligence Division in the dass pre-
ceding the Pearl Harbor attick. In July, 1945, the Inv=stiga-
tion was ordered to reconver ¢ to determine the facts oo neern-
ing certain testimony before the Hewitt Inquiry to the effect
that certuin file copies in the War Departiment secret ai chives
had been destroved by ord ws of General Marshall. Mo evi-
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dence was adduced to support that anything of this character
had happened at any time.

The Joint Congressional Committee, November 15, 1945,
to May 31, 1946, was convened in accordance with a Con-
current Resolution of Congress, to make a full investigation
of the events and circumstances connected with the Japanese
Pearl Harbor attack, and to report the results to Congress
with such recommendations as it deemed advisable. Tts mem-
bership consisted of six Democrats and four Republicans, as
follows: Senators Barkley (D), George ( D), Lucas (D),
Brewster (R), and Ferguson (R); Representatives Cooper
(D), Clark (D), Murphy (D), Gearhart (R), and Kcefe (R).
The legal staff consisted of a General Counsel and three
Assistants,

This public investigation was convened in response to a
recognized popular demand for the full facts concerning the
disaster, as there was a prevalent belief that much of the
story had been withheld. And it may be added that never will
belief be closer to the truth, until the two become one.

There can be no doubt that many members of Congress
knew or strongly suspected that the full Pearl Harbor story
would intimately involve the Nation’s Commander-in-Chief,
President Roosevelt. The Democratic majority on the Joint
Committee recognized that this would have a strongly adverse
effect upon their party’s future fortunes. Consequently, their
strategy was to bury the true Pearl Harbor story under a mass
of evidence that would forever preserve its secret.

If that secret has been brought to the surface, it is not the
fault of that strategy, as the following figures concerning the
Records of the Proceedings of the Joint Congressional Com-
mittee will attest: 11 volumes of Evidence; 10 volumes of
Exhibits; 17 volumes of Hearings of the earlier investigations;
1 volume containing the F indings and Opinions of the Roberts
Commission, the Army Pearl Harbor Board, the Naval Court
of Inquiry, and the Hewitt Inquiry; 1 volume covering the
Report of the Joint Committee and the Minority Views of
Senators Brewster and F erguson,

The method by which the 17 volumes containing the evi-
dence of the earlier Pearl Harbor inquiries were buried in
this mass of verbiage is most significant. They were intro-
duced as Exhibits #143 to #149, inclusive, on F ebruary 7,
1946, when the Congressional Hearings had been in progress
for nearly three months. Even then, these Exhibits were not
complete records of the Proceedings of those earlier investi-
gations, as they did not contain the F indings and Opinions.
These were withheld from the subject matter of the above
Exhibits, and appear in Volume 39 of the Report of the Hear-
ings of the Joint Committec. Their secret classification was
thus maintained until after the conclusion of the Congressional
Investigation, when the entire 40-volume Report of the Hear-
ings was released for public distribution.

Every feature of this handling was contrary to accepted
legal practice. Commencing with its sccond day and through-
out the Joint Committee Hearings, frequent references were
made to the subject matter of the earlier investigations in the
examination of the witnesses. In each instance, the entire
Proceedings of the earlier Inquiry should have been intro-
duced as an Exhibit before the first question based upon the
contents of that record was asked.

This procedure certainly contributed to the safeguarding
of the Pearl Harbor secret. Although the Evidence of the
carlier investigations was no longer secret matter after Febru-
ary 7, 1946, when it became part of the record of those public
hearings, that fact probably never registered with the general
public, who had then lost interest in those proceedings. The
Opinions of the Naval Court of Inquiry and the Army Pearl
Harbor Board, which placed the burden of responsibility for
the disaster upon the Army and Navy authorities in Washing-
ton, brought the matter uncomfortably close to the Nation’s
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Commander-in-Chief, Withheld as they were until buried in
the 40-volume Report of the Joint Committee Hearings, it
is doubtful if they have ever received cven passing public
attention,

The legal staff was manifestly guided by the wishes of the
Democratic majority in its examination of the witnesses. They
rarely protested irrelevant evidence, accepted without chal-
lenge palpably evasive answers, and avoided or handled with
careful adroitness trends of testimony which could have en-
dangered the carefully guarded secret.

The Republican minority did its best to uncover the true
story of the Pearl Harbor disaster, but met with no success.
Senator Ferguson was the principal Republican cross-examin-
er, but unfortunately did not prove too adept in the role. He
labored a line of questioning long after it was apparent that
it was leading nowhere. He missed most of his best cues.
Representative Keefe was the keenest Republican questioner
of witnesses, but he rarely conducted an examination of any
great length,

Two significant steps in the safeguarding of the secret
were: (1) the refusal of the Majority Members of the Joint
Congressional Committee to take the necessary legal action
to have the sections of Secretary Stimson’s diary covering
December 4, 5, and 6 introduced into the Hearings as docu-
mentary evidence, as requested by certain Minority Members;
(2) preservation from public knowledge of all matter con-
tained in the Navy Department’s so-called White House fle
for the period immediately preceding the Japanese attack.

Secretary Stifnson was not strong enough physically to
appear as a witness before the Congressional Investigation,
and his testimony consisted of two depositions, with an ap-
pendix to the first of these which included selected extracts
from the Secretary’s diary, Many of the answers in his deposi-
tions were obviously based upon entries in that diary, and
strict adherence to legal procedure would have required that
the entire diary be included in the Record of Hearings as an
Exhibit. These answers make it apparent that the diary was
a very complete record of the author’s doings and thinking
during the momentous period preceding the Pearl Harbor
attack. It is reasonable to conclude that if all the members
of the Joint Congressional Committee had been animated by
a desire to get all the facts concerning the Japanese attack,
legal action, if necessary, would have been taken to assure
the introduction of Secretary Stimson’s diary into the Pro-
ceedings of that Body.

During the pre-Pearl Harbor period, President Roosevelt
sent many important messages via Naval Communications
channels. The record of thesc dispatches is designated in the
Navy Department as the White House file, and has been held
as ultra-secret matter. Consequently, this file was never sub-
mitted to the Congressional Investigation. One cannot avoid
the strong suspicion that little of the Pear] Harbor secret
would remain if the contents of this White House file should
ever become public knowledge,

Most of the officers, who had been on duty in Washington
in late 1941, proved to be eminently satistactory witnesses
from the Democratic standpoint. Under the guidance of the
Committee Counsel, their evidence flowed smoothly and,
frequently, endlessly onward. Under Republican cross-exami-
nation, their answers became distinctly evasive whenever the
questions tended to lead them too close to dangerous dis-
closures. :

The greatest single deterrent to the complete unfolding
of the Pearl Harbor story was the effect that the lapse of time
had had upon the memories of important witnesses. In certain
cases, this resulted in their complete inability to recall a sig-
nificant event, and in some instances, a whole chain of
events, In other cases, the remembrance of pre-Pearl Harbor
happenings were radically different before the Joint Congres-
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sional Committee from what they had been before carlier in-
vesligations,

Fortunately, the mass of evidence before the Joint Con-
aressional Committee does not coneern the story hehind the
Pear! Larbor disaster. The withholding of information {rom
the Hawaiian Commanders and the reasoms given on the
witness stand for that fateful decision are the keys to that
seeret. What follows is therefore confined to testimony bearing
on that denial and certain related happenings.

An appreciation of a few sulient facts s necessary to an
understanding of the ensuing discussion.

The argument advanced by many witnesses, that Admiral
Kimmel and General Short had sufficient information to de-
duce the actual situation, is neither a valid nor reasonable
defense Tor the denial. The facts of the case completely defeat
that defense. Tt those Commanders had had the knowledge
from Magic possessed by the War and Navy Departinents.
their commands would not have been swprised: they were
surprised. The withholding of such vital, wthentic intelligence
from commanders in the field was a violation of the funda-
mental principles of the Art ol War,

Two groups in Washington, one Army and the other Navy,
composed of highly trained, highly intelligent officers, out-
standing in their respective serviees, thus sinmultaneously of-
fended against the basic Art of their professions during a
certain critical period of time. Why? In the answer to that
question lies the solution of the riddle of Pear] Harbor.

The direet examination of the witnesses by the Commit-
tee Counsel never attempted to develop that answer. The
cross-examiners  made rcpv;llv(] efforts to orient the testi-
mony closer to the trae story, hut were never successful.

On the witness stand. both Admiral Stark and General
Marshall stated  that Magic was withheld  from Admirad
Kimmel and General Short becanse the nmmber of decoded
Japanese dispatches was so great that their transmission
would merely serve to confuse those Commuanders, That ex-
planation should have heen sharply challenged. Tt was never
an all-or-nothing propasition. Ouly the particularly significant
messages should have been sent. The selection contained in
Chapters 4 and 3 herein, plos a short report of the Saturday
reccipt of the Declaration of War and its prospeetive timed
delivery to the U.S. Government, would have been ample.
This would have averaged considerably }ass than one message
per day.

General Miles told the Joint Committee that Madgic was
not sent to Tawaii because Japan might break the American
codes, and thus discover that their own had been compro-
mised. The explanation could have been broken down on two
counts: the highly secure Naval code coudd have been used to
transmit these messages for the Army; deliveries could have
been made by officer-messengers. emploving commercial air
transportation.

Rear Admiral Turuer testified that he “thought™ the Ia
waiian Commanders were receiving Magic, and  that this
understanding on his part was the result of talks be had had
with Rear Admiral Noyes. As Admiral Turner was responsible
for all Magic sent by the Navy Departinent to the outlying
commands after April. 1941, he knew that the Hawaiian
Commanders had reccived none of that information from
that source, between mid-August and December 7, 1941,
The only other means by which Hawaii could obtain Magic
was to intercept and decode it on the spot, and Admiral Noyes
well knew that the commands at that mid-Pacific base did not
have the requisite lacilities to do that. Lt is difficult to under-
stand how he could have failed to make that fact clear to
Admiral Turner. Neither of the officers was questioned to
develop how the misunderstanding could have arisen.

Referring again to the testimony of Major General Miles:
at one point he was asked if the Tokyo dispatch of September

88
0601925

21, requiring the [onolulu Consulate to report the exiet lo-
cation of American ships in Pearl ILubor, did not inlicate

that the Japancese were plaining surprise air attack upons

those ships in that base, rey lied, “Yes, after the event.” This
was a very critical momen: on the witness stand for the
General. I he had replied o an uncualified affirmative, the
inevilable questioning wou d necessarily have great v im-
perited the Pearl Harbor see et

If this dispatch did not crongly suggest a surprise attack
upon Pear]! Harbor to any tr ined militury mind whose owner
siw il the powers of human deduction have reached the van-
ishing point, the art of the detective is becoming a thing
of the past. and military intelligence services are tterly
useless.

This answer should imm :diately have clicited the ollow-
ing line of guestions. What j ossible use could be made f such
information il it were nat to be used as the basis for plwnning
a surprise air attack? Did not this dispatch, at once, rcall to
the Militny Intelligence Division Ambassador Grew’s n essage
of Junuary 27 regarding . Japanese surprise attacl upon
Pe:al Harbor? In the event that the surprise element should
fail in such an operation, would not the Japanesc surface
forces he subjected to heav 7 punishment from land-bi sed air
attacks? Would not that vi k demand the prospects of large
returns, which would restr et the attack to highly im portant
ohjectives? Were not objeet ves of that character in the Pacific
limited to the Fleet in Pea 1 Harbor and the Punama Canal?
For the strategy of a war w 2o0se main theatre was the wvestern
Pucilic, did not the cripplig of the U.5. Pacific Flee: so far
outweigh damage to the Fanama Canal as practicall - to re-
duce the Japanese attack osjectives to one—that Fleet?

Oun the wituess stand, cither General Marshall or Ad-
miral Stk bad any ren embrunce whatever of S:turday,
December 6. 1941, Nothir g could have been more
nate for the development o the true Pearl Iarbor stor: . Whet
the Pilot Message told tha the answer to the American note
of November 26 was abo it to be received in the ]apanese
Embassy, .and that its delivery was to be carcfully  timed,
these Tucets, coupled with the Magic of the past wedk, com-
pleted the picture. The coming Jupancse answer was
Declaration of War and i s delivery, in accordance  vith the
known Japanese technique for starting her wars. ws to be
synchronized with a surp ise attuck.

The natural reaction o the nation’s Commander in-Chicf
to this news would be to rummaon the heads of the Army and
Navy to u last-minute con‘erence. I1f this did happen we can
only” conclude from the sthsequent events that the ’resident
emphasized that no word to the Hawaiian Comman lers was
to leave Washington before about noon the next day, Sunday,
December 7.

Later evidence develop ad that General Marshall vas at his
home on that Saturday night and that Admiral Starl went to
the theatre. but still neitwer had any personal remanbrance
of these facts.

Colonel Bratton’s later testimony concerning his delivery
of AMagic on the night O Saturday. December 6. differed
radically from that which he first gave. Before the Aimy Pearl
Harbor Board. he stated that he delivered copies £ the 13-
part message to night-cdii ty oflicers in the War Dcpartment
offices of Generals Marsl all, Gerow, and Miles. I1c told the
Clauseu Investigation andl the Joint Congressional Committee
thet his Lormer testimony was in error, as the only distribution
he made on that night was to the State Departmen: for Scc-
retary Tull,

In either case, the prezedure was a distant departure from

his long-established custom for night deliveries to Cenerals

Marshall and Gerow. Considerations of urgeney naturally
divided the War Deparament recipients of Magic into two
classes: those who werc empowered to act on the informa-
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tion; thosc who were not. While it did not make any differ-
ence whether those in the latter group saw a message during
the night, or not until the next morning, the Chief of Staff
'nd the War Plans Director, who comprised the first group.

ww~were always shown important messages as quickly as possible.

day or night.

The failure to deliver the 13-part message to Generals
Marshall and Gerow on that important Saturday night was
greatly emphasized by the early hour of the delivery, 9:00
P.M., and the fact that the Chief of Staff was available at his
home to accept the delivery. The night-duty officer in General
Gerow’s office undoubtedly knew wherce he could be reached.
if he was not also at home. The most astounding feature of
the whole incident was Colonel Bratton’s explanation for not
making those two deliveries on that night—he did not consider
that action necessary because this was “just one more diplo-
matic dispatch.” There is nothing more surprising connected
with the Congressional Investigation than the fact that this
explanation was allowed to stand unchallenged. Any lawyer.
uninhibited by restrictive instructions. could have torn it to
shreds. Why the Republican cross-examination did not do so
will always remain a mystery

Colonel Bratton’s earlier testimony and his knowledge as a
highly  experienced intelligence officer would have caused
him many difficult moments under the tollowing line of ques-
tion:ng Was he not aware of the Japanese  techmique of
starting her wars with a surprise attack, synchronized with a
declaration of war? Had not the Japanese code-destruction
messages told him war was at hand? As he had told the
Pear! Harbor Board that such an attack had been expected
on November 30, the first Sunday after the deadline date.
did not the arrival of the long message on the following Sat-
urday and the fact that its timed delivery had been foretold
in the Pilot Message mark this dispatch as a declaration of
var. svnchronized with a surprise attack scheduled for the

=iiext dav? It not, could he state any other acceptable reason

forits timed delivery? Furthermore. what could the message
mean but war, when it stated tha American action had
threatened Japan's very. existence and had subjected her to
inhuman treatment, that she could no longer tolerate western
exploitation of the Far Fast. that the United States was plan-
ning war against her prospective allies, Germany and Italy
and that she did not consider that there was any possibility
of turther negotiations? Was hig appraisal of the lack of
importance of the 18-part message based upon, or influenced
by, orders or instructions from Generals Marshall and Gerow.
cither direct or through a staft officer, to the effcet that the
two Generals were not interested in the farther night de-
liveries of Japanese diplomatic dispatches?

Unless the affirmative answer to that last question is the
true explanation of Colonel Bratton’s decision to withhold
the 13-part message from General Marshall until Sunday
morning, that action is absolutely incomprehensible to a
military mind. It is unthinkable that, in a time of such intense
crisis, any subordinate, upon his own initiative, would decide
to deny to the Army Chief of Stafl, for a period of twelve
crucial hours or more, knowledge of one of the most important
communications in U.S. history.

As Captain Kramer testified that he was unable to contact
Admiral Stark on the night of Saturday, December 6, he
could well have been asked these questions, but was not.
When he called the Admiral’s home, wus the telephone
“answered? If it was, did he endeavor to ascertain the Ad-
miral’s whercabouts? What was he told?

From the evidence of the last witness betore the Joint
Committece, we know that Admiral Stark attended the
heatre on that night, and gave the house servant a memo-
randum containing the name of the theatre and its telephone
number, as he was leaving his home. [If Captain Kramer had

U. 5. NEWS & WORLD REPORT, April 2, 1954

Approved For Release 2005/01/05 : CIA-RDP75-OQ1493000700490026-7

been given this information, when he phoned, he would have
known that he could deliver the 13-part message to the
Admiral at about 11:30 on that night. What information he
received, if any, we will now never know.

Although Lieutenant Commander Kramer did not deliver
the 13-part message to Rear Admiral Turner on the night of
Saturday, December 6, the latter did sce a copy during that
night, and was told that Rear Admiral Ingersoll and Captain
Wilkinson had also scen it. Admiral Turner stated to the
Joint Congressional Comnmittee that he considered the de.
liveries to these two other officers relieved him of the re-
sponsibility for taking any action on the message. It is
surprising that he was not closely questioned regarding this
particular testimony. Since April, 1941, he was the only
officer under Admiral Stark authorized to transmit informa-
tion of this character to the outlying commands. One would
thercfore expect that the examination would immediately
seek full enlightenment as to why the witness had felt no
personal responsibility at the time for informing A.‘miral
Kimmel that Washington had received a copy of the Japanese
Declaration of War. The thought was never developed while
Admiral Turner was a witness.

While the complcte inability of both Admiral Stark and
General Marshall to recollect any of the events of Saturday
made it impossible to question either officer on the witness
stand  concerning that day. the failure to inquire more
minutely into the motivating rcasons for their surprising ac-
tions on the morning of Sunday, December 7, is the most
arresting feature of the entire Congressional Investigation.

Although the Admiral certainly knew of Japan’s technique
for starting her wars, he twice during that morning refused
to accept the advice of his juniors that he inform Admiral
Kimmel that the Declaration of War had been received in
Washington and that its delivery to the U.S. Government
was to be carefully timed. Even when he knew the exact
time of delivery, the probable time of the surprise attack, he
adhered to his decision of silence. None of the Admiral’s
cxplanations for his previous withholding of Magic from
Hawaii applicd in this situation. He knew that war was less
than three hours away, when he made his final decision not
to tell Admiral Kimmel.

According to Colonel Bratton's testimony concerning the
delivery of the Pilot Message, General Marshall knew at
3:00 v.m. on Saturday that the answer to the American note
of November 26 was about to be received, and that its de
livery was to be cavefully timed. While he did not remembe
that fact on the witness stand. three and four years later, he
certainly could not forget it overnight. This made it manda.
tory that he arrive in his office at a very early hour on Sunday
morning, instead of at 11:25. when he did arrive. The fact
that he had not seen the 13-part message during Saturday
night made his carly availability in the War Department ail
the more urgent. Omit eveiything that occurred on Saturday,
and the eritical developments in U.S.-Japanese affairs would
still bave demanded that the Army Chief of Stafl arm himsell
with the earliest possible knowledge of the night’s happenings
on Sunday morning,

Both Admiral Stark and General Marshall, on the morning
of Sunday, December 7, 1941, therefore failed to live up to
the responsibilities of their high offices. Why? Every dictate
of their training and expericnce demanded a radically differ-
ent line of conduct on the part of each The only possible
answer is that they were acting under positive orders from
thein President to send no message to Hawaii before noon on
that day, and they adopted decidedly different methods of
complying with their orders. Admiral Stark taced the vital
[apanese messages and simply refused to take action. With
slightly more finesse, General Marshall avoided contact with
the messages until the period of enjoined silence had elapsed.
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Iere, once again, was a definite key to the whole Pearl
Harbor riddle. Both officers on the witness stand would have
been subjected to an exhaustive examination concerning their
actions on that Sunday morning by any lawver ol experience
who was determined to do his best to develop the entire truth
of the matter. Neither of the officers was subjected to suchs
an examination.

The Report of the Joint Coungressional Committee and the
Minority Views of Senators Ferguson and Brewster cover 373
printed pages. As the significant evidence, pertinent to the
development of the true Pear! 1arbor story, has already been
adequately disenssed, further consideration of that evidence
from the standpoint of its effect upon the Joint Committee
can contribute nothing further. and would merely be re-
dundant. A brief review of the Majority and Minority Con
cusions is desirable, as these so accurately portray the
attitudes of those subdivisions of the Joint Committee.

In passing. it is noted that the Majority submitted o
pumber of Recommendations which  deal exclusively with
alleged deficiencies of our Military and Naval Establishments,
which that Majority considered the Congressional Investiga:
tion had revealed. Most of these Recommendations lose then
validity when the decisive control, which President Roosevelt
excreised over the Washington actions of the Army and Navy
during the pre-Pear] Harbor period, is appreciated and
accepted.

The Majority - Conclusions, which are paraphrased  lor
brevity . were as follows:

1. The Pearl Iarbor attack was an unprovoked act of
aggression by Japan,

2. The attack was well planned and Skilltully  executed
by more powertul lorces than it was thenght Japan could
employ in a single tactical adventure at such o distance and
under such circumstances;

3. U.S. policies and actions provided no justifiable provoe
cation for the attack,

4. The Committee tound no evidence 1o support charges
that the President and the Secretaries al State, War, and
Navy did anything to provoke, incite or cocree Jupan inte
attacking, in order that a declaration of war might ore casily
he obtained from the Congress;

5. The President, the Scerctary of State and other High
Officials made every possible effort to avert war with Japan;

6. The disaster was due to the failure of the Army and
Navy to institute measures to detect approaching  bostile
forces. to elfect a state ol readiness comensurate with the
imminence of war, and to employ every fucility at their com-
mand to repel the Japanese:

7. The Japanese attack surprised virtually everyone despite
the fact that: officers in Washington and Hawaii were con-
scious of the dangers from air attacks; the possibility of such
an attack upon Pearl Harbor was realized: the imminence ot
war was generally appreciated;

8. The Hawaiian Commands failed to make the disposi
tions required by the wurnings they recaived from Washing
ton, other information they had, and a due appreciation ot
the significance of certain intelligence communicated to thems

9. The errors made by the lawaiian Commanders were
errors of judgment and not derclictions of duty;

10. The Wi Plans Division of the War Department tailed
to discharge its dircct responsibility when it did not warn
General Short that his sabotage alert was not respousive to
the original directive;

11. The Intelligence and War Plans Divisions ol the W
and Navy Departments fuiled: to appraise the significance
of the Tokyo-Ilonolulu dispatches concerning the Pearl Har
bor berthing plan and to transmit this information to the
Hawaiian Commanders; to recognize that the time-of -delivery
message meant Japanese military action somewhere at 1:00
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pat.. and to send word to all outlying Pacific command:, ‘as
General Marshall attempted 0 do immediately upon s -cmg
it”;

12, The War and Navy Departments were not suffic ently
derted on December 6 and 7, 1941, in view of the imimi-
nence of war,

These conclusions clearly ¢ press the intent which aninated
the Democratic Majority  twoughout the investigatic n-to
allay forever all suspicion tl at President Roosevelt and his
civilian administration were @y any way connected with the
Pear! Harbor disaster. The cxoneration of the Sceretar es of
State, War, and Navy was sound. They constantly vised
with the President, but he n ade the decisions.

Conclusions 1, 2, and 3: the Japanese Attack

There is no question that e attack was an act of azgres-
sion. Whether or not it was unprovoked will be discussed
shortly in connection with the consideration of President
Roosevelt's responsibilities. It must be agreed that the attack
was well planned and skillfu ly exceuted, but no naval itrate-
gist will agree that the streny th of the forces was greatcr than
it was thought that Japan would employ in such an ope ation.
The large risks involved der wnded large results if the attack
succoeded, and only a poverful force could promi ¢ the
accomplishment of such res lts.

The thought of greater  apancse strength than exoected
was an obvious apology for the Fleet losses, for the e o
of those who are still not convineed that President Rooses cit
fad no responsibility in conaection with the Japanese 1ttack.
[t is interesting to note the clear intimation that An.erican
thought had been given to the surprise attack befcre the
event. and had heen carrie'd so fur as to_cstimate the forees
that Japan would use. 1ow does the Democratic N ajority
square this with Conelusio 7. which states that the attuck
surprised  virtually everyon e

Conclusions 4 and 5: I'resident Roosevelt
and the Inception of the War

We are here told that the President did nothing toomvite
the attack; in tact, did everything to avert it. The evicence is
overwhelming that he did very deliberately invite th2 Japa-
nese attack (sce Chapter 2). The attempt to thrott e their
cconomic life through corplete stoppage of their taade
concert with Great Britain and the Netherlands, cnd the
demands in the American pote ot November 26, 19-:1. that
Japan accept absolute defeat in China and surrende to the
cconomic encirclement through withdrawal of her forces tron
French Indo-China, were the most drastic steps thet Presi-
dent Roosevell could take oward war.

During the {all of 1941, r. Churchill and Presiden  Roose-
velt were in constant coramunication with cach oher. At
Newloundland in carly #ugust, they spent howrs n close
consultation. With the exe ption of Mr. Harry Hopkins, there
was probably uo one duriig those times in closer tovch with
President Roosevelt's thin sing regarding the Europcan War
and the possibility of war with Japan. On January 27, 1942,
the British Prime Ministe: said to the House of Commons,
“But as time has passed, tie United States, under the leader-
ship of President Rooseve t, [yom reasons of its own interests
and salety, but also out ¢ a chivalrous regard for the cause
of {reedom and democer: 2y, has drawn ever close' to the
confines of the struggle. . . The probability since the Atlantic
Conference, at which 1 Ciscussed these matters with Presi-
dent Roosevelt, that the United States, even if nct herself
attucked, would come int» the war in the Far East, and thus
make victory sure, scemud to allay some of the aixicties.”

The testimony of Mr. Churchill and a myriad of other
evidence completely conl radicts Conclusions 4 and 5 of the
\Majority Report.
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Conclusions 6 to 12: Strictures Against the
Army and Navy

If President Roosevelt had no responsibility for matters in
‘onnection with the Pearl Harbor attack, all blame for the
~mistakes which were apparently made must fall upon the
Army and Navy. As the President was in complete control
of the whole situation, the Army and Navy in Washington
were merely obeying orders, and the Hawaiian Commanders
were the victims of those orders. Further consideration of
these seven Conclusions in the Majority Report would there-
fore serve no purpose.

The Minority Opinions of Senators Ferguson and Brewster
criticized President Roosevelt for failing to take “quick and
instant executive action on Saturday night, December 6th
and Sunday morning, December 7th.”

Their over-all Opinion was summarized as follows: “The
tailure of Pearl Harbor to be tully alerted and prepared for

PART IV

Chapten 73

THE FINAL
SUMMATION

e

Review of the American Moves Which
Led to the Japanese Attack

Our Main Deduction is that President Roosevelt forced
Japan to war by unrelenting diplomatic-economic pressure,
and enticed that country to initiate hostilities with a surprise
attack by holding the Pacific Fleet in Hawaiian waters as an
invitation to that attack.

The evidence (Chapter 2) shows how surely the President
moved toward war after June, 1940. His conversation with
Admiral Richardson in October, 1940, indicated his convic-
tion that it would be impossible without a stunning incicdent
to obtain a declaration of war from Congress.

Despite the conditions of undeclared war which existed in
the Atlantic during the latter half of 1941, it had long been
clear that Germany did not intend to contribute to the cre-
ation of a state of formal war between her and the United
States. The Tripartite Treaty of September, 1940, however.
supplied the President with the answer. Under that treaty.
war with Japan meant war with Germany and Italy.

The highlights of the cver-increasing pressure upon Japan
were:

(1) the extension of financial and military aid to China in
concert with Great Britain and the Netherlands, which began
early in 1941;
< (2) the stoppage of Philippine exports to Japan by Ex-
ecutive Order on May 29, 1941,

(8) the freezing of Japancse assets and the interdiction
ot all trade with Japan by the United States, Great Britain,

1d the Netherlands on July 25, 1941,
< (4) President Roosevelt’s very frank statements of policy
‘o Ambassador Nomura in their conference of August 17, 1941,
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Conclusion

defense rested upon the proper discharge of two sets of
interdependent responsibilities: (1) the responsibilities of
high authorities in Washington; (2) the responsibilities
of the Commanders in the field in charge of the fleet
and naval base.”

The following were charged with failure to meet their
responsibilities in connection with Pear] Harbor: President
Roosevelt, Secrctary Stimson, Secretary Knox, General Mar-
shall, Admiral Stark, Major General Gerow, Major General
Short, Rear Admiral Kimmel.

Once again, we can only repeat our trequent comment that
a full realization of President Roosevelt’s connection with the
Pearl Harbor disaster would cause a decided modification of
the views concerning the responsibilities of the officials and
officers named in the above Opinion.

And so ended the Hearings of the jJoint Congressional
Committee, the last act in the attempt to preserve the Pearl
Harbor Secret.

(5) the termination of the Washington conterence by the
American note of November 26, 1941, which brought the
war to the United States as the President so clearly intended
it would.

That the Pearl Harbor attack was in accord with President
Roosevelt’s plans is attested by the following array of facts:

(1) President Roosevelt and his military and naval ad-
visers were well aware that Japan invariably started her
wars with a surprise attack synchronized closely with her
delivery of the Declaration of War;

(2) In October, 1940, the President stated that, it war
broke out in the Pacific, Japan would commit the overt act
which would bring the United States into the war;

(3) The Pacific Fleet, against contrary naval advice, was
retained in Hawaii by order of the President for the alleged
reason that the Fleet, so located, would exert a restrictive
cltect upon Japanese aggressions in the Far East;

(4) The Fleet in Hawaii was neither powerful enough nor
in the necessary strategic position to influence Japan’s diplo-
matic decisions, which could only be accomplished by the
stationing of an adequate naval force in Far Eastern waters;

(5) Before that Fleet could operate at any distance from
Pear] Harbor, its train (tankers, supply and repair vessels)
would have had to be tremendously increased in strength—
tacts that would not escape the notice of the experienced
Japanecse spies in Hawaii;

(6) President Roosevelt gave unmistakable evidence, in
March, 1941, that he was not greatly concerned with the
Pacific Fleet’s effects upon Japanese diplomatic decisions,
when he authorized the weakening of that Fleet, already
inferior to that of Japan, by the detachment of 8 battleships,
I aircraft carrier, 4 light cruisers, and 18 destroyers for duty
in the Atlantic—a movement which would immediately be
detected by Japanese espionage in Hawaii and the Panama
Canal Zone;

(7) The successful crippling ot the Pacific Fleet was the
only surprise operation which promised the Japanese Navy
sufficiently large results to justify the risk of heavv losses
from land-based air attacks if the surprise failed, .

(8) Such an operation against the Fleet in Hawaii was
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attended with [ar greater chanees of suceess, especially trom
the surprise standpoint. and far less risk of heavy losses than
a similar attack against that Fleet based in 17.S. West Coast
ports;

(9) The retention of the Fleet in [lawaii. especially after
its reduction in strength in March, 1941 could serve, only
onc possible purpase, an invitation to a surprise Japauese
attack;

(10) The denial to the Hawaiian Commanders of all
knowledge of Magic was vital to the plan tor enticing Japan
to deliver a surprise attack upon the Fleet in Pearl Harbor.
because, as late as Saturday, December 6. Admiral Kimmel
could have caused that attack to be cancelled by taking his
Fleet to sea and disappearing beyond land-hased human ken.

Review of the.Situation Known to Washington
Before the Attack

From the beginning of the Washington conterence in No-
vember, 1941, President Roosevelt and his advisers had
repeated evidence (Chapter 3) that this was Japan's last
and supreme elfort to break the economic encirclement by
peaceful means.

Throughout the negotiations, the Japanese sccret  dis-
patches stressed a “deadline dute,” after which “things were
automatically going to happen.”

Automatic events which were to follow the breakdown of
such vital negotiations could only be acts of war, clear evi-
dence that Japan intended to deliver a surprise attack to
initiate the hostilitics,

The fact that surprise was essential to the Japanese plans
was repeatedly emplasized, on and after November 28, by
thie Tokyo dispatches and by telephone instructions to the
two Ambassadors, cautioning them to keep alive the appear-
ance of continuing negotiation.

Evervone familiar with Japanese military  history  kuew
that hor first acts of war against China in 1894 and Russia
in 1904 had heen surprise attacks against the main Heets of
those ~ countrics.

The only American Naval Foree in the Pacific that was
worth the risk of such an operation was the Fleet in Hawaiian
walers.

The President and his military and naval advisers well
knew. on October 9, from the Tokyo dispateh to Honolulu
of September 24 (Chapter 1), that Japar intended to plan
a surprise air attack on the American Fleet in Pearl Harbor,
and had daily evidence from the late decodes of certain
Tokvo-Honolulu dispatches during the period, December 3-6
inclusive, that the planned attack was soon to oceut.

On November 26, the recipients of Magic all had positive
information from the Tokyo dispateh to Hong Kong of No-
vember 14 that Japan intended war with the United States
and Great Britain if the Washington negatiations should tail.

The Tokvo dispatch to the Washingtan Embassy of No-
vember 28 definitely stated that the Japanese Govenmment
considered that the American note of the 26t had termi-
nated all possibility of further negoliations.

The Tokvo-Berlin messages dated November 30 instructed
the Japanese Ambassador to inform Hitler and von Ribben
trop that war between Japan and the Anglo-Saxo.  nations
would come soouer than anvone expected.

‘The Japanese code-destruction messages ot 1 cinher 1
and 2 (Chapter 6) meuant that war was ext.eme’y close at
hand.

With the distribution of the Pilot Message al ;00 1AL on
Saturday, December 6, the picture was complete for Presudent
Roosevelt and the other recipients of Megic, hoth in Wash-
ington and Manila. It suid that the ansaer to the American
note was about to arrive in the Embassy, that it was very
lengthy, and that its delivery to the U.S. Government was
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to he especially timed. That imed delivery could only have
meant that the answer was & Declaration of War, sy hro-
nized witl a surprise attack. Mo other deduction was tenible.

The Saturday receipt of this definite information str¢ ngly
supported the existing estime tes in the War and Navy De-
partiments, that the Japanesc surprise attack would be de-
livered on a Sunday, and marked the morrow, Sw day,
December 7. as the day. All his. heyond doubt, was known
to President Rovsevelt, Gene al Marshall, and Admiral stark
al about 3:00 par on that jaturday. Washington tim-, 21
hours hefore the next sunrise in Hawaii.

In obedience to the basic lictates of the Militarv Ar , the
information contained in the Pilot Message and the uimis-
takable implications thereof «hould have been_transmitt xd to
Admiral Kimmel and Gener: 1 Short at once. There wis no
military consideration that w ould warrant or tolerate ¢n in-
stant’s delay in getting this word to those officers. There can-
uot be the slightest doubt thi General Marshall and Ac miral
Stark would have had this lone, if they had not becn re-
strained from doing so by tl e orders of President Roos>velt.
In the situation which then existed for them, no officer of
even limited experience, if fee to act, could possibly cecide
otherwise. .

The fighting words in the sclected passages of the 13-part
message (Chapter 9) receivad on that same Saturday were
merely additional evidence that this was a Declaration of
War. The 14th part received carly Sunday morning; was
further confirmation of that act.

The 1:00 p.as. Washingto delivery, ordered by the time-
of-delivery dispatch, clearly indicated Pear! Harbor s the
ohjective of the surprise af tack. the final link in the long
chain of evidence to that ef ect.

There Would Have Becn No Pearl Harbor
If Magic Had Not Beer: Denied
to the Hawaiian Comnianders

The recurrent fact of the true Pearl Harbor story hes been
the repeated withholding o information from Admiral Kim-
mel and General Short, If the War and Navy Depaitments
had been free o follow the lictates of the Art of War, he fol.
lowing is the minimum of pformation and orders these offi-
cers would have reccived:

The Tokyo-TTonolulu disy atches regarding the exact berth-
ing of U.S. ships in Pearl Jarbor and. in that connection, a
reminder that Japan invari ibly started her wars with a sur-
prisc attack on the new er amy's Muain Flect; the dis yatches
concerninz the Washington Conlerence and the deadliye date
after which things were at tomatically going to happ n—evi-
denee that this was Japan’t last ceffort to solve U. S.-]: panese
differences by peaceful me: os and the strong intimatio of the
surprise attack: the Tokyo- Jong Kong dispatch of Ncvember
54 which told of -Japan's ntentions Lo initiate war vith the
two  Anglo-Saxon powers if the Washinglon negc tiations
failed: the Tokyo-Washington dispatch of Novemoer 5.
which stated that the Am srican note of November 26 h: 1
terminated those negotiati ms; the Pilot Message of Decen
ber 6, which told that the Declaration of War was : bout to
arrive in Washington, and that its celivery to the U.S. Gov-
ernment was to be especi: ly timed, an essential feature for
svnchronizing the surorise ittack with that delivery.

Not later than by November 28, the War and Navy De
partments should have orc zred the Hawaiian Commanders to
place the Joint Army-Navy Couastal Frontier Defense Plans
in cffeet, and to unily thei Commands; the Navy Dejartment
should have oraered the robilization of the Naval Estublish-
ment.

On November 28, the Chiet ot Naval Operations should
have ordered Admiral Ki bm \ to recall the Enterpiise from

U,
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the Wake operation, and a few days later should have directed
the cancellation of the contemplated sending of the Lexington
to Midway.

As has been repeatedly said, not one word of this informa-

- tion and none of the foregoing orders were sent to Hawaii.

General Marshall Looks Ahead, But
Admiral Stark Lets the Cat Out of the Bag

Everything that happened in Washington on Saturday and
Sunday, December 6 and 7, supports the belief that President
Roosevelt had directed that no message be sent to the Ha-
wailan Commanders before noon on Sunday, Washington
time.

General Marshall apparently appreciated that failure to act
on the Declaration of War message and its timed delivery was
going to be very difficult to explain on the witness stand when
the future inevitable investigation into the incidents of those
days took place. His avoidance of contact with the messages
after the Pilot message until 11:25 on Sunday morning was
unquestionably prompted by these thoughts. Otherwise, he
would undoubtedly have been in his office by 8:00 a.m. on
that fateful day.

Admiral Stark, on the other hand, did arrive in his office
at 9:25 a.m. on Sunday, and at once accepted delivery of the
full Declaration of War message. Against the advice of his
assistants, he rcfused to inform Admiral Kimmel of its receipt.
Forty minutes later, he knew that the 14-part message was to
be delivered to the U.S. Government at 1:00 ».M., Washing-
ton time, which was 7:30 a.M., Hawaiian time, as was pointed
out to him at once. Again, despite the urging of certain of his
aides, he refused to send word to Admiral Kimmel.

Never before in recorded history had a field commander
been denied information that his country would be at war in
a matter of hours, and that everything pointed to a surprise at-

"
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tack upon his forces shortly after sunrise. No Naval Officer,
on his own initiative, would ever make such a decision as Ad-
miral Stark thus did.

That fact and Admiral Stark’s decisions on that Sunday
morning, even if they had not been supported by the wealth
of carlier evidence, would reveal, beyond question, the basic
truth of the Pearl Harbor story, namely that these Sunday
messages and so many earlier ones, of vital import to Admiral
Kimmel's exercise of his command, were not sent because
Admiral Stark had orders from the President, which pro-
hibited that action.

This deduction is fully supported by the Admiral’s statc-
ment to the press in August, 1945, that all he did during the
pre-Pear]l Tarbor days was done on order of higher authority,
which can only mean President Roosevelt. The most arresting
thing he did, during that time, was to withhold information
from Admiral Kimmel.

President Roosevelt's Strategy
Accomplishes Its Purpose

Thus, by holding a weak Pacific Fleet in Ilawaii as an invi-
tation to a surprise attack, and by denying the Commander of
that Fleet the information which might cause him to render
that attack impossible, President Roosevelt brought war to the
United States on Deccmber 7, 1941, He took a fully aroused
nation into the fight because none of its pcople suspected how
the Japancse surprise attack fitted into their President’s plans.
Disastrous as it was from a naval standpoint, the Pearl Harbor
attack proved to be the diplomatic prelude to the complete
defeat of the Axis Powers.

As each rcader will make up his own mind regarding the
various questions raised by President Rooscvelt’s solution to
his problem, nothing would be gained by an ethical analysis
of that solution.

-Depariment of Defense
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One of he best forms of insurance

for any business is continuous

rescarcl to improve existing
roduct; and develop new

geviccs for present customers as

well as o provide new and

expand: d markets.

Rese: rch insurance is not a low
cost bu iness protection but in our
compet tive business economy it is
a positi e protection that a compan;
cannot ifford to be without.
Market are always changing; every
day nev- products and techniques
come fiom the laboratory.

Produc ive hands and machines
produc: thesc products; intelligent
merchaidising sells them, Thus are
yroduc s created to replace those tha:
{lave lc 3t their markets.

As nethods in industry and tastes
of peoy le change, so business must
change We all know cases where
compai ies failed because they were
unwilliag to change or meet the
challer ge soon enough to prevent
their p ‘oducts from becoming
obsolet .

Proc uction rescarch requires we |
balanci d teamwork on the part of
manag: ment, sales, and producers,
as well as rescarch engineers. We
all recal ze that creative research
does n it immediately bring forth
Frodm ts that can quickly and easily
)e put into production and
distrib 1tion with a satisfactory
profit. This effort, however, which
at the moment may seem
unprot uctive, often directs the wa:-
In its constant search for more modern and improved meth- toanw approﬂch}~ the results of
ods of doing business, Vapor Heating Corporation hasinstalled which will more than offsct the co 1

i i of a continuous resecarch program.
Copyflex machines in both office and plant. These Copyflex Onc of the best examples of this

A. D. Bruea, President, Vapor Heating Corporation

copying machines help speed paper work and prevent errors. kind ¢ thinking in our Company i
. . . the st am generator which we
In recent years thousands of industrial and business develc ped to produce steam for
concerns all over the country have found that efficiency in heatin i}raily-ay Yassenge; cars
production and merchandising cannot be obtained without g;‘l‘z:‘ “;' fféiinelt,y‘)fﬁn"}iﬁfs;ﬁ'ﬁye,
corresponding efficiency in the handling of paper work. %he w. rld. Many discouraging and
1 bl e s gd
In any business or plant operation where multiple copies R | i’v;f:‘;n‘s“eé‘;ecd“f}‘:;‘::;f
of a record are required, Bruning Copyflex will save man- contir uous research. We now find
hours and eliminate errors. It applies to office procedures thlat Lais umtlca_n be useg'fr
and plant management the accepted principle of replacing ex- advan ageously in many diflerent

- . . . . ) indus ries needing processes in
pensive—and possibly inefficient—hand labor with a machine. steam

Res 2arch has also taken us into
a proiiinent position in electronic

and t ermostatic controls for vital
aireraft. Qur experience is not
uniqu g; it convinces us that
y indus ry is keeping abreast of the
Coptes anything typed, & M/a changes in modes of living througa
written, printad or drawn g’ conti wous research,
on ordinary transiucent

paper—in seconds.

CHARLES BRUNING COMPANY, INC., 4700 MONTROSE AVENUE, CHICAGO 41, ILLINDIS
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SMOKE REGULAR OR KING-SIZE CHESTERFIELD. ..

AMERICA'S MOST POPULAR
2-WAY CIGARETTE

| smoke REGULAR
Chesterfield,” says
Mary Healy

"I like KING-SIZE
Chestertield,” says
Peter Lind Hayes

THE QUALITY YOU WANT

Nomatter whichsize Chesterfield
you buy you get the same pre-
mium quality cigarette, and all
the flavor and mildness that goes
with it! You get the world’s best
tobaccos, selected by Chesterfield
buyers with the help of our re-
search chemists . . . and proven,
by actual tobacco tests, to be
highest in quality.

MILDNESS
you want /'

THE LOW NICOTINE YOU WANT THE PROOF YOU OUGHT TO HAVE

Before we buy tobaccos for A group of Chesterfield smokers have been examined
Chesterfields, our laboratories by a doctor every two months for almost two years.
take samples from all over the 459, of them have been smoking Chesterfield, on
tobacco country and analyze the average, for well over 10 years. The doctor’s exami-
them for low nicotine content. nations show ... no adverse effects to the nose, throat
The extra care pays off! In re-
cent ‘‘tobacco tests,” the six Chesterfield.
leading brands of cigarettes were SINUSE Consider Chesterfield’s record
chemically analyzed. The find- e with these smokers—with millions
ings: of them all, Chesterfield is of other smokers throughout
. highest in quality — America. Change to Chesterfield
low in nicotine. and enjoy the taste and mildness
you want—highest in quality —low
in nicotine—best for you!

CHESTERFIELD
BEST FOR YoU

and sinuses from smokhking

Copyright 1954, Licorm & Myers Tosacco Co.
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-ft. Holiday, speeds fo 0w plh.

New Chrds-Craft 23-f1. Custom Cap tun, speeds to 20 mph.

For 1951, Chris-Craft. proudly presents to yvon an exciting selectivm
of hreath-taking, new Showboats: Ruuibouts, Sportsmen. Holiday =,
Fixpress Criiserss Criiaers and Motor Yaclhls — 17 through 63-
i lenath, speeds to e mop .

Many cost no more o own and apesate than an automobile. .
eribrace the advanced desien, the Tuorious comfort, the supe b
perfornmec thal s distinetively Chiris Craft.

Commamd a new 1950 Chris-Craft Showboal NOW! See yvor
fricoelly Chric-Craft Dealer or write 1he factory for colorful, fr-
brachiare. Da it today!
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New Chrie-Craft 50-ft. Conguero, speeds 1o 24 m.ph. :

I _
CHRIS-CRAFT CORPORATION, ALGON: C, MICH.
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